4 Title: Licensing Committee (Licensing Act 2003
lcRla
¢ 1 e O UIT. Date: 20 November 2014
Brighton & Hove
City Council Time: 3.30pm (or conclusion of Non-Licensing Act
Committee)
Venue Council Chamber, Hove Town Hall

Members: | Councillors:

Powell (Chair), Simson (Opposition
Spokesperson), Lepper (Opposition
Spokesperson), Bennett, Cobb, Duncan, Gilbey,
Hyde, A Kitcat, Jones, Kennedy, Marsh, Robins,
Rufus and C Theobald

Contact: | Penny Jennings
Democratic Services Officer

01273 291065
penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk

E\ The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users,
(4 including lifts and toilets

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for
7 anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter
e 1] and infra red hearing aids are available for use
during the meeting. If you require any further
information or assistance, please contact the
receptionist on arrival.

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by
the nearest available exit. You will be directed to
the nearest exit by council staff. It is vital that you
follow their instructions:

*  You should proceed calmly; do not run and do
not use the lifts;

* Do not stop to collect personal belongings;

* Once you are outside, please do not wait
immediately next to the building, but move
some distance away and await further
instructions; and

* Do not re-enter the building until told that it is
safe to do so.

Licensing Committee

(Licensing Act 2003 Functions)

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk



Public Seating

Head of Councillor Lawyer Democratic
Department Powell Services
Officer
Councillor Councillor
Kitcat Simson
Councillor Councillor
Duncan Hyde
Councillor Councillor
Kennedy Cobb
Councillor Councillor
Jones Bennett
Councillor Councillor
Rufus C. Theobald
Member Public
Speaking Speaker
Councillor Councillor Councillor Councillor
Robins Gilbey Marsh Lepper

Press

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout




LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS)

AGENDA
Part One Page
11 PROCEDURAL BUSINESS

(a) Declaration of Substitutes: Where Councillors are unable to attend a
meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting.

(b) Declarations of Interest:

(a) Disclosable pecuniary interests not registered on the register of
interests;

(b) Any other interests required to be registered under the local
code;

(c) Any other general interest as a result of which a decision on the
matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting you or a
partner more than a majority of other people or businesses in
the ward/s affected by the decision.

In each case, you need to declare

(i) the item on the agenda the interest relates to;

(i) the nature of the interest; and

(i) whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest or some other
interest.

If unsure, Members should seek advice from the committee lawyer

or administrator preferably before the meeting.

(c) Exclusion of Press and Public: To consider whether, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration.
NOTE: Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its
heading either that it is confidential or the category under which the
information disclosed in the report is exempt from disclosure and
therefore not available to the public.

A list and description of the categories of exempt information is
available for public inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls.
12 APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY CHAIR

To formally appoint the Deputy Chair for the remainder of the current

Municipal Year.

13 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1-6

Minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2014 (copy attached)



LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS)

14

15

16

17

18

19

CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

To consider the following matters raised by members of the public: To
consider the following matters raised by members of the public:

(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions presented to the full council or 10

working days before the meeting;

(b) Written Questions: to receive any questions submitted by the due

date of 12 noon on 12 November 2014;

(c) Deputations: to receive any deputations submitted by the due date

of 12 noon on 12 November 2014.

ISSUES RAISED BY MEMBERS

To consider the following matters raised by Members:

(a) Petitions: to receive any petitions submitted to the full Council or 10

working days in advance of the meeting;
(b) Written Questions: to consider any written questions;
(c) Letters: to consider any letters;

(d) Notices of Motion: to consider any Notices of Motion

REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY
Report of the Director of Public Health (copy attached)

Contact Officer: Tim Nichols Tel: 29-2163
Ward Affected: All Wards

UNDERAGE GAMBLING - TEST PURCHASE OPERATION

Report of the Director of Public Health (copy attached)

Contact Officer: Sarah Cornell Tel: 29-5801
Ward Affected: All Wards

SCHEDULE OF REVIEWS

7-146

147 -
154

155 -
156



LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS)

Report of the Director of Public Health (copy attached)

20 SCHEDULE OF APPEALS 157 -
158

Report of the Head of Law (copy attached)

Contact Officer: Rebecca Sidell Tel: 29-1511
Ward Affected: All Wards

21 ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO COUNCIL

To consider items to be submitted to Council for information.

In accordance with Procedure Rule 24.3a, the Committee may determine
that any item is to be included in its report to Council. In addition,

any Group may specify one further item to be included by notifying the
Chief Executive no later than 10am on the eighth working day before the
Council meeting at which the report is to be made, or if the Committee
meeting take place after this deadline, immediately at the conclusion of
the Committee meeting

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public. Provision is also made
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings.

The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting.

Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date.

Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on
disc, or translated into any other language as requested.

For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Penny Jennings,
(01273 291065, email penny.jennings@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email
democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Date of Publication - Wednesday, 12 November 2014







LICENSING COMMITTEE Agenda Item 13

(LICENSING ACT 2003

FUNCTlONS) Brighton & Hove City Council

1a

1.1

1b

1.2

1c

1.3

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL
LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS)
3.30PM, 26 JUNE 2014
COUNCIL CHAMBER, HOVE TOWN HALL
MINUTES
Present: Councillors Powell (Chair), Duncan (Deputy Chair), Simson (Opposition
Spokesperson), Bennett, Carden, Deane, Gilbey, Jarrett, Phillips, Robins, Rufus,
C Theobald, Wealls and Wells

Apologies: Councillors Marsh

PART ONE

PROCEDURAL BUSINESS
Declaration of Substitutes

Councillor Deane declared that she was substituting for Councillor Jones. Councillor
Jarrett declared that he was substituting for Councillor Kennedy. Councillor Wealls
declared that he was substituting for Councillor Hyde. Councillor Wells declared that he
was substituting for Councillor Cobb. Councillor Carden declared that he was
substituting for Councillor Lepper.

Declarations of Interest
There were none.
Exclusion of the Press and Public

In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (‘the Act’), the
Committee considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the
meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if
members of the press or public were present during that item, there would be disclosure
to them of confidential information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt
information (as defined in section 100l of the Act).




LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 JUNE 2014

1.4

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

RESOLVED - That the press and public be not excluded from the meeting during
consideration of any item appearing on the agenda.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the Licensing Committee (Licensing Act 2003
Functions) Meeting held on 6 March 2014 be agreed and signed as a correct record.

CHAIR'S COMMUNICATIONS
Visit to a Betting Office

The Chair referred to her recent visit to a Ladbrokes betting office which she understood
was very well run; she had been able to observe different elements of its operation and
it had been an interesting experience.

Setting up Licensing Panel Hearings

The Chair explained that although aware that Members had very full diaries she thought
it was important to remind Members of the importance of volunteering to sit on Licensing
Panels whenever they were able to do so. Whilst it was understood that Members had a
number of conflicting commitments which meant that their availability was limited but
there had been several “near misses” where it had been not possible to raise a Panel,
this could have resulted in an untenable legal situation and could have compromised the
Council’s position. The Panels were the “nuts and bolts” of the Committees’ work and
were the place where its policies were applied; it went without saying therefore that they
were very important.

It was explained in answer to questions that when licence applications came in was
beyond the control of the Licensing Team or Democratic Services as once submitted
there was a statutory timeline within which a Panel comprised of Members of the parent
Committee needed to meet and determine it. Suitable accommodation also had to be
found and booked. The majority of applications did not come before a Panel (this is only
the case when there were objections which were not withdrawn as a result of the
negotiation process) and the relatively few that did come forward do therefore require
determination by the Committee.

Councillor Robins stated that it might be beneficial if alternative timings and locations
could be put forward and the Democratic Services Officer confirmed that as far as
possible they would factor this in within the constraints placed upon the process. If
Members had limited or alternative availability e.g., would prefer afternoons if they let
the Democratic Services Team know they would try and accommodate that in, although
it was reiterated that Panels had to be arranged within a very narrow window which
means there is limited flexibility around the timing of hearing dates. Councillor Simson
stated that Brighton Town Hall was the preferred location of those Members who
attended hearings on a regular basis, that should be taken account of too.

RESOLVED - That the position be noted.



LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 JUNE 2014

4a

41

4b

4.2

4c

4.3

5a

5.1

5b

5.2

5c

5.3

5d

54

6.1

6.2

6.3

PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT
Petitions

There were none.
Written Questions
There were none.
Deputations

There were none.
MEMBER INVOLVEMENT
Petitions

There were none.
Written Questions
There were none.
Letters

There were none.
Notices of Motion
There were none.

RESPONSE TO REPORT OF HEALTH AND WELL BEING OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY PANEL ON ALCOHOL

The Committee considered the covering report of the Head of Law detailing the findings
of the Scrutiny Panel into requesting that the Committee consider the recommendations
put forward by the Health & Wellbeing Overview & Scrutiny Panel, Scrutiny Panel on
Alcohol in relation to proposed revision of the current Statement of Licensing Policy. An
extract from the Minutes of the Health & Wellbeing Overview & Scrutiny Panel and a full
copy of the report of the Scrutiny Panel on Alcohol were appended to the report.

It was noted that The Overview & Scrutiny Committee have forwarded their report to the
Licensing Committee (Licensing Act 2003 Functions) for information and are also
seeking the Committees’ approval to review the current Statement of Licensing Policy in
the terms set out.

Councillor Deane who had Chaired the Panel stated that the broad scope offered by the

review had enabled Members to consider a number of issues related to the night time
economy in depth and that she wished to place on record her gratitude to her fellow

3



LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 JUNE 2014

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.7

Panel Members for their valuable contributions. Councillor Deane went on to explain
that in formulating their recommendations the Panel had tried to seek a balance
between the cities cultural offer business generated by the night time economy and
other interests. It had been highlighted as of importance to ensure that there was a
varied offer which was not entirely based around alcohol consumption and that low/no
alcohol alternatives were encouraged and available. The importance of initiatives such
as “Sensible on Strength” had an important role to play.

Councillor Simson who had also sat on the Panel referred to the work which was
already being carried out across the city. For example the annual “Carnage” event for
newly arrived students at the beginning of each academic year was not supported by
the University of Sussex who stressed that they had no connection with the event and
were pro- active in trying to ensure that it ceased. Councillor Simson went on to state
that the Panel were clearly of the view that the existing matrix system required
amendment and this was reflected in the report recommendations.

Councillor Theobald stated that that in her view the city would benefit from having more
late night coffee bars which would provide a focus for non-alcoholic refreshment.

Councillor Duncan fully supported the report recommendations and commended the
excellent work which had been undertaken in preparing the report and formulating its
recommendations.

Councillor Rufus stated that although the report had taken a while to prepare it provided
a detailed and considered baseline for further work.

RESOLVED - (1) That the Committee notes the Recommendations set out in the
Executive Summary on Page 4 of the report;

(2)That the Committee notes the Panel’s recognition of the strengths of the Statement of
Licensing Policy and agrees to authorise officers to carry forward their recommendation
that the Policy and Matrix be reviewed by this Committee, in particular

(a) the geographical scope of the Cumulative Impact Zone;

(b) that café bars are given their own categorisation in the Matrix to recognise that they
are not restaurants or pubs and that different guidance may apply;

(c) review the definition of residential or commercial areas;

(d) review the statement on hours of alcohol sale; and

(e) review the policy on food and alcohol retailers outside the CIZ (Page 16 of the report;

gather and assess the evidence necessary for a review of the policy as above in

particular the evidence for inclusion of further areas into the CIZ and that officers report

back to this committee with a detailed report and amended policy proposal for approval

by the committee with a view to commencement of the statutory consultation process

and

(3) That officers gather and assess the evidence necessary for a review of the policy as
above in particular the evidence for inclusion of further areas into the CIZ and that
officers report back to this committee with a detailed report and amended policy
proposal for approval by the committee with a view to commencement of the statutory
consultation process.



LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 JUNE 2014

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

Note: Councillor Wells abstained from voting in respect of the report recommendations.
UNDERAGE GAMBLING TEST PURCHASE OPERATION

The Committee considered a report of the Director of Public Health detailing a recent
underage gambling test purchase exercise by the Council’s Licensing Team assisted by
the Gambling Commission on the 25™ April 2014.

Councillor Duncan enquired regarding the sanctions which were put in place in
instances where premises had failed test purchases. Were there instances for example
where premises were closed down immediately. The Senior Environmental Health
Officer, Mr Whitelegg explained that the policy had to be applied proportionately and
commensurate with any offence committed.

Councillor Rufus sought clarification as to whether certain types of premises had been
targeted, for example chains as opposed to small independent businesses and whether
any pattern had emerged regarding lack of training for example which had led to staff
being unaware of unable or to meet their responsibilities.

The Head of Regulatory Services explained that the premises visited had followed the
Gambling Commission’s own suggestions regarding the representative sample to be
used. The results had highlighted an issue which needed to be addressed. The Senior
Environmental Health Officer agreed that all premises which had failed would be re-
visited and checked and it was also agreed that that there would be a further report back
to the next scheduled meeting of the Committee advising on the outcomes and future
programme of action.

RESOLVED - (1) That the Committee notes the contents of the report; and

(2) That officers continue to monitor premises and take appropriate enforcement action
including test purchases.

SCHEDULE OF REVIEWS

The Committee considered a schedule prepared by the Director of Public Health
containing details of any reviews received during the period since the its last meeting.

RESOLVED - That the contents of the schedule be received and noted.
SCHEDULE OF APPEALS

The Committee considered a schedule prepared by the Head of Law containing details
of any appeals lodged during the period since its last meeting.

Councillor Simson enquired whether Officers had received any indication of the date on
which the appeals lodged by Casba and Casba Two in Western Road were likely to be
heard by the Magistrates Court. The Legal Adviser to the Committee confirmed that
hearing dates had yet to be notified and that the premises could continue to trade to the
extent of their hours had been heard and determined.



LICENSING COMMITTEE (LICENSING ACT 2003 FUNCTIONS) 26 JUNE 2014

9.3 RESOLVED - That the contents of the schedule be received and noted.
10 ITEMS TO GO FORWARD TO COUNCIL

10.1 There were none.

The meeting concluded at 5.20pm

Signed Chairman

Dated this day of



LICENSING COMMITTEE  Agendaltem 17

(LICENSING ACT 2003 Brighton & Hove City Council
FUNCTIONS)

Subject: Review of Statement of Licensing Policy
Date of Meeting: 20 November 2014

Report of: Head of Regulatory Services

Contact Officer: Name: Tim Nichols Tel: 29-2163

E-mail: tim.nichols@brighton-hove.gov.uk

Wards Affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

a)
b)

SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

The Council, as Licensing Authority, has a statutory duty to review its
Statement of Licensing Policy (SoLP) every five years. The previous review
was adopted on 15 December 2011 by Full Council and the revised
Statement of Licensing Policy came into effect on 20 December 2011.

The revised statement of licensing policy included an expanded cumulative
impact zone (ClZ) and new larger special stress area (SSA). In addition, a
matrix approach to licensing decision making was adopted.

It was further agreed that the cumulative impact zone and special stress
area are reviewed regularly and as such we have reviewed data year on
year from the implementation of the CIZ and SSA’s.

On the 26th June 2014 Licensing Committee considered the Report of the
Health & Well Being Overview & Scrutiny Panel (Scrutiny Panel on Alcohol
February 2014) in relation to proposed revision of the current Statement of
Licensing Policy and noted the following recommendations:

That the Committee notes the Panel's recognition of the strengths of the
Statement of Licensing Policy and agrees to authorise officers to carry
forward their recommendation that the Policy and Matrix be reviewed by this
Committee, in particular

the geographical scope of the Cumulative Impact Zone;

that café bars are given their own categorisation in the Matrix to recognise
that they are not restaurants or pubs and that different guidance may apply;
review the definition of residential or commercial areas;

review the statement on hours of alcohol sale; and

review the policy on food and alcohol retailers outside the ClZ;

gather and assess the evidence necessary for a review of the policy as
above in particular the evidence for inclusion of further areas into the ClIZ



2.1

2.2

2.3

24

and that officers report back to this committee with a detailed report and
amended policy proposal for approval by the committee with a view to
commencement of the statutory consultation process

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That Committee resolve to confirm the current Cumulative Impact Area
(CIA) and Special Stress Area (SSA) as defined in the current SoLP and to
continue to adopt the special policy in relation to that CIA and SSA and to
continue to include these within the current statement of licensing policy.

To note the review of the matrix in accordance with the recommendations of
Scrutiny Panel on Alcohol (paragraph 1.5). This new draft matrix is set out in
Appendix A.

Officers to continue to carry out work to review the SoLP (set out in
Appendix B) to incorporate emerging policy issues such as Sensible on
Strength and off licences, and advice from Director of Public Health, Public
Health England and the Local Government Association.

Officers to report back to March 2015 Committee with an updated draft
SoLP for statutory and public consultation.

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY
EVENTS:

3.1

3.2

3.3

Guidance states that there should be an evidential basis for the decision to
include a special policy within the Statement of Licensing Policy (SoLP).
For instance, Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnerships may have collated
information which demonstrates cumulative impact or Environmental Health
Departments may be able to show concentrations of valid complaints
relating to noise disturbance.

National Guidance states at 13.28: the steps to be followed in considering

whether to adopt a special policy within the statement of licensing policy are

summarised below:—

* |dentify concern about crime & disorder or public nuisance

» Consider whether there is good evidence that crime & disorder or public
nuisance are happening and are caused by the customers of licensed
premises, or that the risk of cumulative impact is imminent

» |dentify the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring

» Consult with those specified in section 5(3) of the 2003 Act, and subject
to the outcome of the consultation

* Include and publish details of special policy in licensing policy statement.

The Licensing Authority should ensure that there is good evidence, not only
that crime and disorder or public nuisance are happening, but that they are
caused by customers of licensed premises. The borders defined then need
to identify the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring — not
where they might occur at some time in the future, unless that is imminent.



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Sussex Police recommend that the CIZ and SSA are retained in their
current form. This position is supported by the Council’'s Environmental
Health Officers dealing with pollution, prevention and minimisation.
Evidence shows that the Special Policy has been successful as incidents of
alcohol related crime and disorder and nuisance have decreased since
2011. Appendix C is the Sussex Police Review of Licensing in Brighton and
Hove — August 2013 to August 2014. Public Health and Community Safety
Team analysis maps including mapping of licensed premises, alcohol
related crime, noise and treatment centres are shown in Appendix F.

The Council’'s Environmental Health and Licensing section provides an
advice and enforcement service in respect of noise nuisance from
commercial premises. The report on noise in the city centre is appended
(Appendix D).

Revisions to the Matrix:

The matrix approach provides a vision of what the licensing authority would
like to see within its area and gives an indication of likelihood of success or
otherwise to investors and local businesses making applications. It is a
mechanism for the locally accountable licensing authority to shape its local
area and address public, social policy issues. It balances the need for
protection for local residents against the interests of the local economy,
local employment and potential investors. The matrix does not apply to
existing premises just new/variations. It is a framework and each panel must
consider each application on merit, including location and type of
premises/activities.

Officers suggest remove mixed commercial and residential, residential and
marina areas, leaving four categories instead: ClZ, SSA, Outside City
Centre and Marina (see revised Matrix at appendix A). To expand the
narrative/rationale for the matrix to ensure a more defendable robust
approach, including exceptional circumstances and densely residential
areas. To remove the High Volume Vertical Drinking (super pub) category
within Matrix. To add terminal time of 11pm for Members Clubs in CIZ. To
add Café Bars to the Matrix.

Review SoLP para 4.7 & 4.8 as confusing and contrary to Matrix times.
Suggest removing times in 4.7 and remove 4.8.

Off licences. We have seen considerable success with the Sensible on
Strength scheme where off licences voluntarily sign up not to sell the cheap
superstrength beers and ciders. Positive feedback from alcohol treatment
centres, where 80% of the high profile street drinkers have moved to lower
ABV and more clients are engaging with rehab treatment centres, as well as
breaking up hot spots drinking areas.

Dr Tim Worthley's quote

“As the Lead GP at Brighton Homeless Healthcare | care for many of the most chaotic,
entrenched, and visible street drinkers. We strive to combat the problems of severe alcohol



3.9

dependence on the individual and on the community, but this is unfortunately a battle we
often lose. Despite our best efforts, a significant number of our patients die young each
year due to alcohol dependence. | am certain that the recent Sensible on Strength
campaign has made a significant difference to many of my patients. | am consistently told
by my patients that it is much harder to obtain high strength lager and cider. As a result
many of them now drink lower strength alcohol. This has reduced their number of seizures,
reduced their confusional state, and improved their liver function. They are easier to
engage with, and are now more able to access general medical care as well as care
specific to their alcohol dependence.

In my professional opinion Sensible on Strength has been one of the most significant public
health measures in Brighton in recent times and | strongly endorse it. | would also take
strong issue with any recent reporting to the contrary, and would argue that such articles
are misleading to the community and damaging to the health of some of our most
vulnerable citizens.”

Kristy Tanner, Community Charge Nurse, Community Alcohol Team,
Substance Misuse Service, NHS Sussex Partnership Trust.

“I have noticed people reporting in assessment in the relapse prevention group that they
are finding it harder to purchase super strength alcohol round the city and having to go
further a field i.e. Portslade to find shops that sell it. They have mentioned that as some of
them are unwell they can not travel any distance to buy super strength and therefore
drinking at lower strength levels. | have had 2 clients recently stating they are buying super
strength in Portslade.”

However, we have seen some of the problems pushed out from the city
centre. Consideration to be given to the inclusion of the following
paragraph(s) into the SoLP.

a) Over recent years problems associated with street drinking have been
experienced across the city but particularly in the town centre, on the
promenade, the beach and public parks & gardens. While there are some
areas with recurring problems with regard to street drinking groups they
also crop up in different areas at different times. These individuals and
the shops that supply them can be a focus of antisocial behaviour, disorder
and disturbance. The supply of alcohol to individuals involved in the day-
long consumption of alcohol on the street and in open spaces can directly
lead to these groups of drinkers causing various types of crime, public
nuisance and anti-social behaviour.

b) Pre-loading and post-loading, the sale of alcohol to people who consume it
on the way to or from venues licensed for the consumption of alcohol on
the premises, gives rise to problems of drunkenness and disorderly
behaviour. The proliferation of stores selling alcohol for consumption off
the premises is of concern if it leads to drinking on the streets or alcohol
being carried into premises such as pubs and nightclubs. The council is
concerned that alcohol loading from off-licence sales is a significant
problem in the town and adversely affects the licensing objectives.

c) Where the police or others make representations against the grant of a
further licence for off sales, because of their serious concerns over any of
the problems listed above and the disorder associated with the off sale of
alcohol in the area, the council will give specific consideration to restricting
the number, type, and the hours of premises selling alcohol exclusively for
consumption off the premises. The council will want to be assured that the
Operating Schedule of premises, and their overall management, training
and levels of staffing, are appropriate to ensure that the licensing
objectives are promoted in what may be challenging circumstances. The

10



3.10

4.1

5.1

earliest and latest hours of opening will be of particular concern. This is
because problematic street drinkers and others who are seriously addicted
to alcohol, may be drawn to shops that sell alcohol earlier in the morning
and later in the evening than other premises and consequently create
public nuisance. Where there are representations on problems of disorder,
the hours when alcohol may be sold for consumption off the premises may
be conditioned to be less than the generally granted hours issued to public
houses and restaurants in the area.

Public Health: Policy Statement

Officers considered John Guzek, Public Health Intelligence Analyst survey,
Safe & Well at School Survey 2013, which looks at the data on protecting
children from harm, and noted that 35% of 14-16 year old publics reported
that they drink with the sole purpose of getting drunk, and the figure is
slightly higher for girls, with spirits being the most common alcohol choice
among 11-16 year olds.

Police TP and intelligence suggests a bigger problem than first thought.
Licensing Team working with police to promote fake ID poster campaign
and advise about under age. Those premises found to sell to underage after
an advice visit will be subject to Review and team will be asked to support
this by confirming we had given previous advice. The Licensing Team are
also hoping to link in with schools and six form colleges to promote dangers
of underage drinking.

CONSULTATION

Consultation involved the Licensing Strategy Group which includes businesses
via City Centre and Hove Business Fora, Police, Tourism, Events Office, Seafront
Office (including Seafront Trader Association), Trading Standards, Legal and
Finance, residents via residents associations and Community Associations. If
members were minded to change the statement of licensing policy, officers
should undertake the statutory consultation exercise outlined in Section 5 of the
Act and Full Council alone can exercise the function of revising the authority’s

policy.
FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

Financial Implications:

The costs associated to the recommendations in this report are allowable under
the Licensing Act 2003 and therefore funded by licence fee income; any variation
between expenditure and income generated from licence fees is funded from
existing revenue budgets. Licence fees are set by central government. The
recommendations in this report would only affect new applications and variations
to existing premises licenses, and is not expected to impact on current levels of
income from renewals of applications.

Finance Officer Consulted: Steven Bedford Date: 21/10/2014

Leqgal Implications:

11



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

These are set out in the report. The SoLP should follow the fundamental
principles set out in the Licensing Act 2003 and statutory guidance. Adoption
or revision of a Special Cumulative Impact Policy is a major step and one
which must be taken in accordance with proper procedure and legal advice in
order to avoid legal challenge.

Lawyer Consulted: Rebecca Sidell Date: 21/10/2014

Equalities Implications:

A rebuttal presumption against new licensed premises in a CIA may reduce the
ability for small businesses to open as off-licences. Affected businesses may
often be operated by members of minority ethnic groups.

Sustainability Implications:

Licensed premises throughout the city rely on local licensing policies in ensuring
there is clear guidance on the continued operation of local businesses.
Maintaining a regularly reviewed policy, which has undergone public consultation,
will ensure a consistency of support to licensed premises, members of the public
and other stakeholders affected by these activities.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

CIA proposals are geographically based around evidence of crime and disorder,
etc. and should assist in the council’s overall aim in reducing current levels. The
Special Policy promotes the four licensing objectives: public safety, the
prevention of crime and disorder, the prevention of public nuisance and the
protection of children from harm.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

Failure to meet this statutory duty would lead to uncertainties in decision making,
loss of business continuity and an inability to meet customer care standards.

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

The policy promotes the licensing objectives and sets out a general approach to
making licensing decisions. The licensing authority must carry out its functions
with a view to promoting the licensing objectives and this Special Policy is framed
around those objectives.

Proposals for new licensed premises, or for certain variations to existing
ones, within a CIA wil normally be refused following relevant
representations unless it can be demonstrated that there will be no negative
cumulative impact.

12



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices:
Appendix A —
Appendix B —
Appendix C —
Appendix D -
Appendix E -

Appendix F -

—5.‘0.00.\‘.0‘5".-#.‘”!\’.—

w N

Proposed Matrix Approach

Updated Statement of Licensing Policy

Sussex Police Summary Review

Environmental Health — noise complaints regarding licensed premises
(to follow)

Public Health Framework for Assessing Alcohol Licensing Annual
Report

Public Health and Community Safety Team analysis maps:

All Alcohol Licences 2014 — CIZ/SSA and citywide

All Alcohol Licences 2011 — CIZ/SSA and citywide

Off-sale Only Licensed Premises 2014 — CIZ/SSA and citywide
Off-sale Only Licensed Premises 201 | — CIZ/SSA and citywide
All Alcohol Licences 2014 — CIZ/SSA

2010/1'1 and 2013/14 noise maps

Police Recorded Violent Crime Hotspot 2014-15

Police Recorded Alcohol Related incidents 2013-14

Police Recorded Violent Crime Hotspot 2010-1 |

. Police Recorded Alcohol Related incidents 2009-10
. Treatment Centres (band 2 & 3 Accommodation), off licences & SoS

2014

. Number of alcohol related ambulance call-outs in 2013-14
. Number of off-licences per ward, also showing treatment centres and

band 2 and 3 accommodation

Documents in Members’ Rooms:

None.

Background Documents:

None.

13



14



Appendix A

Proposed Matrix Approach

2.7

2.71

The Licensing Authority will support:

Diversity of premises: ensures that there is a mix of the different types
of licensed premises and attracts a more diverse range of customers
from different age groups, different communities and with different
attitudes to alcohol consumption. It gives potential for positively
changing the ambience of the city or an area of it. This will have a
positive effect in reducing people’s fear of crime and in increasing the
number of evening visitors to the city centre. The Community Safety
Strategy recognises that too many single uses in a confined area and
patrons turning out onto the streets at the same time may create
opportunities for violent crime and public disorder and therefore
supports: mixed use venues encouraging a wider age balance.

2.7.2 A “matrix” approach to licensing decisions has been adopted and is set

out below. It provides a framework of what the licensing authority would
like to see within its area and gives an indication of the likelihood of
success or otherwise to investor and businesses making applications.

Matrix approach for licensing decisions in a Statement of Licensing Policy

Cumulative | Special Outside the | Marina
Impact Area | Stress Area | City Centre
Restaurant | Yes Yes (2am) Yes Yes
(midnight) (midnight)
Café bar Yes Yes Yes Yes
(11.30pm) (midnight) (midnight)
Late Night | No Yes Yes Yes
Takeaways (midnight) (midnight)
Night Club | No No No Yes
Pub Yes (11pm) | Yes (11pm) | Yes Yes
(midnight)
Non- Yes Yes Yes Yes
alcohol (favourable) | (favourable) | (favourable)
lead (e.g.
Theatre)
Off-licence | No No Yes
(generally to
11pm but if in

15




densely

residential

area may be

earlier — see

note 7 below)
Members | Yes (<100) | Yes (<100) | Yes Yes
Club (club | (11pm) (11pm)
premises
certificate)

Notes on matrix

Subject to the following notes, the types of premises and hours of operation,
as represented in the matrix, will be strictly adhered to

1)
2)

3)
4)

5)

7)

Each application will be considered on individual merit

Applications within the CIZ are subject to the special policy on cumulative
impact at para xx, and those within the special stress area to the special
stress policy considerations at para xx.

Departure from the matrix policy is expected only in exceptional
circumstances

Exceptional circumstances will not include quality of management or size
of venue except where explicitly stated in policy matrix.

Exceptional circumstances may include: close consultation with Sussex
Police and the Licensing Authority, meeting requirements of responsible
authorities, an appropriate corporate social responsibility policy,
community contribution to off set impact (such as financial contribution to
infrastructure), community support, alcohol sale ancillary business activity
(demonstrable to responsible authorities and licensing authority, for
instance by licence condition allowing authorised officers access to sales
accounts), BCRP membership

The following licensing activities are encouraged and valued by the
licensing authority: outdoor regulated entertainment, community based
street parties, members clubs, traditional pubs outside the city centre and
non-alcohol led licensable activities, particularly within city centre.

Outside the city centre consideration will be given to the nature of the
area and location in relation to any application. In a densely residential
area for example the concerns of local residents will be relevant when
considering applications for off-licences, pubs or café bars, especially if
there is evidence of anti-social behaviour, street drinking or underage
drinking. Earlier closing times may be appropriate. Regard will/may be
had to the Public Health Framework for assessing alcohol licensing which
can be accessed from the following link (see appendix E):

In an area where there are already several existing off-licences and where
representations are received about negative cumulative impact on the
licensing objectives of a further premises, the application may be refused
on these grounds.

16



8) Outdoor events will be supported where arranged through the council’s
event planning process.

17



18



Appendix B Updated Statement of Licensing Policy -~ { Formatted: Font: Arial, 14 pt,Bold |

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 2011

alchlh

Brighton & Hove
City Council

LICENSING ACT 2003

19



Brighton & Hove City Council: Statement of Licensing Policy 2011

CONTENTS

1 Introduction

1.3  Scope of policy

1.4  Consultation

1.6  Partnership

1.7  Local features

1.8  Culture and Tourism

1.9 Arts

1.10 Planning context

1.11  Crime and fear of crime

1.12  Alcohol

1.14 Delegations

1.20 Human Rights

1.21 EU Services Directives

1.22 Health Impact Assessment

2 Prevention of Crime and Disorder
2.1 Management responsibilities
2.2  Designated Premises Supervisor
2.3  S172A-E of Licensing Act 2003
2.5  Operation Marble

2.6

2.7

Cumulative impact, special policy and special stress areas
2.6.16 Sussex Police

Diversity of premises and matrix approach

2.7.14 Adult entertainment

2.7.18 Health impact assessment

20

Page

© 0 00 N N O o »

©

10/11
12
12
12

13
13
13
13
13/15
16/18
18/20
22
23



2.8

3.1
3.2
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.7
4.8
4.9
4.10
411
412

5.1
5.2
53
54
5.5
5.6
5.7
5.8
5.9

Alcohol disorder zones

Public Safety
Safer Clubbing
Conditions
Night-time transport
Taxi marshalling
Large events
Safety meetings

Prevention of Public Nuisance
Planning and Building Control
Location and type of premises
Amplified or live music

Sound limiting equipment
Regulated entertainment in open air
Nuisance

Residential/mixed neighbourhoods
Customers outside

Smoking advice

Signage

Health Impact Assessment recommendations

Protection of Children from Harm
Identification

Under-age sales

Measures to protect

Access by children

Film classifications

Adult supervision

Reducing alcohol related harm to children
Best practice to protect children from harm
Health Impact Assessmentrecommendations

21

23

23
24
24
24
24
24

25
25
25
25
25
25/26
26
26
26/27
27
27

28
28
28
29
29
29
29/30
30
31



6

6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6
6.7
6.8
6.9

7.

7.1
7.2
7.3

8.
8.1
8.2

9
9.1
9.2

Integration of Strategies
Liaison and consultation
Equalities

Tourism strategy
Employment

Crime prevention
Dispersal

Planning

Other regulatory regimes

Enforcement

Live Music, Dancing & Theatre
Impact
Community interests

Mixed use areas

Reviews
Possible actions
Community safety

Contact Details, Advice and Guidance
Licensing Authority
Police, Fire Authority & others

APPENDIX A — Cumulative Impact Zone
APPENDIX B — Special Stress Area
APPENDIX C — Special Stress Area: Potential Measures

- Areas of best practice in licensed premises

APPENDIX D — Best practice — dispersal policy

APPENDIX E - Licensing Enforcement policy
APPENDIX F — Film classification
APPENDIX G — Licensing Enforcement Pathway

4

22

31
31
32
32
32
32
32
32/34
34

34
34
35

35
35

35
35/6

37
39
41
42
43/45
46/58
59
62



APPENDIX H — Lead Agency Status

23

64



Brighton & Hove City Council: Statement of Licensing Policy

1 Introduction

1.1

1.2

1.3

This Statement of Licensing Policy has been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) and having regard to Guidance
issued by the Bepartmentior Culture- Media-and-Spert{BCMS)-Home Office under
Section 182 of the act. The licensing authority is Brighton & Hove City Council.
The purpose of this statement is to promote the licensing objectives and set out a
general approach to making licensing decisions. The discretion of the licensing
authority in relation to applications under the act is only engaged if ‘relevant
representations’ are made by interested-parties- other persons or responsible
authorities. This policy will inform the approach to be taken when deciding
applications and imposing conditions when relevant representations are received.
Itis also intended as a guide for applicants as to what to include in their operating
schedules, always recognising that if no representations are received, the
application must be granted. The licensing authority must carry out its functions
with a view to promoting the licensing objectives and this policy is framed around
those objectives. Each application will be given individual consideration on its
merit. The scope of thispPpolicy covers the following:

¢ Retail sales of alcohol;

e The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or to the order of, a

member of the club;
e The provision of regulated entertainment;
e The provision of late night refreshment.

The licensing objectives are:
(a) the prevention of crime and disorder;
(b) public safety;
(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and
(d) the protection of children from harm.

Scope

Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, by
qualifying clubs and at temporary events. Any conditions attached to various
authorisations will be focused on matters which are within the control of individual
licensees and others with relevant authorisations; i.e the premises and its vicinity.

Consultation

Before revising or determining policy for any fivethree-year period, the licensing
authority must consult:

(a) the chief officer of police for the licensing authority area;

(b) the fire authority for that area;

(c) the Director of Public Health

24



(de) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of
holders of premises licences issued by that authority;

(ed) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of
holders of club premises certificates issued by the authority;

(fe) such persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative of
holders of personal licences issued by that authority; and

(fg) such other persons as the licensing authority considers to be representative
of businesses and residents in its area.

1.4.2 In relation to this, its third statement of licensing policy, the licensing authority has { comment [SC1]: Update to fourth

also chosen to consult the following persons or bodies:

The Licensing Strategy Group

Sussex Ambulance Service

Accident & Emergency Services

Brighton & Hove Bus and Coach Company

Taxi Forum

The council’s Transport Planning, Planning Policy, Community Safety,

Tourism, Drug & Alcohol Awareness and Economic Development

departments

e Ward Councillors

e Individual premises and personal licence holders and club premises
certificate holders

e Residents’ Associations

o Generally via the licensing pages of the council’s website and also via the
council’'s Consultation Portal.

Appropriate weight was given to the views of all of those who responded. The
formal consultation process was completed by adoption of this policy by Full

Council on 16 December 2010. This policy is subject to Guidance and - comment [sC2]: Update date

Regulations issued by the government including any issued after the date of
publication of this statement.

1.5 Each application will be given individual consideration on its merit. Nothing in
this policy shall undermine the right of any individual to apply under the terms of
the act for a variety of permissions and to have any such application considered
on its individual merits. Similarly, nothing in this policy shall override the right of
any person to make representations on an application or seek a review of a
licence or certificate where provision has been made for them to do so in the act.

1.6  Partnership
1.6.1 The policy recognises the need to balance economic prosperity with community
protection. Good regulation at a local level provides fair trading conditions. This

creates a fair trading environment, discourages irresponsible practices and
promotes community well being. Local regulation is attuned to supporting the

25



1.6.2

1.7

1.71

1.8

1.8.1

1.8.2

1.8.3

1.8.4

1.8.5

local economy and local businesses. Partnership between responsible
authorities reduces conflict between agencies and targets resources.

This policy includes the council’s enforcement policy, in turn, based upon Home
Office and-BEMS-advice.

Local features

The local visitor economy is characterised by three sectors: conferences, leisure
and English language education. The city receives 8 million visitors per year,

20% from oversees. Locally, tourism is worth over £400 million and 10,000 jobs.
15-20% of jobs are tourism related.

In 2008, the local economy was estimated to be worth £4.2 billion.

Unemployment was at 7%, higher than the regional average of 5%. 19% of
people were self-employed. The number of young people not in education,
employment or training is high. \

Culture and Tourism

Licensing policy supports entrepreneurial activity, promoting the city’s
businesses, supporting growth of creative industries sector, extending the
business improvement district.

The cultural and tourism offer in Brighton & Hove is crucial to the ongoing
economic success of the city; it brings both money and jobs. This range of work
also provides solutions to some of the problems of inequality in the city.

The city’s cultural offer already engages with a high number of its residents.
According to the most recent National Indicator surveys undertaken at the end of
2008, well over half the population engage with the arts and just over half with
our museum and library services. The footfall figures for our main central Jubilee
Library run into the millions over the course of a year. The Brighton Dome
programme reaches one in six households currently and around 70% of the
Brighton Festival audience each year is from local BN postcodes. However,

there is much more that can be done, there are challenges and a need to create

further targeted activity to stretch this success.

This sector also faces challenges from the recession at the point of refreshing
this strategy and needs to be forward looking in order to position itself to help the
city weather and recover from the economic downturn,
Brighton & Hove faces increasing competition from home and abroad as a tourist
destination both in the leisure and business tourism markets. The current
economic climate, changing patterns of consumer demand, and a need to invest
in infrastructure to maintain a suitable quality are significant challenges.

26

- { Comment [SC3]: Update?

- [ Comment [SC4]: Update?

[ Comment [SC5]: Update?

- [ Comment [SC6]: Remove?

[ Comment [SC7]: Remove?




1.8.6 VisitBrighton, the council’s tourism unit, has developed and implemented a full
brand strategy and guidelines for the city’s tourism offering.

1.8.7 The Tourism Strategy 2008-2018 in its Guiding Principles looks at responsible
behaviour and aims to “look to maintain the balance between a tolerant attitude,
for which the city is well known, and encouraging and welcoming appropriate
behaviour especially in the evening by both residents and businesses”.

1.9 Arts

| .9.21.9.1 It established a new and successful Children’s Festival for the city aimed - { Comment [sc8]: ?

at Key Stage 1 & 2, providing free events and activities and workshops across
the city.

| 1.9:31.9.2  Brighton & Hove has taken a leading role in the national consortium, the
Cultural Cities Network.

| .9.41.9.3  The city’s cultural offer has grown through new festivals, venues and
organisations developing in or moving to the city.

| 495194 The city has the highest level of current arts engagement outside London
and the seventh highest out of 150 in the country at 61.2%. Brighton & Hove is
known for its colourful and interesting arts and creative industries which attract
tourism and new businesses. About one in five businesses and 10% of jobs are

in the arts or creative industries. __ { comment [sC9]: Up to date?

| 1.9.61.9.5  The city currently hosts around 60 festivals each year including the largest
arts festival in England, the Brighton Festival and its Fringe, which contributes
annually £20 million to our economy

1.10 The Planning Context

and licensing. Current adopted policies within the Brighton & Hove Local Plan
recognise these concerns and make provision for the protection of public amenity
(policy QD27), whilst also addressing the issues in relation to cumulative impact
from a concentration of nightclubs, bars and pubs in particular areas (policies
SR12 and SR13).

1.10.2 Emerging policy within the Local Development Framework Document, The Core
Strategy is underpinned by evidence from the Community Safety, Crime and

27



Drugs Audit 2004 which informed the strategic approach. This was developed in
consultation with the Licensing Team. The overall objective is to reinforce
Brighton & Hove’s policy (SA2) is to promote a balanced range of complementary
evening and night-time economy uses which appeal to a wide range of age and
social groups, avoid a spread of large bars/pubs and night clubs and address
public safety concerns.

1.10.3 Where appropriate, when considering planning applications within the above
policy framework, planning conditions can be attached to permissions to
safeguard amenity and mitigate against cumulative impact.

1.10.4 fThe licensing authority’s preferred position is to ensure planning permission is in
place before an application for a licence is made.L

1.11 Crime and fear of crime

Hove were asked to pick five aspects of a local area that make it a good place to
live. Out of 20 choices, 55% of respondents ranked the level of crime in their top
five aspects which made somewhere a good place to live. So, crime levels were
the most frequently flagged issue of importance (as it was in 2003 and in 2006).

1.11.2 What has happened over the last three years

e The level of recorded crimes (around 24,500 each year) has remained stable
since 2005 and is the lowest it has been for 10 years.

e Partners have achieved Beacon Status for our work in increasing safety in the
night time economy and achieved a Green Flag in the Comprehensive Area
Assessment for the strength of the partnership around this and reducing
youth crime and disorder. Injury by violent crime is down by 7.8% and at its
lowest level for five years. The Business Crime Reduction Partnership’s
Night Safe Scheme is considered good practice and strongly supported.

e A new Community, Crime Reduction and Drugs Strategy for 2008-2011 has
been published which includes our action plans to deal with 10 priority crime
areas.

o Exceeded challenging targets set within the LPSA programme for reducing
offending by priority and prolific offenders.

1.12 Alcohol

1.12.1 Pubs and clubs play an important role in our city's culture and economy but
alcohol is a factor in at least 40% of violent crime.

1.12.2 Following development work with the Primary Care Trust and Sussex Partnership
Trust and building on new investment by the PCT in alcohol treatment services,
partners have gained agreement for those new services to be initially targeted
towards those whose offending behaviour is linked to alcohol misuse. The top

10

28

Comment [SC11]: Amend/Update?
See 9.44, 13.56 & 13.57 of HO
Guidance

- { Comment [SC12]: Has there been a

more recent survey?

|

- { comment [SC13]: Update

[ Comment [SC14]: Up to date?




priorities are perpetrators of domestic violence, prolific offending and violent

in order that criminal justice and other CDRP services can successfully refer and - { Comment [sC15]: ? )

help sustain people to engage and change their lives. The Licensing
Enforcement Pathway is appended (appendix G). Public-health-standseouiside

eﬂyis—pabh&sewees\ ~_ -~ | Comment [SC16]: Remove para or
””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” update?

M/ here a local authority’s Director of Public Health exercises its functionsasa - - - { Formatted: Font: 11 pt, Font color: J

responsible authority, it should have sufficient knowledge of the licensing policy and S | Black

health issues to ensure it is able to fulfil those functions. If the authority wishes to make {Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.25 cm ]

representations, the DPH will need to decide how best to gather and coordinate
evidence from other bodies which exercise health functions in the area, such as
emergency departments and ambulance services. Health bodies may hold information
which other responsible authorities do not, but which would assist a licensing authority in
exercising its functions. This information may be used by the health body to make
representations in its own right or to support representations by other responsible
authorities, such as the police. Such representations can potentially be made on the

grounds of all four licensing objectives | -/ Comment [SC17]: Add para? (from
3 Guidance 9.20 & 9.21)

~
~

1.12.3 In 2009/10* there were 5,029 hospital inpatient admissions for alcohol-related {g&fg‘:at‘ed: Font: 11 pt, Font color: J
harm of Brighton & Hove residents, a rate of 1,842 per 100,000 population which
is higher than the rate in England. This was a 3% reduction on the previous year
but prior to that, admissions had been increasing at a rate of 15% per year,
compared with 8% nationally, and the number of admissions per year is still more
than double the number in 2003/04. ~ { comment [sc18]: Update? )

1.12.4 Central Brighton and particularly the West Street area have been identified as a
violent crime hotspot. Through effective coordination of relevant strategies and
policy areas (eg licensing, policing and public safety), the council will seek to
improve safety by encouraging a more balanced range of complementary
evening and night-time economy uses which appeal to a wide range of age and
social groups and managing existing late night uses within identified parts of
central Brighton. Local work to reduce violent crime is coordinated through the
Local Public Service Agreement / Violent Crime Action Plan. In addition, a
‘Cumulative Impact Zone’ within central Brighton has been adopted by the
council’s Licensing Committee and grants greater powers to control the number
of licensed premises in the city centre.

1.12.5 Brighton & Hove scores significantly worse than the England average for a range
of indicators that profile alcohol related harm.

1.12.6 For males, alcohol specific mortality, mortality from chronic liver disease, alcohol
specific hospital admissions and alcohol attributable hospital admissions are all
significantly worse locally than the picture seen nationally.

11

29



1.12.7 For women, alcohol specific and alcohol attributable hospital admissions are
worse locally than the picture seen nationally.

1.13 The statement of licensing policy will be integrated with the Local Strategic
Partnership’s Transport policies.

1.14 Delegations

For convenience, the national scheme of delegation for determinations is set out

below.
Matter to be dealt with Full Licensing Sub-committee Officers
Committee

Application for personal licence If a police objection If no relevant
representation made

Application for personal licence If a police objection

with unspent convictions

Application for premises If discretion If a relevant If no relevant

licence/club premises certificate engaged for major | representation made | representation made

applications

Application for provisional If a relevant If no relevant

statement representation made | representation made

Application to vary premises If a relevant If no relevant

licence/club premises certificate representation made | representation made

Application to vary designated If a police objection All other cases

premises supervisor

Request to be removed as All cases

designated personal licence

holder

Application for transfer of If a police objection All other cases

premises licence

Application for interim authorities If a police objection All other cases

Application to review premises All cases

licence/club premises certificate

Decision on whether a complaint All cases

is irrelevant, frivolous, vexatious,

etc.

Decision to object when local All cases

authority is a consultee and not

the relevant authority considering

the application

Determination of a police All cases

objection to a temporary event

notice

Policy decisions All cases

12

30




Minor variations Allcases _ - { comment [sC19]: Remove? )
Decision whether to consultother | [ | Allcases | - - { Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt |
responsible authorities on minor

variation application

Determination of minor variaton | [ | Allcases | - - - Formatted: Font: (Default) Arial, 10 pt |
application

1.15 In the case of minor variations, officers will refuse if they consider licensing

1.16

1.20

objectives will be compromised. A full variation application may then be
submitted.

The licensing authority shall foster ownership, co-ordination and partnership.
Delivery will involve the licensing authority, the planning authority, environmental
health and safety authorities, the police, the fire authority, crime and disorder
reduction partnerships, town centre managers, local business, performers and
their representatives, local people and their representatives, local transport
authorities, transport operators and those involved in child protection. Work shall
include consultation with entertainment and licensed business managers to
encourage understanding and ownership of policy and good practice.

The Licensing Strategy Group, Business Crime Reduction Partnership, Pub and
Club Watch, Door Supervisors Business Forum and similar schemes, for
instance with Home Office approval, will be encouraged to share information and
facilitate exclusion of troublemakers.

In order to promote tourism, favourable consideration will generally be given to
the licensing of public spaces.

The professional development and competence of licensing councillors will be
provided and maintained to support the need to act as a professional licensing
authority, meeting lawful standards of quasi judicial decision making.

Human Rights

The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European Convention on Human
Rights and makes it unlawful for a local authority to act in a way that is
incompatible with a Convention right. The licensing authority will have particular
regard to the following relevant provisions of the European Convention on
Human Rights:-

* Article 6 that in the determination of civil rights and obligations everyone is
entitled to a fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an
independent and impartial tribunal established by law.

« Article 8 that everyone has the right to respect for private and family life and
his home.

* Article 1 of the First Protocol that everyone is entitled to the peaceful
enjoyment of his possessions (including for example possession of a
licence).

13

31



1.21

1.22

2.0

2.1

2.2

EU Services Directive

The European Services Directive took effect from 28 December 2009. It aims to
ensure that licence applications and procedures are transparent and burdens on
business kept to a minimum. The processes must be non-discriminatory, justified,
proportionate, clear, objective, made in advance, transparent and accessible. The
domestic legislation will require “any charges provided for by a competent authority
which the applicant may incur under an authorisation scheme must be reasonable
and proportionate to the cost of the authorisation procedures and formalities under
the scheme and must not exceed those procedures and formalities”. Any fee
charged for establishing a service can only be based on cost recovery and cannot
be set at an artificial high level to deter service sectors from an area. Application
costs can include administration, initial visits, third party costs (eg expert advice
like a vet), management costs and local democracy costs. The directive also
requires that ongoing enforcement costs should be refundable in the event of an
application refusal. Council should schedule regular fee reviews.

During 2008/9, a Health Impact Assessment of flexible alcohol licensing hours in
Brighton & Hove was commissioned. That study drew upon a consultation with
people living and working in Brighton & Hove and a review of local data. It
considered the context for alcohol licensing in the city in the light of alcohol
misuse. The findings of this study have been integrated into this policy where they
relate to the licensing objectives.

Prevention of crime and disorder

The following details and measures are intended to address the need for the
prevention of crime and disorder which may be associated with licensed premises
and certificated club premises. Conditions attached to licences and certificates
will, as far as possible, reflect local crime reduction strategies.

The licensing authority acknowledges that training and good management play a
key part in preventing alcohol and drug related crime. The authority expects that
all licensees of on-licensed premises attend training programmes which will raise
their awareness of the issues relating to drugs and violence in licensed premises,
and that suitable training be extended to all bar staff and door supervisors so that
drug dealers and users will be deterred from using licensed premises for illegal
purposes and that incidents of violence in licensed premises will be reduced.
Licensees are also encouraged to attend training programmes to help identify
children at risk and issues of basic child protection. It is the duty of the designated
premises supervisor (DPS) to train staff on induction concerning conditions on
their premises licence.

It is expected that the DPS will spend a significant amount of time on the premises.
When not on the premises it will be essential that the DPS is contactable,

particularly should problems arise with the premises and that staff are authorised
by the DPS.

14

32



2.3 Curfew powers introduced by S172A to E of the Licensing Act 2003 once in force

willlbe used in areas of alcohol related offending to address disorder by early ~— { comment [sC20]: Insert ‘may

morning alcohol restriction order.

2.4 The location of violent attacks, anti-social behaviour and hate crime or related
incidents may be used to justify closing times.

2.5 Measures put in place should support the intentions of Operation Marble (police
operational order refers), which aims to prevent incidents of crime and disorder
within the night time economy, at weekends. Operation Marble operates with a
view to minimising the risk to the public of being a victim of public place violent
crime; to reduce incidents of violent crime and public disorder within the city
centre; to deal positively with offences and offenders; to secure and preserve
evidence which will assist in the prosecution of offenders and to support the night
time economy and the responsibly run businesses within it.

2.6 Cumulative impact - the licensing authority may receive representations from

either a responsible authority or an-interested-party-that the premises will give rise - { Comment [SC21]: Delete & replace

to a negative cumulative impact on one or more of the licensing objectives. This

with ‘other persons’

should not, however, be confused with ‘need’ which relates more to the
commercial demand for a particular type of premises. The issue of ‘need’ is
therefore a matter for the market to decide and can, in some circumstances, be a
matter for planning consideration; need therefore does not form part of this
licensing policy statement.

2.6.1 Special Policy - Cumulative Impact is defined as the potential impact upon the
promotion of the licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed premises
concentrated in one area.

2.6.2 The licensing authority, after careful consideration, has determined that the
concentration of licensed premises in an small-area of the city centre is causing
problems of crime and disorder and public nuisance, and that therefore an
approach to ‘Cumulative Impact’ is necessary as part of its statement of licensing
policy. The first Special Policy and Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) and Special
Stress Areas (SSA’s) were adopted in March 2008. Since that date, the licensing
authority has kept the CIZ and SSA’s under review with the proviso that should
the authority find that problems of crime and disorder or nuisance are not
improving , or are worsening, the Special Policy will be reviewed with a view to
bringing the SSA’s into the CIZ.

At Licensing Committee on 10 February 2011, committee called for a report on
the review of the licensing policy following consultation with ward councillors and
the police, reviewing evidence, having regard to resident concerns with a view to
possible inclusion of special stress areas in the CIZ. The merits of a matrix
approach to licensing decisions would also be explored. On 23 June 2011, the

15

33



26.3

264

2.6.5

2.6.6

26.7

26.8

2.6.9

Licensing Committee received a report and authorised officers to initiate
consultation regarding a review of the CIZ.

On 15 December 2011 Full Council resolved to expand the CIZ and the special
stress area. The new CIZ covers 1.5% of the administrative area of Brighton &

Hove City ‘COUHC"L _ - -| Comment [SC22]: Mention this review
”””””””””””””””””””””””””” of policy here?

This special policy will refer to a Cumulative Impact Zone (“the CIZ”) in the
Brighton city centre, a detailed plan of which is attached at Appendix A of the
Statement of Licensing Policy (SoLP).

The special policy will only be overridden in exceptional circumstances. The
effect of this special policy is that applications for new premises licences or club
premises certificates within the area, or variations which are likely to add to the
existing Cumulative Impact, will be refused following relevant representations.
This presumption can be rebutted by the applicant if they can show that their
application will have no negative Cumulative Impact.

Any variation application including Minor Variations will potentially come within
this special policy, including those for extensions of hours, subject always to an
applicant satisfying the authority that there will be no adverse effect on
Cumulative Impact.

This special policy also applies to all new premises licences and club premises
certificates, for example pubs, restaurants and take-away establishments. Off
licences also come within this policy as they can contribute to problems of street
drinking, proxy purchasing, dispersal issues, preloading and excessive drinking
and related disorder.

partiesof the need to make a relevant representation. If there are no - { Comment [SC23]: Delete and replace

””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” with ‘other persons’

representations, the licensing authority must grant the application in terms
consistent with the operating schedule submitted.

Furthermore, this special policy is not absolute. Upon receipt of a relevant
representation, the licensing authority will always consider the circumstances of
each case and whether there are exceptional circumstances to justify departing
from its special policy in the light of the individual circumstances of the case. If
an application is unlikely to add to the cumulative impact of the area, it may be
granted. The impact can be expected to be different for premises with different
styles and characteristics. For example, while a large nightclub or high capacity
public house might add to problems of cumulative impact, a small restaurant, pub
or theatre may be considered exceptional circumstances. In relation to this, the
licensing authority considers that it is more proportionate to look favourably upon
a pub wanting to open until 11pm or a restaurant until 12 midnight as it has
emerged from all the evidence and consultation responses that these types of

16

34



premises operating within these hours are unlikely to add to cumulative impact in
the area. The fact that a premises will be/is exceptionally well managed with a
well qualified applicant, or that there are no residential premises nearby, will not
be considered exceptional.

2.6.10 If the licensing authority decides that an application should be refused, it will still
need to show that the grant of the application would undermine the promotion of
one of the licensing objectives and that conditions would be ineffective in
preventing the problems involved.

2.6.11 Special Stress Area - Appendix B of the SoLP details the area of the Brighton city
centre which borders the Cumulative Impact zone at Appendix A and which is
deemed an area of special concern in terms of the levels of crime and disorder
and public nuisance experienced within it.

2.6.12 This Special Stress Area (SSA) is of concern to the licensing authority because
of the relatively high levels of crime and disorder and nuisance experienced
within it. The area will be kept under review.

2.6.13 New and varied applications for premises and club premises certificates within
the SSA will not be subject to the presumption of refusal, but operators will be
expected to pay special attention when drawing up their operating schedules and
to make positive proposals to ensure that their operation will not add to the
problems faced in these areas. Appendix C of the SoLP sets out a list of
potential measures the licensing authority considers may be appropriate. These
may be more or less appropriate depending upon the style of operation applied
for.

2.6.14 On receipt of any application in the SSA, where a relevant representation has
been made, the licensing authority will scrutinise the application carefully and will
look at the measures proposed in the operating schedules and compare them to
the measures set out in Appendix C. Where discretion has been engaged, those
applications which fall short may be refused or conditions applied to comply with
policy measures.

2.6.15 The Licensing Authority will keep the Cumulative Impact Zone and Special Stress
Area under review. Should the authority find that problems of crime and disorder
or nuisance are not improving, or are worsening, the Special Policy will be
reviewed.

2.6.16 Sussex Police
Review of Public Place Violent Crime in Brighton & Hove April 2010 to 31 March

2011. Executive Summary and Context.
The key points arising from the analysis are as follows:

17

35



= Overall Public Place Violent Crime has increased by 88 offences (3.9%) in
2010/11 compared with the previous year, due to a rise in each of the 3
subgroups

o Violence Against The Person +33 (1.7%)
o Sexual Offences +35 (44.9%)
o Robbery +20 (8.8%)

There were also reductions as follows:

o Total assaults resulting in injury - 6.7% (largely due to reductions within
the home)
o Assaults resulting in ABH within licensed premises - 15%

= The increase in Violence Against The Person has been due to a rise in Public
Order offences primarily, but with increases of 10 or more offences also seen in
Assault on a constable and Possession of a weapon. The main increases overall
in this subgroup have been on Beats 3 and 4, particularly within licensed
premises. Offences in a road location experienced a decrease compared with
2009/10.

= The increase in Sexual Offences is due primarily to a rise in Sexual assault on a
female aged 13 or over, with increases on Beat 3 being responsible. Offences in
licensed premises saw the greatest rise. This has been the subject of a press
campaign setting out what is unacceptable behaviour and the consequences
which may result.

= The rise in Robbery was due to increases in Personal Robbery, with Beat 3 again
seeing the highest rise. Offences on the Beach / Esplanade not only record the
volume of offences, but also saw the highest rise.

= The proportion of records with an entry in the field to indicate whether an incident
was perceived to be under the influence fell to 37% in 2010/11, making
identification of trends virtually impossible. (This is against the five year average
proportion of 62%). It is safer to rely of the Association of Chief Police Officers
data which suggests that alcohol is a factor in 50% of all violent crimes.

= The proportion of public place Violence Against The Person offences which were
flagged as a Domestic has risen in 2010/11 to 7.2%, against a proportion of 3.8%

in 2006/07.L Comment [SC24]: Do we want to keep
”””””””””””””””””””””””””””””””” this/update it?
Summary

The above adds weight to the theory that drinking habits and the social landscape have
been affected by the recession. Weekends in the city centre continue to offer a high

18

36



level of risk which is largely mitigated by the partnership measures in place, but the link
between place of purchase and impact is now often blurred by distance and time. Pre-
loading and public space drinking after the purchase of alcohol from off-licences,
creates new challenges within any acceptable walking distances of the city centre, and
this applies to the end of a night out when further purchases of food and alcohol are
made, as well as the start. The coverage for the policing operation during weekend
evenings (Operation Marble) has been extended slightly into Brunswick and Adelaide, in
recognition of some of the recent trends associated with new off-licences and hot food
outlets. The justification for this has been based upon community anecdotal evidence as
well as data; as was the case during partnership discussions leading to the proposed
expansion to the CIZ and SSA.

It is also useful to recognise that different forms of licensed premises currently present
differing levels of risk: in fact, the on-trade is often left to manage the consequential
impact of the new routines mentioned earlier. We experience a high level of cooperation
from a majority of the existing licence holders who know that they will be subjected to
increased scrutiny should intelligence demand it, but the affordability and availability of
alcohol as well as other cultural issues present an ongoing threat of harm. A
proportionate and balanced response by the partnership assists in managing that threat
while also supporting the local economy and social choice. The direction of travel for
violent crime reduction in the city is positive, but the viral spread of certain types of
premises associated with the current social, health and disorder challenges would
frustrate the measures put in place, and adversely affect the progress being made. The
police view is that an intelligent and proportionate solution would better enable us to
keep people safe and improve the quality of life for our communities.

We recognise the pressures that local businesses currently face and remain open to
ways in which we can support them as well as keeping people safe. At present there
are no clear incentives, other than punitive measures, for business excellence and trade
community engagement, and we are keen to explore opportunities as to how we might
promote this.

Simon Nelson
Chief Inspector - Brighton & Hove Police Operations Team

2.7  The Licensing Authority will support:

2.7.1 Diversity of premises: ensures that there is a mix of the different types of licensed
premises and attracts a more diverse range of customers from different age
groups, different communities and with different attitudes to alcohol consumption.
It gives potential for positively changing the ambience of the city or an area of it.
This will have a positive effect in reducing people’s fear of crime and in
increasing the number of evening visitors to the city centre. The Community
Safety Strategy recognises that too many single uses in a confined area and

19

37

~_ { comment [sC25]: Keep?




patrons turning out onto the streets at the same time may create opportunities for
violent crime and public disorder and therefore supports: mixed use venues

encouraging a wider age balance. A “matrix” approach to licensing decisions has
been adopted and is set out below.

Matrix approach for licensing decisions in a Statement of Licensing Policy

Cumulative Special Mixed Residential Marina
Impact Area | Stress Area | Commercial | Area (mainly

and residences in

aRnd London Residential street)
oad

Areas

(streets

containing

shopping

parades)

Restaurant | Yes Yes (2am) Yes Yes Yes

(midnight) (11.30pm)

Late Night | No Yes Yes Yes (midnight) | Yes

Takeaways (midnight) (midnight)

Night Club | No No Yes (3am) No Yes

Pub Yes (11pm) Yes (11pm) | Yes (3am) Yes (11pm, Yes

midnight
Friday and
Saturday)

HVVD No No No No Yes

(Super pub)

Non- Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

alcohol (favourable) (favourable) | (favourable)

lead (e.g.

Theatre)

Off-licence | No No No Yes (8pm) Local
shops
only

Members Yes (<100) Yes (<100) | Yes Yes (11pm Yes

Club and midnight

Friday and
Saturday)

Notes on matrix

20

38

- -| Comment [SC26]: See Appendix A for
proposals




Subject to the following, the policy, as represented in the matrix, would be strictly
adhered to

1) Each application would be considered on individual merit

2) Departure from policy is expected only in exceptional circumstances

3) Exceptional circumstances will not include quality of management or size of venue
except where explicitly stated in policy matrix

4) Exceptional circumstances may include: close consultation with Sussex Police and
the Licensing Authority, meeting requirements of responsible authorities, an
appropriate corporate social responsibility policy, community contribution to off set
impact (such as financial contribution to infrastructure), community support, alcohol
sale ancillary business activity (demonstrable to responsible authorities and
licensing authority, for instance by licence condition allowing authorised officers
access to sales accounts), BCRP membership

5) The following licensing activities are encouraged and valued by the licensing
authority: outdoor regulated entertainment, community based street parties,
members clubs, traditional pubs outside the city centre and non-alcohol led
licensable activities, particularly within city centre

6) Shatterproof drinking receptacles will normally be required by licence condition in
alcohol led establishments in the city centre

7) Outdoor events will be supported where arranged through the council’s event
planning process

8) Favourable consideration will be given to residential need

9) Favourable consideration will be given to local businesses properly engaged with

the local licensing authority and responsible authorities| - { comment [sC27]: Update?

2.7.2 Favourable consideration will be given to promoting the city’s cultural quarter, live
entertainment in pubs, food led operations, developing LGBT and other
communities of interest venues, particularly around St James’s Street, promoting
a family leisure area on the sea front with a more adult leisure centre at night.

2.7.3 Café Bars - the licensing authority may be prepared to look favourably upon an
application for the grant of a licence, subject to the following conditions that will
prevent the premises becoming a public house.

e The sale of intoxicating liquor and other beverages shall be waiter/waitress
service for consumption by persons seated at tables.

o Substantial food shall be available at all times. Licensees should be aware
that breach of such conditions is likely to lead to appropriate enforcement

action.
2.7.4 |Restaurants with outside service - the licensing authority will also consider __ | Comment [SC28]: Insert recognised
licati f ****** t *****t* iﬁit ****** t*t*** ***]**h *l’t”””’aT””ti”” Restaurant conditions here and have
applications from restaurants that request to serve alcohol to areas adjacent to or D3 fi s TRt ol G
immediately outside their premises. In addition to the above conditions for café service

bars, the licensing authority will require evidence that the applicants have an
agreement with the local authority to use the area as defined on a plan provided.
The following condition may also apply:

21

39



275

276

277

2.7.8

The sale and supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises shall be
restricted to an area licensed by the Local Authority for use of the public highway
as shown on the plan deposited and such area shall be defined by a physical
barrier acceptable to the licensing authority.

Geographical spread of licensed premises - spreading the siting of large venues
(those with a capacity in excess of 250 people) across the city reduces the
problems of dispersing large numbers of people leaving premises in close
proximity at the same time. Taxi and bus queues can be flash points for public
disorder and violence. A good geographical spread coupled with increased taxi
ranks and bus stops near venues reduces waiting time and the potential for crime
and disorder. Food led operations are promoted.

Care, control and supervision of premises: The Licensing authority supports
the Business Crime Reduction Partnership and other approved schemes. Where
appropriate, premises licence holders should be members of the BCRP for the
deterrence to violent crime that such membership provides. The BCRP
NightSafe radio scheme is normally expected as an operational requirement for
city centre bars, clubs and pubs and is an example of good practice in achieving
the aim of reducing crime and disorder and improving public safety. Well
managed pub-watch schemes provide information exchange between the
premises licence holders and responsible authorities that reduce and deter
violent crime and disorder. The council will support a responsible licensing
scheme.

The effective management and supervision of a venue is a key factor in reducing
crime and disorder, both within it and outside. The police will consider the
applicants, objecting to the application where appropriate. The police may
suggest crime prevention measures in relation to, for example, the internal layout
of the premises, closed-circuit television, help points, lighting and security staff.
The police may ask for conditions which support such measures to be imposed
when licensing applications are granted, eg type of licence, capacity, operating
hours restrictions.

Following the grant of a licence, the management and supervision of the
premises, in so far as it might impact on crime and disorder, will continue to be
monitored. Particular attention will be paid to any licensed premises where there
is evidence of criminal activity or any association with racist or homophobic
crime. The licensing authority will keep itself well briefed on the nature, location
and type of premises where alcohol related violence and disorder are occurring
so it can take full account of the facts and avoid exacerbating problems as
required by the Community Safety Strategy. Where licensed premises are found
to cause nuisance or be associated with disorder or unreasonable disturbance,
powers of revocation or the imposition of conditions may be considered.
Conditions may include use of closed-circuit television, licensed door supervisors
and earlier closing times. Such action to restrict the operation may be taken for

22

40



trial periods to allow businesses an opportunity to remedy existing disorder,
nuisance or disturbance.

2.7.9 This policy recognises the use of registered Door Supervisors as members of the
extended police family as all Door Supervisors will be licensed by the Security
Industries Authority. Mobile security units and similar systems are in use by
some premises operators as a means of providing security cover at very short
notice at premises which may not normally require a permanent security
presence. The Licensing Strategy Group has sought to define the standards and
operating guidance for such mobile units, which will be in need of regular review.
This policy endorses the use of units following such guidance and standards in
appropriate circumstances. A copy can be found on the licensing pages of the
council’s website.

2.7.10 The development of codes of practice and general operating standards for
security companies is encouraged for local businesses; premises operators are
urged to ensure that security services, when engaged, are provided by suitably
qualified businesses operating to recognised standards and who should be
working towards SIA accreditation.

2.7.11 High volume vertical drinking establishments (HVVD’s) may, where necessary
and appropriate, have conditions attached relating to: a prescribed capacity, the
ratio of chairs and tables to be provided for customers based on capacity and the
presence of SIA registered security teams.

2.7.12 Enforcement will be achieved by the enforcement policy appended (Appendix E).

2.7.13 Any enforcement checks will include outside drinking areas, looking particularly
at noise, and customer smoking areas.

2.7.14 Adult Entertainment
This relates to regulated entertainment such as the live performance of dance
which is for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member of the audience and
including exposure of breasts, genitals, urinary or excretory organs during the
entertainment. It could include, but may not be limited to, lap dancing, pole
dancing, table dancing, and strip tease. Premises which are classified as Sexual
Entertainment Venues (SEVs) will be dealt with under the council’s Sex
Establishment Policy 2010.

2.7.15 It is important that applicants state in their operating schedules whether adult
entertainment is going to be provided on an infrequent basis. If no such intention

is stated then the Licensing Authority will normally add a condition that there will
be no adult entertainment.

23

41



2.7.16 If applicants wish to provide adult entertainment, the Licensing Authority will have
particular regard to whether the premises are in the vicinity of:

residential accommodation;

schools and English Language Schools;

places of worship;

other premises where entertainment of a similar nature takes place;
community centres; and

youth clubs.

2.7.17 Where such applications are made, the licensing authority will expect operating
schedules to address the following matters and will include such conditions as
are necessary to promote the licensing objectives:

A. A code of conduct for dancers and appropriate disciplinary procedures,

developed in consultation with the police and the council.

B. Rules of conduct for customers, developed in consultation with the Police and

the council.

C. Procedures to ensure that all staff employed in the premises have pre-

employment checks including suitable proof of identity, age and (where
required) permission to work.

D. The exclusion of persons under 18 from the premises when such activities are

taking place.

2.7.18 Health Impact Assessment
The licensing authority’s response to this public consultation is as follows:

Schemes to recognise well managed licensed premises will be supported
Enforcement of licensing conditions, underage sales and offences will be
dealt with having regard to the enforcement policy appended

Trading Standards will offer business support to premises licence holders and
staff

Applications for food based operations will be supported

24-hour licences to off-licensed premises would be refused where justified
Ward Members and EHOs should make representations on behalf of
residents concerned for anonymity where appropriate

The licensing inspection programme will be prioritised and risk-based
Taxi-marshalling is supported

Diversification of the night-time economy in Brighton & Hove and non-alcohol-
related leisure activities available in the city is strongly supported.

42

_ -| Comment [SC29]: Has been repealed
SO remove




2.9

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Street drinking

fThe areas around the Level and New Road are-is considered high risk for street
drinkers and the Licensing Authority will have regard to prevention of crime and
disorder by virtue of street drinking and anti-social behaviour when considering

applications in this area.

Public Safety

The following details and measures are intended to address the need for the
protection of public safety which may be associated with licensed premises and
certificated club premises.

Club owners and promoters will be expected to have regard to “Safer Clubbing:
guidance for licensing authorities, club managers and promoters”. The licensing
authority will seek to ensure that licensed premises are designed and run in a
way which maximises the safety of customers and staff. In order to minimise
disputes and the necessity for hearings, it would be sensible for applicants to
consult with all responsible authorities when operating schedules are being
prepared.

Normally in the city centre, pubs and clubs will be expected to operate using
polycarbonate or toughened/shatterproof glass.

Conditions may be imposed in accordance with operating schedules to protect
public safety including where justified:

(a) provision of closed-circuit television and panic buttons.

(b) use of shatterproof drinking vessels; bottles requiring use of toughened
glass or plastic should normally be required unless applicants can show
exceptional reasons (recognised by Community Safety Strategy).

(c) use of door supervisors, licensed by the Security Industry Authority
(recognised by the Community Safety Strategy).

(d) requirement of a minimum of a licensed door supervisor for every 100
customers in nightclubs and large city centre pubs or as indicated by risk
assessment.

(e) occupant capacity conditions will be applied where appropriate.

(f) the provision of designated and suitably trained first aiders.

In determining applications for new licences or extensions in hours or terminal
hours of licensed premises, regard will be had to late night public transport
availability and location of taxi ranks to aid dispersal of customers as recognised
by the Community Safety Strategy and Policing Strategy. Applicants may be
required to consult local transport operators and are encouraged to support the
use of public transport through the provision of advice, contact details, provision
of dedicated taxi phones, etc.

25

43

Comment [SC30]: Add New Road as
an area of concern

|

1

Comment [SC31]: Add something
about ‘Sensible on Strength’

|




3.5

3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2

4.3

Policy recognises that the numbers of late night revellers can lead to service
delivery pinch-points, for example at city centre taxi ranks. Frustration and
restlessness in queues can lead to anti-social behaviour and public disorder
which can be controlled by, for example, taxi marshalling systems. Operators
whose customers contribute to the night-time demand for taxis may wish to
consider assisting in the provision of resources for such systems or similar
schemes.

Control of public safety at high profile commercial or sporting events or other
large scale events may be supported by police powers of closure of licensed
premises.

Where appropriate, licence holders or their authorised representatives will submit
event safety plans and operating manuals, attend Event Planning Teams or
Safety Advisory Groups and similar meetings prior to large events and shall be
part of Event Liaison Teams during such events. Due regard shall be had to
relevant guidance and publications including, for example: HSE publications
“Event Safety Guide” and “Managing Crowds Safely”; LACoRS publication —
“Managing Large Events”,

Prevention of Public Nuisance

The following details and measures are intended to address the need for the
prevention of public nuisance which may be associated with licensed premises
and certificated club premises.

Planning, building control and licensing will be properly separated to avoid
duplication and inefficiency. Granting of licences will not relieve applicants of the
need to apply for planning permission or building control consent and there is an
expectation that these issues will have been explored before licensing
applications are submitted. Applicants are recommended to obtain correct
planning consents prior to applying for a licence to avoid potentially inoperative
licences.

In determining applications for new and varied licences, regard will be had to the
location of premises, the type and construction of the building and the likelihood
of nuisance and disturbance to the amenity of nearby residents by reason of
noise from within the premises, as a result of people entering or leaving the
premises or from individuals or groups of customers gathered outside (eg in
order to smoke).

Applications for new licences or for the extension in size of licensed premises
should not normally be granted if the premises will use amplified or live music

and operate within or abutting premises containing residential accommodation
except that occupied by staff of the licensed premises. A condition may be

26

44

~ { comment [SC32): Update?




4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

imposed on new licences that entertainment noise shall be inaudible in any
residence. Noise emanating from within licensed premises should not normally
be audible outside.

Installation of sound limiting equipment and sound insulation may be required to
minimise disturbance to the amenity of nearby residents by reason of noise from
the licensed premises.

Generally, regulated entertainment in the open air including tents and marquees
should have a maximum closure hour of 2300. Earlier hours may be imposed in
sensitive open spaces or near residential areas. The Licensing Authority will
have regard to Noise Council guidance.

In determining applications for new licences or extensions in hours or terminal
hours of licensed premises, regard will be had to late night public transport
availability and location of taxi ranks to aid dispersal of customers.

Regard will be had to any history or likelihood of nuisance. Generally, favourable
consideration will be given to applications for later hours on busy main roads and
in the central leisure area. Powers may be exercised to impose conditions as to
hours of opening in order to avoid unreasonable disturbance to residents of the

neighbourhood. ki i i i i i i

matrix approach to licensing decisions (see 2.7.1).

While each application will always be considered on its merits, as an indication
the St James’s Street area and the North Laines/area will be considered
residential neighbourhoods, and East Street a mixed neighbourhood,
Reasonable controls are available to all premises operators to minimise the
impact of noise from customers outside. The council’s Environmental Health
Department has issued guidance on a number of steps that can be taken in this
respect which are endorsed by this policy (see 4.10 below).

Smoking Advice

Premises licence holders will be expected to:

e Develop a management plan on how to manage smoking on your premises
and ensure that all staff are aware of the contents of this plan, and that it is
effectively implemented. Noise from people smoking and talking can be
intermittent, vary in character and volume and be intrusive. An effective
smoking management plan will help prevent neighbours being disturbed.

e Comply with any planning conditions restricting the use of outdoor areas.

27

45

{ comment [SC33): Remove?

- [ Comment [SC34]: Remove?




4.1

412

Ensure that any structures used by smokers comply with the design criteria
detailed in the Heath Act 2006 and that any structures, awnings, retractable
canopies, etc have the relevant planning permission.

Ensure any new lighting to outdoor areas must be designed so as not to
cause a light nuisance to neighbours and again have the relevant planning
permission and building control consent.

Ensure that the conditions on the premises licence are complied with. There
may be conditions restricting the hours of use of gardens and outdoor areas.
Having reviewed the contents of the premises licence you may find it
necessary to request a variation of your licence.

Licence tables and chairs on the Public Highway under the provisions of the
Highways Act 1980. These licences may have conditions restricting the
times that the area can be used.

Ensure drinks, glasses and bottles are not taken onto the highway unless
there is a tables and chairs licence permitting use. A system should be
adopted to prevent theft and ‘spiking’ of drinks, and reminding customers not
to leave unattended items.

Discourage smokers remaining in gardens and outdoor areas and determine
terminal hours.

Discourage smokers remaining outside by removing/disabling tables and
chairs or prohibiting their use after a certain time. Lights and heaters will also
be turned off.

Introduce a system that after a certain time the number of smokers outside
are restricted to a maximum number. Staff will be needed to manage this
restriction.

Employ staff and/or SIA registered door supervisors to manage doors and
control customers and smokers entering and leaving the premises. Staff
positioned on the doors can help to encourage customers not to cause a
noise problem. It may be that staff are required to manage doors after a
certain time, particularly during the hours when neighbouring residents are
trying to sleep.

Ensure door supervisors maintain order outside venues and protect customer
safety. BCRP supports the use of Night Safe. Radio net and other pager
systems and pub watch schemes can be used to provide for rapid police
response and alert other venues where customers and staff are endangered.
Position signs to remind customers that the premises is in an area where
people live. It is not always obvious in busy commercial streets with flats
above. By changing the design and wording of signs customers do not
forget. Signs can be located in and outside the premises and on tables.

Use CCTV to manage outside areas.

Licensed premises should normally display prominent, legible signs at exits
reminding customers to leave in a quiet, peaceful, orderly manner.

Health Impact Assessment

28

46



5.1

The licensing authority’s response to this public consultation exercise is as

follows:

e There is no presumption in favour of later terminal hours generally

e Minor variations to licences will be processed expeditiously

e The Cumulative Impact Area (CIA) and Special Stress Areas (SSAs) will
include all locations where there are residents in the vicinity of licensed
premises when there is an evidential basis to justify

e Low-level impacts and noise levels as a result of alcohol consumption are
legitimate considerations for licensing reviews

¢ Information about the licensing process using leaflets and the Council’s
website will be available for residents

e The council will publicise its statement of licensing policy, enforcement policy
and information to assist applying for licence reviews and making
representations for licence applications

e The local character provided by small local public houses is recognised.
Policy supports the need to support small local businesses, providing
information and business support to assist successful businesses

e Policy recognises the need to mediate between residents and licensed
premises where noise and other nuisance/disturbance occurs late into the
night/early morning where appropriate. Enforcement action will have regard
to the council’'s enforcement policies

e Normally the terminal hour in residential areas will not exceed 2330 hours

e Normally the terminal hour in mixed areas will not exceed 0200 hours

¢ Normally in city centre leisure areas favourable consideration will be given to
later terminal hours.

Protection of Children from Harm

The following details and measures are intended to address the need for the
protection of children from harm; this includes moral, psychological and physical
harm which may be associated with licensed premises and certificated club
premises (for example the exposure too early to strong language and sexual
expletives, eg in the context of film exhibitions or where adult entertainment is
provided). Itis intended that the admission of children to premises holding a
premises licence or club premises certificate should normally be freely allowed
without restricting conditions (unless the 2003 Act itself imposes such conditions
or there are good reasons to restrict entry or to exclude children completely).

Licensees should note the concern of the authority that drink related disorder
frequently involves under 18’s. To prevent illegal purchases of alcohol by such
persons, the committee recommend that all licensees should work with a suitable
‘proof of age’ scheme and ensure that appropriate identification is requested prior
to entry and when requesting alcohol, where appropriate. Appropriate forms of
identification are currently considered to be those recommended by police,
trading standards officers and their partners in the Licensing Strategy Group (eg
passport, photo driving licence or pass card).

29

47



52

53

54

5.5

It is the licensing authority’s expectation that all staff responsible for the sale of
intoxicating liquor receive information and advice on the licensing laws relating to
children and young persons in licensed premises. Licensed premises staff are
required to take reasonable steps to prevent under age sales. The licensing
authority will not seek to limit the access of children to any premises unless it is
necessary for the prevention of physical, moral or psychological harm to them.
Each application will be considered on its own merit but particular areas that will
give rise to concern in respect of children are to be found in section 5.3 below.

To reduce alcohol-induced problematic behaviour by under 18 year olds, to

enforce underage purchase and drinking laws and to assist in the protection of

children from harm, the licensing authority supports the following measures:-

(a) Police should exercise powers (Confiscation of Alcohol (Young Persons) Act
1997) to remove alcohol from young people on the street

(b) Police and trading standards should implement test purchasing to reduce
sales to under 18s in on and off sales licensed premises

(c) Further take-up of proof of age schemes will be promoted

(d) In-house, mystery shopper type schemes operated by local businesses will
be supported

(e) Providers of events specifically catering for unaccompanied children should
consider whether all staff at such events need to be CRB checked

The licensing authority will not seek to require that access to any premises is
given to children at all times — under normal circumstances this will be left to the
discretion of the licensee. The following areas give rise to concern in respect of
children, who will normally be excluded from premises:

» where there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors or with a

reputation for underage drinking;

* with a known association with drug taking or dealing;

» where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises;

» where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided;

» where premises are used primarily or exclusively for the sale and

consumption of alcohol and there is little or no seating for patrons.

Options may include:

* limitations on the hours when children may be present;

* age limitations (below 18);

* limitations or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;

* requirements for an accompanying adult;

« full exclusion of people under 18.

Licensees of premises giving film exhibitions will be expected to include in their
operating schedules arrangements for restricting children from viewing age
restricted films. Such premises will be subject to a mandatory condition requiring
that access will be restricted to only those who meet the required age limit in
accordance with any certificate granted by the British Board of Film

30

48



5.6

5.7

5.7.1

5.7.2

5.7.3

574

5.7.5

Classification, or in specific cases where such certificates have not been granted,
the licensing authority. The licensing authority does not intend to adopt its own
system of film classification. The licensing authorities procedures for dealing with
unclassified films are appended at Appendix F.

Where children are expected to attend a public entertainment, appropriate adult
supervision will be required to control the access and egress of children and to
protect them from harm. This will normally be an adult member of staff for every
100 children. Where the entertainment is music and dancing, 2 persons, licensed
by the Security Industry Authority (door supervisors) should be employed for
every 100 children but will be subject to advice within the Event Safety Guide.
Nothing in this policy shall seek to override child supervision requirements
contained in other legislation or regulations. The licensing authority recognises
the Children, Families and Schools section as being competent to advise on
matters relating to the protection of children from harm. Applicants shall copy
their applications to the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) in its capacity
as the responsible authority. Copies should be sent care of the Police. The
booklet ‘What to do if you are worried about a child’ is available from the LCSB
and is downloadable from the council’s licensing web pages.

Children and Young Persons Overview and Scrutiny Council reported on Reducing
Alcohol Related Harm to Children and Young People to Licensing Committee who
agreed:

Trading standards and the police undertake ongoing enforcement operations
around under-age sales and test purchasing. Sussex Police, BCRP and RUOK
undertake work concerning proxy purchases and counterfeit ID as part of the
partnership support work with Community Safety and Trading Standards.

Trading standards have a programme of business support including training for
local businesses to avoid under-age sales.

In determining applications and reviews, applications can only be dealt with on
their individual merit. Use of schemes like Think 21 and Challenge 25 are
appropriate on a case by case basis. Normally a Challenge 25 condition will be
appropriate.

A clear causal link between price discounting and disorder will normally lead to
the imposition of conditions prohibiting irresponsible promotions. This is now
reflected in the new mandatory conditions which can be found on the licensing
pages of the council’'s website.

The cumulative impact area boundaries and supporting evidence will be kept
under review. The CIA is recommended for review as part of the statement of
licensing policy, informed by:

31

49

{ comment [SC35]: Remove?




5.8

5.9

6.1

Sussex Police report of public place violent crime 10/11

Environmental health noise statistics for 10/11

Overview and Scrutiny reports

Health impact assessment of licensing report

Report by Director of Health

Licensing enforcement policy (following Home Office & BEMS-advice on problem
premises)

SR LN~

N

Licensing Guidance. ~_ { comment [SC36]: Update?

Best Practice to protect children from harm

The council passed a Notice of Motion that licensing committee recommend best

practice for both on and off premises to take on board on a voluntary basis, in

order to promote responsible licensing.

o Staff must be aware of the risk of the problem of proxy sales and offer
assistance to responsible authorities to deter offences

e Signage on premises should set out legal duties

e Voluntary restriction of high strength alcohol — operating schedules may be
used to limit high ABV beers and ciders

e Staff training — in addition to personal licence holders training, staff must be
adequately trained for duties

e Challenge 25 would be the norm, particularly in the off licence trade

e Signage — proxy sale - deterrence

The council will support accreditation schemes, such as Best Bar None and Purple
Flag, where appropriate and subject to resources.

Health Impact Assessment

The licensing authority’s response to this public consultation process is as

follows:

e Enforcement decisions of under-age sales from licensed premises will be taken
with regard to enforcement policy appended
Safe Space and refuges for potentially vulnerable people is supported
The council will make a telephone number available for reporting licensing offences
and concerns

Integration of Strategies

The licensing authority shall secure the proper integration of this policy with local
crime prevention, planning policy, transport, tourism and cultural strategies by:-
e Liaising and consulting with the Sussex Police, Community Safety Forum,

Sustainability Commission representatives and following the guidance in
community safety and crime and disorder strategy

32

50



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

e Liaising and consulting with the East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service

e Liaising and consulting with the Local Strategic Partnership, Safety Advisory
Group (Emergency Planning) and Equalities and Social Justice Consultation
Forum

e Liaising and consulting with the Planning authority

e Liaising and consulting with the Highways authority

e Liaising and consulting with tourism, stakeholder groups, business groups
such as the city centre Business Forum and the economic development
functions for the council

e Having regard to any future documents issued relating to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001, for example liaison or information sharing protocols

e Liaising and consulting with the Trading Standards Team, for example with
regard to test purchasing codes of practice

e Having regard to the Home Office Safer Clubbing Guide

In line with statutory requirements and the council’s Inclusion Policy, the
Licensing Authority shall have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful
discrimination, and to promote equality of opportunity and positive relations
between persons of diverse backgrounds, for example communities of interest
such as: lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender people; disabled people; racial
and ethnic groups; religious and faith groups.

This policy supports the aims of the tourism strategy, recognising the benefits for
the tourism economy of creating a safer and more attractive city centre and
improving competitiveness with other European cities. The Licensing Committee
should receive any reports relevant to the needs of the local tourist economy and
the cultural strategy for the area to ensure that it considers these matters.

The Licensing Committee should receive relevant information relating to the
employment situation of the area and the need for new investment and
employment where appropriate.

Specific conditions may be attached to premises licences to reflect local crime
prevention strategies. Such conditions may include the use of closed circuit
television cameras, use of the NightSafe radio system or accredited scheme, the
provision and use of shatterproof drinking receptacles, drugs and weapons
search policy, the use of registered door supervisors, specialised lighting
requirements, hours of opening. Certificates issued to club premises shall reflect
local crime prevention strategies and may include any or all of the requirements
listed above.

The licensing authority will have regard to the need to disperse people quickly
and safely from the city centre to avoid concentrations which may produce
disorder and disturbance.

33

51



6.7

6.8

Where appropriate, matters for consideration in licensing applications will not
duplicate matters considered as part of any planning application. Licensing
decisions will take into account any relevant planning decisions either by the
Planning Applications Committee or following appeals against decisions taken by
that committee and will not normally cut across such decisions.

Other regulatory regimes
This policy avoids duplication with other regulatory regimes wherever possible.
The following notes are made with regard to specific regimes:

Health and Safety: Certain premises will be the subject of health and safety
enforcement by the local authority or the Health and Safety Executive (HSE). If
other existing law already places certain statutory responsibilities on an employer
or operator of premises, for example the Management of Health and Safety at
Work Regulations 1999, it will not be necessary to impose the same or similar
duties on the premises licence holder or club. However, existing duties will not
always adequately cover specific issues that arise on the premises in connection
with, for example, certain types of entertainment, and where additional and
supplementary measures are necessary to promote the licensing objectives,
necessary, proportionate conditions will need to be attached to a licence.

Fire Safety: Premises and their operators will be regulated by general duties
under current fire safety regimes and the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order
2005 rather than licensing provisions.

Noise: Statutory and public nuisances are dealt with by the local authority’s
Environmental Health department under the Environmental Protection Act 1990,
Noise Act 1996 and associated legislation. Noise from commercial premises may
often fall under review powers set out in licensing provisions and closure powers
in antisocial behaviour provisions.

Race Relations: The Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by the Race
Relations (Amendment) Act 2000, obliges public authorities to have due regard to
the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination; and to promote equality of
opportunity and good relations between persons of different racial groups. The
local authority’s race equality scheme produced under these obligations shall
include reference to this statement of licensing policy.

Community relations: Integration of corporate strategies with licensing policy
will include the Inclusive Council Policy which recognises the council’s role, as a
community leader, to promote community cohesion and good relations between
diverse communities.

Measures to address prevention of crime and disorder recognise the need to
improve well being and safety of all the communities in the City.

Licensing policy supports the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership’s crime
reduction strategy. In particular it seeks to confront and reduce racist,

34

52



6.9

6.10

homophobic, transphobic and religiously motivated crimes, incidents and anti-
social behaviour.

Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003: Provides that if the noise from any licensed
premises is causing a public nuisance an authorised environmental health officer
would have the power to issue a closing order in respect of it effective for up to
24 hours. This complements the Police powers under the act to close licensed
premises for temporary periods.

Litter and Smoking: City Clean contractors have Clean Neighbourhoods powers
to enforce premises operators’ responsibilities to keep frontages clear of litter.

Disability Discrimination Act: Applications for new premises or for variations
involving changes to the layout of premises, are reminded to have regard this
legislation.

Gambling Act 2005: In relation to casinos and bingo clubs, the principal purpose
is gaming. The sale of alcohol and the provision of entertainment in such
premises is incidental to gaming and in determining whether to permit
entertainment that constitutes regulated entertainment under the act, gaming
license committees and / or the Gambling Commission will have taken into
account relevant government guidance. Accordingly it is felt that the licensing
objectives will have been, or will be in the main, adequately considered by such
committees and duplication of conditions should be avoided when considering
applications under the 2003 Act where relevant representations have been made.

Enforcement - The enforcement of licensing law and the inspection of licensed
premises is detailed in the Protocol between Sussex Police, the East Sussex Fire
& Rescue Service and Brighton & Hove City Council. This protocol reflects the
need for a more efficient deployment of Police and local authority staff commonly
engaged in licensing enforcement and can be found at appendix H. In addition
the Licensing Authority will have regard to its published Licensing Enforcement
Policy in making enforcement decisions (Appendix E). In order to better target
enforcement resources, inspections will also be undertaken outside of normal
office hours and the sharing of information between all enforcement agencies will
be encouraged through joint meetings or similar arrangements. Joint Intelligence
Meetings are organised and include officers from responsible authorities.

Attention is drawn to the targeting of agreed problem and high risk premises
requiring greater attention as identified in the protocol. A number of other council
and government policies, strategies and guidance documents must be taken into
account to complement the policy, including:

e Community Safety & Crime Reduction Strategy

e Drugs and alcohol strategies — local alcohol harm reduction strategy

o Objectives of the Private Security Industry Authority

e The Anti Social Behaviour Act 2003

35

53



7

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

e The Health Act 2006
e The Violent Crime Reduction Act 2006
e Policing and Crime Act 2009

Live Music, Dancing & Theatre

This policy recognises the need to encourage live music, dancing and theatre for
the wider cultural benefits of the community generally. In addressing such issues
the potential for limited disturbance in neighbourhoods will always be carefully
balanced with these wider benefits, particularly for children. The impact of
licensing on regulated entertainment, particularly live music and dancing, will be
monitored. Where indications are that such events are being deterred by licensing
requirements, the policy will be revisited with a view to investigating how such
situations might be reversed.

The Licensing Committee represents the general interests of a community in
determining what conditions should be attached to licences and certificates as a
matter of necessity for the promotion of the licensing objectives. All members of
the Licensing Committee will be trained on Licensing Act 2003 and S182
Guidance. The Licensing authority is aware of the need to avoid measures which
deter live music, dancing and theatre - such as imposing indirect costs out of
proportion to the income of the licence holder and to the risks presented. Only

restrictions on such events.

The licensing committee will support the cultural zones, outdoor eating areas, food
led operations, community pubs, live entertainment and protect living conditions in
mixed use areas.

Reviews

Reviews represent a key protection for the community. Where the licensing
authority considers action necessary under its statutory powers it will take
necessary steps to support the licensing objectives. Action following review will be
informed by licensing enforcement policy — appendix E.

Where style of operation of a premises leads to applications concerning likelihood
of racist, religiously motivated, homophobic or transphobic crimes or incidents, the
review process should also support the community safety policy. Action should be
proportionate and licences would normally be suspended or revoked in these
circumstances to deter further incidents.

Contact Details, Advice and Guidance

Guidance notes to accompany this policy and details about the licensing
application process, including application forms, can be found:
e E-mail ehl.safety@brighton-hove.gov.uk

36

54

_ -~ | Comment [SC37]: Delete necessary &

insert ‘appropriate’




e Via www.brighton-hove.gov.uk (search under Licensing Act 2003 and follow the
relevant links, for example to the Licensing Applications page for a weekly

update of applications received)

e By contacting the Health & Safety and Licensing Team at:

Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square
Brighton BN1 1JP

e By telephoning them on 01273 294429

e By faxing on 01273 292196

9.2  Advice and guidance to applicants may also be sought from:

The Police and Fire Authority by contacting them at:

Police

Licensing Unit

Police Station

John Street

Brighton

BN2 OLA
Tel:-04273-665523-101
Other responsible authorities:

Health & Safety

For non-council owned premises:
Environmental Health & Licensing
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square

Brighton BN1 1JP

Tel: 01273 294429

Planning
Development Control
Hove Town Hall
Norton Road

Hove

BN3 1PT

Tel: 01273 290000

Environmental Health:
Environmental Protection Team
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square

Brighton, BN1 1JP

Tel: 01273 290000

East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service
Brighton & Hove Fire Safety Office
Hove Fire Station
English Close
Hove
BN3 7EE

Tel: 01323 462130

For council parks & other council-run premises:
Enforcement Liaison Officer, HSE

Phoenix House

23-25 Cantelupe Road

East Grinstead RH19 3BE

Tel: 01342 334200

Child Protection

Chair of Brighton & Hove ACPC
Children Families & Schools
Kings House,

Hove BN3 2SU

Tel: 01273 290000

Trading Standards:
Bartholomew House
Bartholomew Square
Brighton

BN1 1JP

Tel: 01273 292523

37

55

_ -~ -| Comment [SC38]: Insert Director of

Public Health as a Responsible
Authority




Please note the above were correct at time of publication but may be subject to change; please contact
the Licensing Authority if you have queries regarding the above contact points.

38

56



APPENDIX A
Brighton & Hove City Council - Cumulative Impact Area

il | [ NES \\" ‘} -

0 250 500 1,000 Meters
B l—filactip, ==l ip . 10—

(¢) Crown Copyright. A‘l rights reserved. Licence: 100020999, 2011.

The Cumulative Impact Area comprises the area bounded by and including: the north
side of Western Road, Brighton from its intersection with the west side of Holland Road
to the junction with the west side of Dyke Road at its eastern end; from there, north-east
to the junction of the north side of Ayr Street with the west side of Queens Road and
then northward to the north-west corner of Surrey Street junction with Queens Road;
thence along the north side of Trafalgar Street eastwards to its junction with York Place
and continuing south-east across to Grand Parade, then south to the junction of
Edward Street; along the north side of Edward Street to the east side of its junction with
Egremont Place and southward along the eastern sides of Upper Rock Gardens and

39

57



Rock Gardens; southward to the mean water mark and following the mean water line
westward to a point due south of the west boundary of Holland Road; northward to that
point and along the west side of Holland Road to its northwest boundary and then
diagonally across Western Road to its intersection with the west side of Holland Road.

40

58



APPENDIX B
Brighton & Hove City Council — Special Stress Area

The areas recommended for further monitoring and detailed guidance within the Special
Policy comprise the following as pictured below delineated in purple:

Cumulative Impact Zone

=
s

The Special Stress Area - an area bounded by and including: the north side of Western
Road, Brighton from its intersection with the west side of Holland Road northwards to its
intersection with the north side of Lansdowne Road; eastwards to the junction with
Furze Hill, along the north side Furze Hill to its end and then due east along Victoria
Road to it’s junction with Montpelier Road (west side), north to where Montpelier Road
joins Vernon Terrace then north to Seven Dials; north west along the west side of Dyke
Road until the junction with the Old Shoreham Road, then East along the north side of
Old Shoreham Road , north end of New England Road, across the north side of Preston
Circus, eastwards along the north side of Viaduct Road, then at the junction with
Ditchling Road, North East along the north side of Upper Lewes Road until the junction
with Lewes Road; south along the Lewes Road to junction with Hartington Road, along
the north side of Hartington Road until the junction with St. Helen’s Road, south into

41

59



May Road, eastwards until it's junction with Freshfield Road, then south into Upper
Bedford Street, into Bedford Street to the mean water mark south of Bedford Street,
then due west until the mean water mark south of Lower Rock Gardens.

42

60



APPENDIX C

Measures to be included for consideration in SSA are:

Matters that would normally be expected in operating schedules:

the adoption of a “Challenge 21" policy with acceptable proof ofid as
per existing Statement of Licensing Policy

all off sales to be made in sealed containers for consumption away from
the premises

a smoking policy which includes an assessment of noise and litter
created by premises users

the use of plastic or polycarbonate drinking vessels and containers,
especially in outside areas or after specified hours

a policy in relation to searching customers and for drugs, weapons,
seized or lost and found property

use of a refusals book for registering attempts to buy alcohol by under-
age persons or refusals to those intoxicated

the installation of a digital CCTV system by liaison with, and to a
standard approved by, Sussex Police

policies for dispersal of customers which may include signage regarding
taxi services’ telephone numbers and advice to respect neighbours and
minimize noise

systems to ensure any SIA doorstaff or Mobile Support Unit personnel
display appropriate badges when on duty

Items to which positive consideration would be given:

membership of Brighton Crime Reduction Partnership, Pubwatch,
Neighbourhood Watch or similar schemes

use of ‘NightSafe’ radio system or similar accredited scheme

regular training and reminders for staff in respect of licensing legislation,
policies and procedures; records of which should be properly recorded
and available for inspection

records of regular checks of all parts of the premises in relation to drug
use

systems in place to ensure details of barred clients are exchanged with
other operators

giving an agreed minimum notice of special events (screening of major
sports events, birthday parties, adult entertainment, etc.) to relevant
authorities and use of appropriate additional measures at such events

Matters that might be recommended for appropriate restrictions -

entry to premises by under 18s after certain times
consumption of food and drink in smoking areas
access to outside seating areas after certain times

43

61

- [ Comment [SC39]: Challenge 25?

)




Areas of best practice in licensing

The Licensing Strategy Group agreed the following best practice list, some of which
would be more appropriate to off sales rather than on sales. All should take into
account the new mandatory conditions:

Awareness of the problem of proxy sales

Signage

Selling to underage people

Staff training

Challenge 25

Pass scheme

Voluntary restriction of high strength alcohol

Membership of BCRP

Use of polycarbonate glass

Lockable glass bins emptied at appropriate times

Staff training against the four licensing objectives and including conditions on
licence

Trading Standards Business Support

Risk assessments

Recommend best practice for both on and off premises

Staff must be aware of the risk of the problem of proxy sales and offer assistance
to responsible authorities to deter offences

Signage on premises should set out legal duties

Voluntary restriction of high strength alcohol — operating schedules may be used to
limit high ABV beers and ciders

Staff training — in addition to personal licence holders training, staff must be
adequately trained for duties

Challenge 25 would be the norm, particularly in the off licence trade

Signage — proxy sale — deterrence

44

62



APPENDIX D

The following measures are to be considered best practice for premises to ensure safe
and peaceful dispersal of their patrons.

Dispersal Policy

Every venue should prepare and implement a dispersal policy. Such a policy would set
out the steps the venue will take at the end of the trading session to minimise the
potential for disorder and disturbance as customers leave the premises. The policy
should be in place prior to a venue beginning to trade and should be kept under review
to address new issues as they arise. While preparing their policy, operators should
consider the local statement of licensing policy and any relevant conditions attached to
the premises licence. A dispersal policy might include the following elements:

Transport

Probably the biggest single factor triggering disorder and disturbance is a lack of public
and private transport at the end of the evening, preventing the swift dispersal of
customers away from the venue. There are a number of steps operators can take to
reduce transport related problems:

e Promote safety on leaving, for example through operating a concierge service
and providing a safe place for customers to wait for taxis (particularly lone
females);

e Adbvertise reliable services by providing free phone numbers for licensed private
hire vehicles and details of nearby taxi ranks, bus timetables or other local
transport networks.

e Agree an operating policy with local private and public hire vehicles, for example
banning the sounding of horns after 11pm;

e Discuss with the council the location of taxi ranks to ensure they are easily
accessible without causing bottlenecks outside venues;

e Consider, in discussion with the police and council, the use of stewards to act as
marshalls at bus stops and taxi ranks; and

e Work with the local authority and transport providers to agree bus routes, stops
and timetables.

Road Safety:

Should the venue exit onto a public highway, operators should ensure separation of
customers and traffic — if necessary by the installation of permanent or removable
barriers.

Car Parking

If appropriate, operators could advise customers of the best car park to use (either
through their website or on printed material) so that they leave in a direction with
minimum disturbance to local residents. Operators might also be able to negotiate with
local car park operators to allow customer usage.

45

63



Staffing

During the last half hour of trading, the service points in each bar may be reduced and
some staff reallocated to collect glasses or work in the cloakroom. This will assist
customer departure and reduces the potential for people to carry glassware out of the
premises.

Cloakroom
The cloakroom should be set up in order to assist the swift return of coats with staffing
and control systems increased in the period prior to closure.

Music & Lighting (internal)

During the last 20 minutes of trading, the DJ may typically play slower music and reduce
the volume of the music played. In addition, lighting levels can be manipulated to
encourage the gradual dispersal of patrons during the last part of trading and the
drinking up period (see winding down).

Lighting (external)

Operators have found that the use of bright lights at the exit of the venue encourages
customers to leave more quietly. Operators should liaise with the local council to
establish guidelines on the positioning of these lights which will also prompt customers
to leave the area quickly and enhance CCTV coverage.

Minimising Noise on Exit

If possible, a manager should be in the area close to the main exit to oversee the end of
night departure period. DJ announcements should be used to remind customers to be
considerate on leaving the premises, while highly visible notices can be placed in the
foyer requesting exiting customers to leave quietly and to respect neighbours and their
properties.

Bottles or glasses

Signage should make clear that customers will not be allowed to leave the premises
with bottles or glasses. This policy should be supported by a vigilant door team
searching customers where necessary. If appropriate, bins can be provided at exits for
use by customers. Operators could also provide advice on any drinking ban in the area.

Litter

Operators should send out a ‘Rubbish Patrol’ following closure. This patrol will pick up
bottles, flyers, food wrappings etc in the immediate vicinity of the premises. As well as
clearing rubbish, the patrol acts as another set of eyes and ears identifying potential
disorder. Their activity, particularly sweeping the pavement, will also encourage
customers to vacate the area outside the premises.

Door staff
The door team play a key role in the implementation of several aspects of any dispersal

policy:

46

64



* encouraging customers to drink-up and progress to the exit within a venue
throughout the latter part of drinking-up time;

« drawing the attention of exiting customers to the notices in the foyer and ask them
to be considerate;

* ensuring the removal of all bottles and glasses from departing customers;

* actively encouraging customers not to congregate outside the venue; and

« directing customers to the nearest taxi ranks or other transportation away from the
area.

Marshalls:

The use of venue security staff as marshals should always be in negotiation with the
police and kept under review. A marshal is a patrolling security officer wearing high
visibility clothing, who works close to the venue in a designated area and is in direct
communication with the venue management. Their aim is to create a highly visible
presence and to communicate, rather than deal with, potential problems.

Wind down period or “Chill out hour”

Many aspects of a model dispersal policy can be drawn together into a chill out hour
that gently winds down the evening rather than bringing it to an abrupt halt. Operators
might find there is a profit to be had from offering a taxi booking service and providing
coffee, soft drinks and bar snacks as a way of keeping customers in the premises and
thus spreading departures over a longer period of time.

47

65



Appendix E

LICENSING ENFORCEMENT POLICY

1.0 STATEMENT OF OBJECTIVES

1.1 The Environmental Health & Licensing service is committed to the
council's core priorities. This policy gives detail on how the council’s
priorities:

e Tackling inequality

e Creating a more sustainable city

e Engaging people who live and work in the city
¢ A responsible and empowering employer

e A council the City deserves{ __ - | Comment [SC40]: Have now changed
****************************** but current Enforcement policy still has

these

and will inform the enforcement actions taken. Amendments to
priorities will be embedded automatically.

1.2 This service policy promotes efficient and effective approaches to
regulatory inspection and enforcement that improve regulatory
outcomes without imposing unnecessary burdens. This is in
accordance with the Regulator's Compliance Code.

1.3 In certain instances the service may conclude that a provision in the
code is either not relevant or is outweighed by another provision. It will
ensure that any decision to depart from the code will be properly
reasoned, based on material evidence and documented.

1.4  The service pursues a positive and proactive approach towards
ensuring compliance by:

e Supporting the better regulation agenda;

e Helping make prosperity and protection a reality for the city’s
community;

e Helping and encouraging regulated entities to understand and
meet regulatory requirements more easily;

e Responding proportionately to regulatory breaches; and

e Protecting and improving public health and the environment.

1.5  This policy is based on the seven ‘Hampton Principles’ of:

Economic Progress: Regulators should recognise that a key element
of their activity will be to allow, or even encourage, economic progress
and only to intervene when there is a clear case for protection;

Risk Assessment: Regulators, and the regulatory system as a whole,
should use comprehensive risk assessment to concentrate resources
in the areas that need them most;

48

66



1.6

2.0

21

2.2

23

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

Advice and Guidance: Regulators should provide authoritative,
accessible advice easily and cheaply;

Inspections and other visits: No inspection should take place without
a reason;

Information requirements: Businesses should not have to give
unnecessary information or give the same information twice;

Compliance and enforcement actions: The few businesses that
persistently break regulations should be identified quickly and face
proportionate and meaningful sanctions; and

Accountability: Regulators should be accountable for the efficiency
and effectiveness of their activities, while remaining independent in the
decisions they take.

The rights and freedoms given under the Human Rights Act,
particularly Article 6 and 8, will be observed, as will the provisions of
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act.

SCOPE OF THE POLICY

This policy supports and supplements specific guidance on
enforcement action contained in the Statutory Code of Practice for
Regulators, Brighton & Hove City Council’s Corporate Enforcement
Policy, Statutory Codes of Practice and relevant guidance documents
and guidelines issued by government departments and co-ordinating
bodies.

This policy relates to actions taken to educate and enforce legislation
where non-compliances have been identified or have a realistic
potential to occur.

The policy is limited to those enforcement activities lead by the Head of
Environmental Health & Licensing.

TRAINING
Officers undertaking enforcement duties will be suitably trained and
qualified so as to ensure they are fully competent to undertake their

enforcement activities.

MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The service will maintain management systems to monitor the quality
and nature of enforcement activities undertaken, so as to ensure, so far
as is reasonably practicable, uniformity and consistency.

49

67



5.0

5.1

52

5.3

54

ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS

The service recognises the importance of achieving and maintaining
consistency in its approach to enforcement. Statutory Codes of
Practice and guidance issued by government departments, other
relevant enforcement agencies or professional bodies will therefore be
considered and followed where appropriate.

Sanctions and penalties will be consistent, balanced, fairly
implemented and relate to common standards that ensure individual’s,
public safety or the environment is adequately protected. The aim of
sanctions and penalties are to:

Change the behaviour of the offender;

Eliminate any financial gain or benefit from non-compliance;

Be responsive and consider what is appropriate for the particular
offender and regulatory issue, which can include punishment and the
public stigma that should be associated with a criminal conviction;
Proportionate to the nature of the offence and the harm caused; and
Aim to deter future non-compliance.

Criteria to be taken into account when considering the most
appropriate enforcement option include:

the potential of the offence to cause harm;

confidence in the offender;

consequences of non compliance;

likely effectiveness of the various enforcement options.

Having considered all the relevant options the choices for action are:

Informal Warning: All advice issued will be given in writing and
specify the nature of the breach or offence, and the actions required to
remedy the issue. An informal warning may be included with the
advice, and may accompany higher-level actions, such as Enforcement
Notices or Voluntary Surrender:

Licence review: Licence review power will be used where an
application for review relates to one or more of the licensing objectives.
Taxi licence: Taxi licence suspension or revocation will be used to
protect public safety. Other sanctions such as DSA testing will be used
to protect public safety and in accordance with the taxi licensing policy
(Blue book).

Simple Caution: The issue of a Simple Caution by an authorised
officer may be undertaken as an alternative to prosecution where it is
considered unnecessary to involve the courts, and the offender’s
response to the problem makes repeat offending unlikely, or the
offender’s age or health make it appropriate. Cautions may only be
issued where the offender makes a clear and reliable admission of guilt
and understands the significance of acceptance.

50

68



5.5

6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

Prosecution: A prosecution is appropriate where there is a breach of a
legal requirement, such that public safety, health, economic or physical
well-being or the environment or environmental amenity is adversely
affected.

The Crown Prosecutor’'s Code of Evidential and Public Interests tests must

be met in all cases. However, certain circumstances will normally justify
prosecution to prevent the undermining of the service’s enforcement
responsibilities.

Failure to comply with an Enforcement Notice

Declining a Simple Caution

Continued, reckless, negligent or pre-meditated non-compliance.
Failure to pay a fixed penalty.

Non-cooperation, acts of obstruction or threats of physical harm or
abuse.

Injunctions: Injunctive action as a means of preventing an activity or
course of action likely to result in significant risk to public or community
safety or economic wellbeing of consumers and businesses.

If the department is considering taking enforcement action which it
believes may be inconsistent with that adopted by other authorities, the
matter will be referred to the appropriate local co-ordinating body.

INFORMAL WARNING

Informal action may be taken when:

e the act or omission is not serious enough to warrant formal action,
or

¢ from the individual's/enterprise's past history it can be reasonably
expected that informal action will achieve compliance, or

e confidence in the individual/enterprise's management or ability to
resolve the matter is high, or

e the consequences of non-compliance will not pose a significant risk
to public health, public safety, animal welfare or the environment.

When an informal approach is used to secure compliance with

regulations, written documentation issued will:

e contain all the information necessary to understand what is
required and why;

¢ indicate the regulations contravened, measures which will enable
compliance with legal requirements and that other means of
achieving the same effect may be chosen;

e clearly differentiate between legal requirements and
recommendations of good practice. Such a differentiation will also
be made when verbal advice is given.

SIMPLE CAUTIONS

51

69



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.0

8.1

8.2

A Simple Caution may be issued as an alternative to a prosecution.
Cautions may be issued to:

e deal quickly and simply with less serious offences;
e divert less serious offences away from the courts;
e reduce the chances of repeat offences.

The following factors will be considered when deciding whether a
caution is appropriate:-

e evidence of the suspect's guilt

e has a clear and reliable admission of the offence been made either
verbally or in writing

e s itin the public interest to use a caution as the appropriate means
of disposal when taking into account the public interest principles
set out in the Code for Crown Prosecutors.

e the suspected offender must understand the significance of a
simple caution and give an informed consent to being cautioned.

No pressure will be applied to a person to accept a Simple Caution.
The 'cautioning officer' will be the most appropriate officer from Service
Director, Service Assistant Director, Head of Service Environmental
Health Manager or Licensing Manager. The Cautioning Officer must
not have taken an active part in investigating the case.

Should a person decline the offer of a simple caution a prosecution will
be recommended.

PROSECUTION

The department recognises that the decision to prosecute is significant
and could have far reaching consequences on the offender.

The decision to undertake a prosecution will be taken after proper
consultation in accordance with the Scheme of Delegation for the
council’s functions. The decision to proceed with a prosecution will
normally be taken following legal advice. The matters to be taken into
account when deciding if the issue of proceedings is proportionate
include:

¢ the seriousness and nature of the alleged offence;

e the role of the suspect in the commission of the offence;

e any explanation by the suspect or any agent or third party acting on
their behalf;

e was the suspect in a position of trust, responsibility or authority in
relation to the commission of the offence;

e s there evidence of premeditation or disregard of a legal
requirement for financial reward;

52

70



8.3

8.4

8.5

9.0

9.1

10.

risk of harm to the public, an individual or the environment;
relevant previous history of compliance;

reliability of evidence and witnesses

any mitigating or aggravating circumstances or the likelihood that
the suspect will be able to establish a defence;

suspect’s willingness to prevent a recurrence of the offence;

the need to influence future behaviour of the suspect;

the likely penalty to be imposed; and

a prosecution is in the public interest, there is realistic prospect of
conviction and sufficient evidence to support proceedings.

All relevant evidence and information will be considered before
deciding whether to instigate proceedings in order to enable a
consistent, fair and objective decision to be made.

Where an act or omission is capable of constituting both a summary
and either way offence, when deciding which offence to charge the
following will be considered:

o the gravity of the offence;

e the adequacy or otherwise of the powers of the summary court to
punish the offence;

e the record of the suspect;

e the suspect's previous response to advice or other enforcement
action;

e the magnitude of the hazard;

e any circumstances causing particularly great public alarm;

e comments from the council's Solicitor’s Office.

As a general rule an individual or business will be given a reasonable

opportunity to comply with the law although in some circumstances
prosecution may be undertaken without giving prior warning, e.g.

e the contravention is a particularly serious one;
¢ the integrity of the licensing framework is threatened.

Home Office and Government Advice: Problem premises on
probation

The licensing authority supports the strategies of interventions and
tough conditions to be assembled into packages released on 2008.
The current version is appended (appendix A).

APPEALS

If any person is unhappy with the action taken, or information or advice

given they will be given the opportunity of discussing the matter with
the relevant team manager, Head of Service or Assistant Director.

53

71



11.

Any such appeal does not preclude any aggrieved person from making
a formal complaint about the service or any officers. Any such
complaint will be dealt with in accordance with corporate procedures
and guidance.

Complaints that are not dealt with by the council’s complaints

procedure are listed in corporate policy and include:

e Complaints where the complainant or another person has
commenced or intends to commence legal proceedings against the
council.

e Complaints where the council has commenced or intends to
commence legal proceedings against the complainant or another
person relating to the matter of complaint.

SHARED ENFORCEMENT ROLES
Lead agency status between Sussex Police, East Sussex Fire and
Rescue Service and the council’s trading standards, environmental

health and licensing officers are determined between the agencies
at county level. The current position is appended (appendix H).

54

72



ANNEX A

“PROBLEM PREMISES ON PROBATION” — RED AND YELLOW
CARDS : HOW IT WOULD WORK

The problem

1.

In many cases, revocation of a premises licence effectively kills any
business which is focussed on retailing alcohol. This means that not
only the business owner suffers, but most people working there will lose
their livelihoods. Many of these workers will be entirely innocent of any
wrong-doing. There is also an impact on those who rely indirectly on
income from the premises — such as local food suppliers or cleaning
contractors, and the closure of a premises can deprive some
communities of their local shop or restrict local consumer choice.
Enforcement agencies that apply for reviews and local councillors sitting
on licensing committees are well aware of this potential impact and it
can lead to a reluctance to use the powers in the act to revoke the
licence instantly for any failure to promote the licensing objectives. This
risks patchy enforcement and uneven solutions to alcohol-related
problems around the country.

In addition, in many cases, enforcement agencies will prefer to
negotiate additional voluntary conditions with problem premises against
the threat of review as an immediate, pragmatic and less bureaucratic
solution. While this may be a reasonable approach in many cases,
there is a risk that some premises are not being dealt with as firmly as
necessary, particularly given the level of test purchase failures. Nor are
voluntary agreements particularly visible, lessening the deterrent effect
on other premises.

Government wishes to support the enforcement agencies and licensing
authorities by providing clear guidance on a “yellow card / red card”
system, which would ensure a firm response to problems, but which
give premises an opportunity to reform. The intention is that such a
system would be highly visible and send a clear message to alcohol
retailers, and the public, that action will be taken against those who act
contrary to the licensing objectives and the law.

The proposed interventions below would not prevent the giving of an
instant red card in an appropriately serious case. It should be realised
that a “test purchase” failure often masks multiple offences that have
gone undetected.

Supporting enforcement agencies

5.

The government will encourage enforcement agencies — mainly the
police, trading standards officers and environmental health officers — to
seek more reviews in the knowledge of the yellow card/red card system
described below. This will mean not giving formal warnings. It will

55

73



mean that on identifying problem premises, the licensing authority will
be engaged faster than it might have been in the past.

Enforcement agencies would be encouraged to seek reviews when
local intelligence suggests that individual premises are selling to
children or causing other crime problems or causing noise nuisance.

Under the law, the licensing authority must then hold a hearing so long
as the application relates to one of the four licensing objectives and is
made by a responsible authority or by an-interested party-like a local
resident or another local business.

First intervention

8.

10.

11.

12.

Responsible authorities will be encouraged to propose a package of
touch new conditions to be added to the existing conditions which are
designed to combat the identified problem. The kinds of conditions that
we have in mind are set out in Annex A. These would not be
appropriate for every premises and need to be tailored to the nature of
the problem and the type of premises. Such action should be
supplemented where appropriate by:

e Removal of the designated premises supervisor and his/her
replacement (the manager is removed);

e Suspension of the licence for between one day and three months
according to the circumstances.

e Restriction on trading hours — cutting hours of trading in alcohol.

e Clear warning that a further appearance will give rise to a
presumption of revocation.

If appropriate following review, the licensing authority should consider
these packages of conditions and action s to challenge problem
premises more aggressively.

For example, requiring a major supermarket to make all alcohol sales
through a single till manned by a person aged 25 years or older in order
to tackle sales to underage. Over a year, this would potentially cost
such a supermarket £millions. It would also make them reflect on their
levels of supervision at other stores.

In addition, enforcement agencies should make the premises in
question a priority for test purchases and more regular inspections.

The aim would be to put the premises on probation. Effectively, they
are given a yellow card. They are put on notice that the next offence or
breach would mean an automatic second intervention — a red card.

56

74

. [Comment [SC41]: Other persons




Second intervention

13.  Inthe absence of improvement, enforcement agencies should seek
another review. The licensing authority again must grant a hearing.

14.  If satisfied on the issue of the lack of improvement, the licensing
authority should look to revoke the licence. The action should be
publicised in the area as an example to other retailers.

Implementation

15. Requires:
o Development with the Home Office of a toolkit and guidance for
police, trading standards and ethos;

° Initial letters to Leaders of local authorities and Chief Executives;

° Ultimately, stronger statutory Guidance to be laid in Parliament
for licensing authorities themselves.

16.  Central Government cannot tell licensing authorities what to do. The
review powers are devolved to them. Similarly, central government

cannot direct enforcement agencies how to enforce the law. It would
remain their judgement when and how to act.

57

75



ANNEX B:
POSSIBLE TOUGH CONDITIONS TO BE ASSEMBLED INTO PACKAGES

n.b. These would not be appropriate for every premises and need to be
tailored to the nature of the problem and the type of premises.

GREATER CONTROL OVER SALE

1. Designated checkout(s) for alcohol sales (supermarket). Impact on
protection of children from harm, but also impact on sales and goodwiill
(probable loss of trade to competitors).

2. Personal licence holder/DPS to be on site at all times during sales of
alcohol. Impact on protection of children from harm and new costs if
additional staff have to qualify as personal licence holder.

3. Personal licence holder/DPS to supervise and authorise every
individual sale of alcohol. Impact on protection of children from harm
and new costs if additional staff have to qualify as personal licence
holder.

4. SIA regqistered security staff to be present at points of sales to support
staff refusing sales to u-18s and drunks.

5. Alcohol sales only to be made only by person aged not less than 25
years. Impact on protection of children from harm, but also impact on
sales and goodwill (probable loss of trade to competitors).

6. CCTV installed at all points of sale and recorded. Recordings can be
examined by a constable or trading standards officer to determine
sales to minors or drunks.

7. The licensed premises shall join the Business Crime Reduction
Partnership scheme.

TRAINING

8. All staff to read and sign a declaration that they understand the law
every time they start a shift.

9. Train all staff engaged in selling alcohol in alcohol awareness (not just
personal licence holders). All new staff to be trained within two weeks
of commencing employment. Evidence of training to be retained in

58

76



writing and to be available for inspection by any authorised person and
training standards officers. Impact on all licensing objectives.

ALCOHOL SALE BANNED AT CERTAIN HOURS

10.

11.

No alcohol sales Mon — Fri between 4pm and 8.30pm. Impact on
protection of children from harm or targeted hours reflecting times
when local intelligence indicates under 18s may be purchasing alcohol.

No alcohol sales — Friday to Sunday. Impact on all four licensing
objectives.

ALCOHOL DISPLAYS

12.

13.

No displays of alcohol or advertising of alcohol promotions that can be
seen from outside the premises.

No alcohol stocks promoted alongside goods likely to appeal to
children (eg confectionary, toys).

CUTTING DOWN ON SHOPLIFTING

14.

15.

16.

SIA registered security staff to be present at alcohol aisles during
opening times to prevent attempted under age sales or theft.

Location of alcohol stocks/displays not to be sited near the
entrance/exit to deter shoplifting.

No direct public access to alcohol products — like tobacco, alcohol to be
kept behind a dedicated kiosk.

NAMING AND SHAMING

17.  Display an external sign/yellow card to state which of the licensing act
objectives they have breached and what action has been taken against
them.

OTHERS

18.  Maintain a log of all under attempted purchases from those who appear

to be under 18 or drunk.

59

77



19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Children aged under [18 years] not to be present or (not more than one
child at any one time) on premises (other than children living on the
premises or of the people working on the premises); or only children
under 18 accompanied by an adult to be permitted on the premises
during retailing hours. Impact on protection of children from harm.

Products to be labelled (a label stuck to the bottle or can) to show the
details of the shop from which it was bought. Purpose would be to
provide evidence of unlawful sales if product found commonly in
possession of persons under 18.

Designated single items — beer, alcopops and cider — not to be sold to
any person. Impact on protection of children from harm. Purpose
would be to reduce sales to children and drunks. Alternative would be
to prescribe sales of beer, alcopops and cider in quantities of less than
four.

CCTV installed, monitored and 24 hour recordings kept for a week and
made available to constables and persons authorised under the 2003
Act to help identify attempted proxy purchasing.

Where there is no designated smoking area, readmission after
midnight should normally be prohibited.

60

78



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

21

Appendix F

Film classification

The British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) and the Licensing Authority are
the classification bodies for films shown in the city, and as such has the right to
issue film classifications to films that are shown in premises such as cinemas.
Recent films that have been classified in Brighton & Hove City Council have been
for the Duke of York’s and Sallis Benney Theatre. Some films and film festivals
are sponsored by Brighton & Hove City Council (BHCC) and/or the Arts Council
and under such circumstances it could be imprudent to refuse permission.

In practice, officers may view films in advance, and determine classification,
commonly after consultation with the chair of the committee. There is also no
process to refer films to the Licensing Committee for classification where those
films give rise to concerns regarding the licensing objective “the protection of
children from harm.”

The British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) classifies films to be
exhibited in cinemas on behalf of Licensing Authorities, and as such
Brighton & Hove rarely uses its right to classify films.

Under the Licensing Act 2003 any premises that has permission to show
films as part of their permitted licensable activity, such as a cinema, has
mandatory conditions attached to the licence regarding the exhibition of
films. Premises that were previously licensed under the Cinemas Act 1985
will also have additional conditions attached, unless an application has
been made to remove these. A schedule of the relevant conditions is
attached as APPENDIX 1.

The Licensing Authority can be requested to classify a film that has not yet
been classified by the BBFC. A typical example of this would be a locally
made film, such as a student production, to be shown at a film festival in the
borough.

A distributor of a film can appeal to the Licensing Authority against a
decision of the BBFC.

Any classification issued by the Licensing Authority only applies when the
film is exhibited within the city, and does not effect the classification in other
areas.

Current Process

Where a request is made to classify a film, a full copy of the film is
requested. An officer will view the film and assess the film against
guidelines issued by the BBFC. Officers will then issue a certificate with a

classification for each film viewed. Conditions are attached to a waiver, and
these are shown on APPENDIX 2.

61

79



2.2

23

24

2.5

26

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

A decision will be made at an officer level regarding the classification to be
issued. This decision will be based on the BBFC guidelines and in
agreement with the Chair of the Licensing Committee.

Where a number of films are received at the same time, officers will view all
the films submitted and issue a certificate prior to screening.

The following extract from Brighton & Hove Licensing Policy is considered
relevant to this report:

“5.5 Licensees of premises giving film exhibitions will be expected to
include in their operating schedules arrangements for restricting
children from viewing age restricted films. Such premises will be
subject to a mandatory condition requiring that access will be
restricted to only those who meet the required age limit in
accordance with any certificate granted by the British Board of Film
Classification, or in specific cases where such certificates have not
been granted, the licensing authority. The licensing authority does
not intend to adopt its own system of film classification”.

Classification Requirements when films are not viewed in advance

Requests for an 18 certificate classification requirements be determined on
an officer basis subject to the conditions shown in APPENDIX 2. An 18
certificate would be issued based only on the synopsis of the film and would
be appropriate in the following cases:

(a) A film festival

(b) A one off screening of a film

(c) A trailer for a film
Any request to classify a film will be considered by the licensing authority
and must be accompanied by both the synopsis of the film and a full copy of
the film in DVD or video format.

All requests must be made with a minimum of 7 days notice of the proposed
screening or 28 days for multiple requests.

It is recommended that officers from the Licensing Authority view the entire
film and assess against the BBFC guidelines, and a recommendation is
made on the classification.

Where the appropriate classification is deemed to be a rating up to and
including 15, then a classification will be issued by officers.

In sensitive cases, officers would consult with the Chair or Deputy.

62

80



Mandatory Conditions - Licensing Act 2003

The conditions detailed below are mandatory conditions required to be placed
on all Premises Licenses where the showing of films is authorised under the
Licensing Act 2003

Exhibition of films
S 20; mandatory condition: exhibition of films
- the admission of children is to be restricted in accordance
with the following
(a) where the film classification body is specified in the licence,
unless subsection (3)(b) of S 20 applies, admission of
children must be restricted in accordance with any
recommendation made by that body
(b) where the film classification body is not specified, or [(S20
(3)(b)] the relevant licensing authority has notified the holder
of the licence that this subsections applies to the film in
question, admission of children must be restricted in
accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing
authority

Additional Conditions Attached to Cinema Licences

Embedded Conditions:

e Cinematographic (Safety) Regulations 1955
e Cinemas Act 1985
e Licence to Use Premises for Cinematograph Exhibitions

Conditions Attached to an 18 Certificate Film Classification
Requirements where films have not been viewed in advance

The conditions listed below are attached by BHCC on all waivers to the film
classification requirements:

1. The films must not encourage or incite crime; or lead to disorder; or stir
up hatred against any section of the public in Great Britain on grounds
of colour, race or ethnic or national origins, sexual orientation or sex; or
promote sexual humiliation or degradation of or violence towards
women.

2. The films must not have the effect such as to tend to deprave and
corrupt persons who see them.

3. The films must not contain a grossly indecent performance thereby
outraging the standards of public decency.

4. Persons under the age of 18 must not be admitted to any such film
exhibitions.

63

81



Appendix G

Licensing Enforcement Pathway

Licensing incident:

4

Report
|Trading Standards

Contact 01273 292523
then press option 2

Apparent offence, injury or incident

or

4 4

[SC42]: New number 101

)

294429 08456080999
Ehl.safety@brighton- ‘Susgex[ Police .- { comment
hove.gov.uk

Council — Environmental . . .
Health & Licensing S

|
4

Consideration by responsible authorities at joint intelligence
exchange (Sussex Police, BHCC trading standards, environmental
health and licensing, East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service

4

Assign lead investigator responsibility (Lead Agency agreement)

4

Investigation — Licensing Enforcement Policy

Offence Offender(s) Defences/Exceptions
Consumption on relevant Under 18 or (1) Lack of knowledge
premises of alcohol by under 18 | person in (2) Table meal exception
or knowingly allowing the capacity to

64

82



consumption to occur

prevent

Delivering alcohol sold or
supplied on relevant premises to
under 18

Person working
on premises

(1) Lack of knowledge
(2) Exceptions in s151(6)

Allowing anybody else to deliver
alcohol sold or supplied on
relevant premises to under 18

Person working
on premises in
capacity to
prevent delivery

(1) Lack of knowledge
(2) Exceptions in s151(6)

Sending an under 18 to obtain
alcohol sold or supplied on
relevant premises for
consumption off the premises

Any person

(1)  Lack of knowledge

(2)  Exception for Test Purchase
Operations

(83)  Under 18 works on relevant
premises in capacity involving
delivery of alcohol

Sale or supply of alcohol to under
18

Any person or a
club

(1)  Due diligence (if act by another

person)

(2) Belief that individual over 18
and reasonable steps taken to
establish age or no reasonable
suspicion under 18

Allowing sale or supply of alcohol | Any person Lack of knowledge
to under 18 authorised to
prevent
Purchase/supply (or attempt to Under 18 or S149(1) — exception if done as part of
purchase/supply) of alcohol by or | person Test Purchase Operations
on behalf of under 18 purchasing on
behalf of

Purchase/supply (or attempt to
purchase/supply) of alcohol for
consumption on relevant
premises by under 18

S149(4) — table meal exception

S149(3) or (4) — no reason to suspect
under 18

Sale or supply (or attempt) or

Any person in

Lack of knowledge

allowing sale or supply of alcohol | capacity to
to person who is drunk prevent
Obtaining or attempting to obtain | Any person Lack of knowledge
alcohol for consumption on
relevant premises by drunk
person
65

83




Appendix H

LEAD AGENCY STATUS

| Comment [SC43]: Updated as per
website

Offence / Issue Police Local / Fire & Trading
Licensing | Rescue Standards
Auth
Licensing Objective 1:
Crime and Disorder
Offences of failing to notify changes in details
Section 33(6) Licensing Act 2003 Lead
Offences of failing to display licences or
certificates
Lead
Section 57(4) Licensing Act 2003
Ungauthorised use of premises for licensed
activities Shared Shared
Seltion 136 Licensing Act 2003 Lead Leadtead
Exposing alcohol for unauthorised sale Shared Shared
Section 137 Licensing Act 2003 Lead Lead
Keeping alcohol on premises for unauthorised Shared Shared
sale Lead Lead
Section 138 Licensing Act 2003
Allowing Disorderly Conduct on Licensed
Premises
Lead
Section 140 Licensing Act 2003
Obtaining/supplying alcohol to drunk
Sections 141/ 142 Licensing Act 2003 Lead
Drunkenness in Premises
Section 143 Licensing Act 2003 Lead
Keeping of smuggled goods
Sertion 144 Licensing Act 2003 HMRC&E | HMRC&E
False statements made for purposes of the Act
Selction 158 Licensing Act 2003 Shared Shared
Lead Leadkead
Enforcement of closure order
Section 169 Licensing Act 2003 Lead

66

84




Offence / Issue Police Local / Fire & Trading
Licensing | Rescue Standards
Auth
Prohibition of alcohol sales at service / garage
areas
. ' . Shared Shared
Section 176 Licensing Act 2003 Lead Lead
Public Drunkenness
Section 12 Licensing Act 1872 Lead
Underage drinking Shared Shared
Section 169 Licensing Act 1964 Lead Lead
Misuse of Drugs
Section 4 Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 Lead
Anti Social Behaviour
Section 1 Crime & Disorder Act 1998 Shared Shared
(ASBO) Lead Lead
Ac*:eptance of accredited proof of age cards Lead Lead
Provision of effective CCTV in and around
premises Lead Lead - { Formatted: Font: 11 pt
Employment of SIA licensed door staff Shared Shared
Lead Lead
Fallure to comply with CCTV conditions Shared Shared
Lead Lead
Employment of SIA licensed door staff Shared Shared
Lead Lead
Reguirements to provide toughened or plastic Shared Shared
glasses Lead Lead
Lead
Provision of secure deposit boxes for Shared Shared
confiscated items (sin bins) Lead Lead
Provision of litterbins, other security measures Shared Shared
such as lighting Lead Lead
Lead

67

85



Licensing Objective 2: Police Local / Fire & Trading Standards
] Licensing | Rescue
Public Safety: Auth
Sales of alcohol on vehicles
Section 156 Licensing Act 2003 Lead
Overcrowding of premises Shared Shared Shared
Lead Lead Primary
Lead
Use of special effects such as lasers, Shared Shared
pyrotechnics, smoke machines and foam Lead Lead
Bldcked or locked means of escape Shared Shared
Lead Primary
Lead
Provision of sufficient number of people Shared Shared
employed to secure safety of patrons Lead Lead
Lead
Regular testing and certification of Shared Shared
systems and appliances Lead Lead
Licensing Objective 3:
Public Nuisance:
Public nuisance from noise Lead
Puplic nuisance from liter | || leed | | ~_{ Formatted: Font: 11 pt
Public nuisance from persons leaving the | Shared Shared
premises Lead Lead
Public nuisance from odour Lead
68

86



Effective public transport

Lead

Adequate public lighting/security lighting

Lead

Licensing Objective 4:

Protection of Children from
harm:

Police

Local /
Licensing
Auth

Fire &
Rescue

Trading Standards

Exposure to explicit films/plays
Sections 74 & 76 Licensing Act 2003

Lead

Reguirements for children to be
acg¢ompanied by an adult

Seltion 145 Licensing Act 2003

Shared

Shared

Lead

Lead

Sale of Alcohol to Children
Sertion 146 Licensing Act 2003

licence

- { Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Lead Off licence

Sale of liqueur confectionery to children
under 16 years

Section 148 Licensing Act 2003

Lead

Purchase, acquisition or consumption of
alcohol by or for children

Sections 149 & 150 Licensing Act 2003

Lead

Delivering to or sending a child to obtain
alcohol

Sections 151 & 152 Licensing Act 2003

Lead

Unsupervised sales by children
Section 153 Licensing Act 2003

Lead

Confiscation of sealed containers of
alcohol and unsealed

Confiscation of Alcohol (Young Persons)
Act 1997)

Lead

Provision of sufficient number of staff to
sec¢ure protection of children from harm

Seption 12(1) Children and Young
Persons Act 1933

Shared

Shared

Shared

Lead

Lead

Lead

69

87



Concerns of moral/psychological harm Shared Shared
Lead Lead
Lead
Concerns over physical harm Shared Shared Shared
Lead Lead Lead
Exposure to drugs, dealing or taking Lead
Exposure to gambling Shared Shared
Lead Lead
Exposure to activities of adult/sexual Shared Shared
nature Lead Lead
Exposure to incidents of Lead
violence/disorder
Exposure to environmental pollution such Lead (with
as noise or smoke HSE)
Exposure to special hazards i.e. Shared Shared
suitability of the premises Lead Lead
Lead
Limitation on hours when children may Shared Shared
be present on all or parts of premises Lead Lead
Exclusions by age when certain activities Lead
are taking place
70

88




Appendix C

Sussex Police: Review of Licensing in Brighton & Hove - August 2013 to
August 2014.

Public Place Crime Figures

Overall Public Place Violence in the city during the period August 2013 to August 2014 has
remained the same compared to the previous year, but with a rise in the following sub groups:

Sexual Offences +29
Robbery +5
Assault on Constable +10

This has been balanced by a decrease in the ‘Violence against the Person’ subgroup due to
less ‘Public Order’ offences and ‘Assault without Injury’ offences being recorded.

However, there has been a rise in reported Public Place Violent Crime within Central Brighton
since March 2014 with an increase of 32 crimes between March and August. This is in
contrast to the decrease in ten crimes during the same period in 2013.

The main increases overall in this subgroup have been on Beat 1 (North Regency Ward),
which has seen an increase of 40 crimes. However, Beat 3 (Regency Ward South) has
experienced a significant decrease of 72 crimes.

Brighton & Hove Public Place Violent Crime two vear statistics relating to licensed premises:

Violent crimes in public houses/bars increased from 109 in 2012-3 to 134 in 2013-4 (+25)
Violent crimes in nightclubs decreased from 186 in 2012-3 to 138 in 2013-4 (-48)
Overall this is a 23 crime decrease in PPVC crimes in pubs and clubs in Brighton Division

e The increase of 29 Sexual Offences is primarily due to an increase in 10 crimes
of rape (female aged 16 or over) and an increase in 7 crimes of rape (male aged
16 and over). There has also been a marked increase in reported sexual assaults
committed during the night time economy.

* Inthe last year, 62% of public place violent crimes in Central Brighton were
committed in the nine hours of night time economy (20:00hrs — 05:00hrs) and a
significant proportion of these incidents are directly linked to licensed premises.

» Regency South still experiences more incidents of public place violent crime;
however the reductions here are in contrast to the increases in Regency North
and mark a move of this crime-type away from the city centre.

» There is a marked decrease in crimes within nightclubs as opposed to an
increase in those committed in pubs and bars. Improved operating procedures
and appropriate enforcement action in these venues may have had a causal
effect in this decrease. The increase in crime within the pub category highlights
where more crime prevention work is necessary.

Summary

Sussex Police experience incidents of public place violent crime throughout the week with an
increase in occurrences during the evening/night. Weekend and bank holiday/festive night
time economy periods experience significant rises in public place violent crime; as such, the
policing coverage, through Operation Marble, is increased in order to respond to this.

We have experienced a shift in peak policing times during Operation Marble, whereby there is

an increasing demand for resources well into the early hours of the morning. This may be
indicative of individuals coming out later into the night time economy due to changes in

89



disposable income. This is coupled with the increases in ‘pre-loading,” when individuals
coming into the night time economy have already consumed alcohol purchased at home.
These trends provide obvious challenges to both the licensed on-trade and the police when
assessing and responding to levels of drunkenness.

There has also been a perceived increase in the week night economy within the city. This has
been partly due to the large student population taking advantage of a more affordable week
night economy. Likewise, licensed venues have encouraged a wider customer base by
hosting regular themed nights and offering discounted alcohol and entry.

Dispersal from the city centre during the late evening and early morning continues to provide
policing challenges. Over recent years, there has been a proliferation of off-licences and late
night refreshment venues along the city’s arterial routes. This has led to incident ‘hot spots’
where patrons from the night time economy continue to interact, albeit away from any safety
measures afforded by on-licences. As such, Sussex Police support the Council’s Special
Policy in offering guidance to both applicants and the Licensing Committee in relation to off-
licences and late night refreshment licences.

Sussex Police have a growing concern that, despite staff training in age-restricted sales,
under age individuals are still being served alcohol in some of the city’s licensed premises. As
such, regular intelligence-led ‘test-purchase’ operations are conducted. Between December
2013 and July 2014, 21 off-licences and 13 on-licences were tested. 38% of the off-licences
failed in contrast with a 85% failure rate with the on-licences; indicating a considerable risk in
this area of the trade. It is anticipated that initiatives, including the introduction of identification
scanning machines at premises throughout the city, will go some way to mitigate this risk.
Sussex Police also continue to work alongside the Brighton Crime Reduction Partnership to
tackle the problem of those who use false identification to enter licensed premises and
purchase alcohol.

Policing the night time economy continues to provide a challenge and in the climate of limited
resources and newly emerging problems, Sussex Police support maintaining the Council’s
Special Policy which defines cumulative impact and special stress. Sussex Police also
recognise and support businesses which are aware of their social responsibilities and as
such, actively contribute towards keeping Brighton and Hove a safe and enjoyable city.

90



Appendix D Environmental Health — noise complaints regarding licensed premises
Prevention of Public Nuisance

The Environmental Protection Team remains part of Regulatory Services and
continues to respond to all domestic and commercial noise complaints in the City.

This includes noise complaints relating to licensed premises.

Over the past three years the total number of domestic and commercial noise
complaints received has progressively declined by 18%.

Table | below details the total number of noise complaints received over the past
three years.

Table |

Year TOTAL number of noise complaints
2011/2012 3381

2012/2013 3162

2013/2014 2779

Under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 The Environmental Protection Team
is still the ‘responsible authority’ for noise and the prevention of public nuisance.

As a ‘responsible authority’ the Environmental Protection Team continues to inspect
all applications for new premises licences and licence variations. This includes minor
variations. Where there are concerns relating to public nuisance a representation is
made. Licence reviews continue to been requested to prevent public nuisance.
Applying licence conditions which mitigate and control noise has been a valuable
method of preventing public nuisance.

Joint Intelligence Meetings include Police, Fire and Trading Standards colleagues and
continue to be a valuable forum for exchanging information relating to licensing
issues. In addition, the City Council’s out of hours noise patrol service provides an
excellent opportunity to investigate late night noise from licensed premises. The
warning and fixed penalty notices under the provisions of the Noise Act 1996
include licensed premises and are a valuable tool for managing late night noise.

The majority of noise from licensed premises relates to noise from live and amplified
music, and noise from people. Noise from people includes noise from people inside
the premises, and noise from people using outside areas, including smoking areas.

Table 2 below shows the number of noise complaints relating to licensed premises

over the past three years. This includes licensed cafes, restaurants, pubs and clubs
and supermarkets and takeaways.

91




Table 2

YEAR Total number of noise complaints
relating to licensed premises

2011/2012 243

2012/2013 230

2013/2014 233

I** April to 24™ October 2014 19 projected to 31t March 2014 = 204

Over the last three years the number of noise complaints relating to licensed
premises has remained fairly static around 230. The projection for this year is a
drop to 204 complaints and this would then see a 16% in noise complaints from
licensed premises since 201 1. This is consistent with the overall drop detailed
above.

There are a number of factors that could explain the reduction in noise from
licensed premises:

* The prioritised, risk based inspection program of licensed premises

* The continued joint intelligence exchange between responsible authorities

* Strong relationship between licensed trade, customers & community.
Partnership approach reduces conflict between agencies and targets
resources better.

* Proper standards of public protection is salient in current economic climate,
supporting local economic vitality. Robust enforcement against rogues but
supporting legitimate business by risk based consistent regulation.

* The existence of the cumulative impact and special stress areas.

The existence of the Cumulative Impact Area has clearly contributed to the
reduction in noise complaints associated with licensed premises. Environmental

Protection supports the continuation of the existing special policy.

Annie Sparks
Environmental Health Manager

92




Appendix E

Public Health Framework for
assessing Alcohol Licensing

Annual Report — Ward

18™ September 2013
Brighton and Hove Safe in the city
Drug and Alcohol Action Team Brighton & Hove Community Satety Partnership

93



Contents

MNotes on the data
Brunswick and Adelaide
Central Howe

East Brighton

Goldsmid

Hangleton and Knoll

Hanover and Efm Grove

Hollingdean and Stanmer

Howe Park

Mouisecoomb and Bavendean

Morth Portslade
Patcham

Preston Park
Queen's Park
Regancy
Rottingdean Coastal
South Portslade

St. Perer's and North Laine

Westhourne

Wish

Withdean
Woodingdean
Ward summary grid

Mapping

Appendix 1: alcohol attributable fractions

Appendix 2: Failed test purchases for alcohol

94

w o ] T

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
37
38



MNotes on the data
Crime and disorder data

All crime and disorder data except for shoplifting of alcehol offences refer to
2012-13 data, Due to low numbers, alcohol shoplifting data combines 2010-11, 2011-12 and 2012-
13 data.

Data used in this report is downloaded from the live system at Sussex Palice each maonth, This data
has not been audited or verified by statisticians at Police HQ, therefare it represents a reflection of
crime and disorder in the area, rather than the autharised and fully verified ‘performance data’.
Only those crimes and incidents where there was sufficient location information to map to ward
feval have been included,

It is not considered appropriate to produce & rate per ward as comparison between an incident
(which is likely to occur away from an individual's place of residence) and a resident population
would not be correct.

Infury Vielence includes all assault with injury offences, as well as violence against the persen
offences of greater severity such as murder, attempted murder and manslaughter

Mon-infury assoults include common assault and battery offences, racially or religiously maotivated
common assault or beating offences, and assaults on a constable

Data has been extracted using 'CADDIE' categories and police input date, but excludes those
offences which accurred before lune 2008, This is particularly relevant to sexual offences which
are often reported historically

All Violence Against the Person offences include injury viclence, non-injury assaults, as well as a
range of harassment and other offences.

Totol crime where the victim or the suspect has been recorded o5 under the inflvence of alcahol
wses "under the influence' markers on the police database and records those suspects or vietims
who were perceived to be under the influence of either alcohol, or alcohol and drugs, when the
offence took place. These markers are not mandatory and In total, approximately 15-16% of
crimes have this information recorded regarding the suspect or victim,

Palice recorded alcohol reloted incidents are extracted from the police incident database using a
search on the free text field (filled out as the call comes in) on the words alcehol, drink and drunk.

Shoplifting of alcohol offences data will ba influenced by thoss wards where there are
supermarkats or larger stores, as 3 large propertion of reported thefts of alcohal aecur in this type
of shop, where there are often security guards and reporting to the police is therefore more
COmmon,

95



Haalth data
Retes per 100,000 are for adults aged 15-59 years

increaging rigk or higher risk drinking data is derived from the Health Counts Survey 2002
Inereasing risk is defined as usual consumption of between 22 and 50 units of alcohol per wesk for
men and between 15 and 35 units of alcohol per week for women. Higher risk drinking is defined
as usual consemption of over 50 units of alcohal per week for men, and over 35 units of alcohol
per waek for women. Based upon place of residence.

Alcohol suspected ombulance coll outs data is for 2012/13 financial year and comes from South
East Coast Ambulance Service. Ambulance patient clinical records [PCR) now contain an indicator
for whether the crew on the scene suspect that alcohol has been involved with the incident. This
has been collected since April 2010, The guidance for collecting this data asks to mark a box with
an ‘%’ if aleohol is suspected, s it is vary much a judgment call of the crew on the scene, which will
differ between individuals. Due ta scanning and data validation, PCR data is 80-90% accurate.
Given these caveats, it will not be a complete picture of the burden that alcohal places on
ambulance services. However, It provides soma quantification of alcohol related ambulance call
outs, demographics of patients invelved in such incidents, geographical areas where the numbers
are higher and the health implications [whether resulting in falls, overdose/poisoning etc). Based
upon location of call out,

AZE attendances with a record of alcokol data is for 2008-2010 and is based on a key word search
for the word searched related to alcohol applied to an extract from the Symphony ALE system
Brighton & Sussex University Hospital Trust. These figures are collated from key word searches on
the electronic ALE record and so could well underestimate these numbers — there were 3,760
attendances identifiad aver the three year period. Based upon place of residence,

AE&E ottendances between Spm and Sam due to ossault data comes from Local Secondary User
Service extracts accessed via Sussex Database. Attendances at ARE due to assault {patient group
20) between 8pm and 5am {inclusive) has been used as a proxy for alcohol related ASE
attendances during the night time economy,

AEE attendance data does not include Minor Injury Unit (MIU) data, i is assumed that MIUs will
hawe very minimal, If any, Impact on attendances reported on within this report as the MIUs are
anly open &am to Bpm, not during the night time economy.

Data presented Is for 2011/12 and 2012/13. Analysis by geography is based on the postcode of the
patient, not where the assault took place, 2nd is irrespective of which AZE unit they attended.

pround three-quarters (77%) of attendances are for males. The figure shows the age distribution
and prafile for A&E assault attendances over the two year period. Two thirds (66%) of attendances
are in those aged 18-34 years with few attendances in the under 15's and over 60's. There were 30
attendances (7%) for those aged under 18 years.

Alcohal related inpotient hospital admissions data is for 2011/12 perlod and comes from Local
Secondary User Service extracts accessed via Sussex Databasa. Hospital admissions that are
wholly attributable to alcohol are included 2s well as a proportion of diseases and injuries where
alcahol can play a part (alcohol attributable fractions), The indicator is a directly age-standardised
rate and measures the rate of alcohol harm refated hospital admissions per 100,000 population.
see Appendix 1 for detailed Information on the indicator and the alcohal attributable fractions.
Place upon place of residence,

96



Brunswick and Adelaide

o

5

i

Crime and Disorder Data Mo, u;H::Lq
All Violence against the person: 132 8
All Injury Violence 42 11
Man-Injury Assault 717] T
Sexual Offences 12 =9
Criminal Damage a7 13
Total crime where victim recorded under
influence of alcohol 33 5
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohal 44 7
Police recorded alcohol ralated incidents 176 f
Shoplifting of alcehol offences 48 5
Health Data
% Rank Significance
Increzsing risk or higher risk drinkinﬁ_ 19% 9 S
Mumber Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs 189 7
Rate per
Mumber 10,000 Rank Significance
A&E attendances with a record of alcohaol 180 7.3 8 NS
Rate por
Mumibar 100,000 Rank Significance
ALE attendances between 8pm and Sam
due to assault 4 330 8 5]
Directly
ape std
rafe par
MNumber 100,000 Rark Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 161 13431 | 10 5

97




Central Houve

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Me. [1=warst)
All Violenca against the person: 125 =12
All Injury Violence 44 =9
Mon-injury Assault 42 15
Sexual Offences 5 =19
Criminal Damage 112 12
Total crime where victim recorded under
influence of aleohal 27 8
Tatal crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol 45 8
Police recorded aleahel related incidents 257 4
ShoEIiﬁ;inE of aleohol offences 73 3
Health Data
£ Rank Significance
Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 15% i0 NS
Humber Rank
Alcohel suspected ambulance call outs 211 5
Rate per
Numbear 100,000 Rank Significance |
A&E attendances with a record of alcohol 120 .0 12 M5
Rate per
Humber 100, 0 Rank Significance
ARE attendances between Bpm and 5am
diue to assauit 28 210 16 Siglow
Directly
ape std
rate per
Mumber 100,000 Rank significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 177 1,947.0 7 M5

98



East Brightan

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data No. {1=worst)
All Wiolence against the persan: 305 4
All Imjury Yiolence 85 4
Man-Injury Assault 135 4
Sexual Offences 22 4
Criminal Damage 273 3
Totzl crime where victim recorded under
influence of alcohol 56 4
Total crime where suspect recarded under
influence of alcohol 107
Police recorded alcohol related incidents 180 5
Shoplifting of alcahol offences 13 13
Health Data
% Rank Significance

Increasing risk ar higher risk drinking 13% 16 M5

Murmber Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call cuts 277 4

Rate per

Nurnber 100,000 Ramnk Slignificance

ARE attendances with a recard of alcohal 362 13.3 3 SigHigh
Rate per

Numbear 100,000 Rank Significance
AKE attendances between 8pm and Sam
due to assault 107 SE7.9 2 SigHigh

Dlrectly age
st rate por

Number 100,000 Rank | Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 442 28265 2 SigHigh

99



Galdsrmid

1

T

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Mo I1=worst)
All Violence against the person: 92 i6
All Injury Viclence 34 =15
MNon-Injury Assault 34 18
Sexual Offences 7 =14
Criminal Damage 133 10
Tatal crime where victim recorded under
influence of alcohol 15 =15
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol 34 13
Police recorded alcohal related incidents 109 =10
Shoplifting of alcohol offences 3 =19
Health Data
L4 Rank Skgnificance
Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 24% 3 NS
Number Rank
Aleohal suspected ambulance call outs 158 ]
Rate per
Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance
ABE attendances with a record of alcohol 2645 8.2 7 SlgHigh
Rate par
Murnber 100,004 Riank Signifieance
ALE attendances hetween 3pm and S5am
due to assault 59 273 11 M5
Directly age
std rate per
Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 331 | 1,893.2 3 ME

100




Hangleton and Knaoll

: me
{%g 2

Rank
Crimne and Disorder Data M, [1=wiarst)
All Violence against the person: 138 7
All Injury Violence a7 8
Non-Injury Assault 55 10
Sexual Offencas 12 =9
Criminal Damage 134 9
Total crirme where victim recorded under
influence of alcohol 13 17
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohal 29 =15
Police recorded alcohol related incidents 111 q
Shaplifting of alcohol offences 2 &
Health Data
% Rank Significance
Increasing risk ar higher risk drinking 10% 18 N5
Number Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs 107 14
Rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance
A&E attendances with a record of aleahnl 142 5.7 13 M5
Rate per
= Number 10,000 Rank Significance
AGE attendances between Bpm and Sam
dus to assault L 230 14 N3
Directly age
std Fate per
Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance
Alcahol relzted inpatient hospital
admissions 315 1,728.0 12 MS

101




Hanover and Elm Grove

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Ne. {L=worst]
All Violence against the person: 126 11
Al Injury Violence 54 7
Mon-Injury Assault 45 13
Soxual Offences & =17
Criminal Damage 202 5
Total crime where victim recorded
under influence of alechol 20 7
Total crime whers suspect recorded
under influence of alcohol 50 f
Police recorded alcohol related
incidents 109 =10
Shnpm‘tlnﬁ of alcohol offencas 3 =19
Health Data
5 Rank Significance
Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 22% 4 NS
Number Fank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs 130 10
Rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance
A&E attendances with a record of
alcohol 224 .1 11 M5
Rate par
Mumbser 100,000 Rank Significance
ARE attendances between Bpm and
Sam due to assault 64 63 12 M5
Directly
ape std
rate per
Mumber 100,000 Rank significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions | 241 1,789.7 11 M5

102

10



Hollingdean and Stanmer

Crime and Disorder Data Mo, {I:t:r:m
All Violence against the parsan: 194 6
All Injury Violence 76 E)
Mon-Injury Assault 78 [
Sexual Offences 14 &
Criminal Damage 157 7
Total crime where victim recorded undar
influence of aleahsl 32 6
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohaol 51 5
Police recerded alcohol related Incidents 108 12
shoplifting of alcohal offences & =16
Health Data
% Rank Significance

Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 21% i M5

MNumber Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs 206 6

Rate per

Murrkber 104,000 Rank Significance

AEE attendances with a record of alcahol 229 6.9 9 M3
Rate per

Number 100,000 Rank Significance
A&E attendances between &pm and Sam
due to assault 75 337 7 MS

Directly age
std rate per

Mumber 100,000 Rank Slgnificance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 06 2,190.6 i SigHigh

11

103



Howve Park

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data M {1=worst}
Al Violence agalnst the person; 73 19
All lnjury Viclence 27 19
Mon-Injury Assault 39 16
Sexual Offences 3 21
Criminzl Damage 36 16
Total crirne where victim recorded under
influence of alcahol 9 20
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol 18 20
Police recorded alcohol related incidents 37 20
Shoplifting of alcohal offences 15 12
Health Data
% Rank Significance

Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 14% 15 M5

Mumber Rank
Alcohal suspected ambulance call outs 48 21

Rate per

Mumber 104,000 Ramk Significance

ARE attendances with a record of aleohol 62 16 21 Sighow
Rate per

Murmber 100,000 ftank Significante
ARE attendances between Bpm and Sam
due to assault 13 149 21 Siglow

Directly age
std rate per

Number 100,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 166 1,237.3 19 Siglow

104

12



Moulsecoomb and Bevendean

Crime and Disorder Data M. ;Jx:lﬂ
All Winlence against the person: 214 5
All Injury Violence 62 &
Man-Injury Assault 95 5
Sexual Offances 17 5
Criminal Damage 189 6
Total crime where victim recorded under
Influgnece of alcohal 22 =8
Taotal crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol A 9
Police recarded alcohol related incidents 131 7
Shoplifting of alcohol offences 5 18
Health Data
] Ramk Significance

Increasing risk or higher risk drinking %, 20 Siglow

Mumber Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs 152 o

Rate per

Number 100,000 Rank Significance

AGE attendances with a record of alcohaol 230 12.7 4 5Egl-|lg=h=
Rate par

Number 100,000 Rank Significance
ARE attendances between Spm and Sam
due to assault 131 ] 3 SigHigh

Directhy age
std rate per

Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admisslons 326 2,246.2 4 SigHigh

i3

105



MNorth Portslade

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Ho. [1=worst)
All Vislence against the persomn: 75 18
Al Injury Violence 29 =17
Man-Injury Assault 31 20
Sexual Offences 7 =14
Criminal Damage 74 19
Total crime where victim recorded
under influgnce of alcahol 20 =11
Total crime where suspect recorded
under influence of alcehol 23 19
Police recorded alcohol related
incidents 36 21
Shaplifting of alcohal offances 0 21
Hezlth Data
% Rank Significance
1ncreasir15 risk ar higher risk drinking 12% 17 NS
Mumber Fank
Aleohol suspected ambulance call outs &0 20
Rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance |
ALE attendances with a record of
alcohol 95 349 13 SigLow
Rate per
Murmbes 100,000 Ramk Skpnificance
A&E attendances between Epm and
Sam due to assault 30 248 13 M5
Directly age
standardised
rate per
100,000
Mumber people Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 187 16514 13 M5

106

14



Patcham

107

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Ma. [1=worst}
All Violence against the person: 127 10
All Injury Viclence a5 14
Mon-Injury Assault 61 =5
Sexual Offences 7 =14
Criminal Damage 143 8
Total crime where victim recorded under
influence of alcahol 15 =15
Total crime whare suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol 37 10
Police recorded alcohol related incidents 79 i5
ShﬂpiiftinE of alcohol offences i7 10
Health Data
% Rank Significance
Increasing risk or higher risk drinking B 21 Siglow
Number Rank
Alcahol suspected ambulance call outs 98 15
Rate per
Nurnber 100,000 Rank Significance
AfE attendances with a record of aleohol 129 d.1 17 Siglow
Rate par
Nurmber 100, 0 Rank | Significance
AEE attendances betweaen Eprm and 5am dua
to assault 61 375 5 NS
Directly
ape std
rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital admissions 283 1,533.3 16 Siglow
15




Preston Park

lc Rank
rime and Disorder Data Mo, [1=worst)
All Violence against the person: 117 14
Al Injury Violence 41 12
Mean-Injury Assault a7 12
Sexual Offences 13 =7
Criminal Damage 78 18
Total crime where vietim recorded under
influence of alcohal 22 =9
Total crime where suspect recorded undar
influence of aleahol 25 =15
[Palice recorded alcahol related incidents 28 14
Shﬂpllfﬁng of alcohol offences 7 15
[Health Data
% Rank Significance

[increasing risk or higher risk drinking 17% 13 M5

Mumber Rank
nlcahol suspected ambulance call outs 113 12

Rate per

Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance

A&E attendances with a record of aicohol 135 4.3 15 Siglow
Rate per

Munther 100,000 Rank Significance
AEE attendances between Bpm and Sam
due to assault 47 227 15 Siglow

Directly age
std rate per

Mumber 100,000 Rk Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 200 1,407.6 18 Siglow

108

16



Queen's Park

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Mo, [1=wiarst)
All Viclence against the person: 515 3
All Injury Violence 189 3
Mon-Injury Assault 207 3
Sexual Offences i7 2
Criminal DBamage 279 2
Total crime where victim recorded under
influsnce of alcohal 116 3
Total crime where suspect recorded
under influence of alcohol 178 3
Police recorded alcohol related incidents 412 3
Shoplifting of alcohol offences 26 7
Health Data
% Rank Slgnlﬂr.nn:.e
Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 26% 2 M
Number Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs G618 3
Rate per
Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance
AEE attendances with a record of
alcohiol 447 18.7 1 SigHigh
Rate per ~
Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance
A&E attendances between Spm and Sam
due to assault 94 443 3 SigHigh |
Dircctly
age std
rate per
M e bers 100,000 Rank significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 587 3,640.0 1 sigHigh

109

17



Regency

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data No. [1=wrarst)
All Violence against the person: 911 1
All Infury Violence 404 1
Mon-njury Assault 313 1
sexual Offences 54 1
Criminal Damage 262 4
Total crime where victim recorded under
influence of alcohaol 248 1
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol 362 1
Police recorded alcohol related incidents 650 2
Shoplifting of aleohaol offences 78 2
Health Data
£ Rank slgnificance

Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 17% 12 N5

Number Rank
Alcohol suspacted ambulance call outs 1,114 1

Rate per

Number 100,000 Rank Slgnificance

AZE attendances with a record of alcohol 247 10.6 3 SigHigh |
Rate par

Mumbear 100,000 Rank Significance
ARE attendances between Bpm and Sam
due ta assault 45 282 10 M

Directly age
std rate per

Mumber 10,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 225 2,236.2 5 SigHigh

110

13



Rottingdean Coastal

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Mo. {1=worst]
Al Vialence against the person; 125 =12
All Injury Violence a4 =15
Man-Injury Assault 50 11
Sexual Offences 11 =11
Criminal Damage 113 11
Total crime whera victim recorded under
influence of alcohaol 18 =13
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol 35 12
Police recarded alcohal related incidents 92 13
Shop |iftin§ of alcoho! offences 65 4
Health Data
k] Rank Significance
Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 16% 14 NS
Mumber Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs a5 16
Rate per
MNumber 104,000 Rank Significance
A&E attendances with a record of alcohol 77 1.7 20 Siglow
Rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance
ARE attendances between Bpm and Sam
due to assault 45 290 ] M5
Diractly age
std rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance
Aleohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 245 1,179.9 20 Siglow

111

13



South Portslade

Rank
ltrlme and Disorder Data Na. [1=worst)
All Vialence agalnst the person: 131 9
Al Injury Vielence 44 =9
Mon-Injury Assault Gl =5
Sexual Offences 11 =11
{lCriminal Damage o8 14
Total crime where victim recorded under
influence of alcohol 13 =13
Total crime where suspect recorded under
linfluence of alcohol El 11
police recorded alcohol related incidents 113 :
ShupliﬁinE af aleahol offences 24 =g
[Health Data
a Rank Significance
Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 208 8 M5
Number Rarnk
alcohol suspected ambulance call outs 115 11
Rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance
ARE attendances with a record of alcohol 148 8.5 & SigHigh
Rate par
Mumber 100,000 Rank Sipnificance
AEE attendances between Bpm and Sam due
to assault 47 158 20 Siglow
Directly age
std rate par
Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital ad missions 279 2,791.8 3 SigHigh

112

20



5t. Peter's and North Lalne

(-ﬂ_nfﬂ g S

©

113

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Me {Lmararst)
All Miolence against the parson: 633 2
All Injury Violence 201 2
Mon-lnjury Assault 259 2
Sexual Offences 34 3
Criminal Damage ey 1
Total crime whera victim recorded under
influence of alcohaol 118 2
Tetal crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol 208 z
Police recarded alcohal related incidents 822 1
Shoplifting of alcohol offences 218 1
Health Data
% Rank Significance
Increasing risk or hiEher risk drinking 28% 1 SigHigh
MNurther Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs GAY 2
Rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance
ARE attendances with a recard of alcohal 257 14.2 2 SigHigh
Rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance
ARE attendances between 8pm and Sam due
to assault 112 966 i SigHigh
Diractly
ape std
rate per
Number 100,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital admissions 208 1,651.3 14 M5
21



Westhourne

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Mo, {1=worst)
All Vialence against the person: G5 20
All Injury Violence 23 20
Mon=lnjury Assault 32 19
Sexual Offences 3 13
Criminal Damage 25 15
Total crime where victim recorded under
influence of alcohol 20 =11
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol 25 17
Police recorded alcohol related incidents 63 17
Shaplifting of alcohal offences 4 =3
Health Data

o Rank Slgnificance

Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 155 11 N5

Nurnber Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs 112 13

Rate per

Mumber 104,000 Rank Significanee

A&E attendances with a record of alcohal 106 5.6 14 MS
Rate per

Mumber 100,000 Rank Slgnificance
AEE attendances between Bpm and Sam
due to assault 21 167 19 Siglow

Directly age
st rate per

Murnbes 100,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissians 219 18778 g NS

114

22



Wish

115

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Mao. [1=worst)
All Violence against the person: 107 15
All Injury Viclence 36 13
Mon-Injury Assault 43 14
Sexual Offences 6 =17
Criminal Damage 64 21
Total crime where victim recorded under
influence of alcohal i1 13
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of aleahol 13 14
Palice recorded alcohol related incidents 70 16
Shoplifting of alcohol offencas 16 11
Health Data
% | Rank Significance
Increasing risk or higher risk drinking 22% 5 NS
MNumber Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs 75 18
Rate per
Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance
ARE attendances with a racard of alcohol 74 4.3 16 Siglow
Rate par
Mumber 100,000 Rank Slgniflcames
ABE attendances between Bpm and Sam due to
assault 24 208 17 Siglow
Diractly
ape std
rate per
Nurmber 100,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital admissions 181 1,590.9 15 NS
23




Withdean

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Mo. {1=worst)
&ll Violencea against the person: a1 i7
All Injury Violence 29 =17
Mon-injury Assault 36 17
Sexual Offences 5 =19
Criminal Damage 20 17
Total crime where victim recorded under
influence of alcohal 9 21
Total crime where suspect recorded under
influence of alcohol 16 21
Police recorded alcohol related incidents 41 19
Shoplifting of aleohol offences (i =16
Health Data
% Rank Significance
Increasing risk or hiEher risk drinking 21% [ N5
Mumber Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs B0 17
Rate per
fumber 100,000 Rank Significance
ALE attendances with a record of alcohol a7 3.7 19 Siglow
Rate pes
Mumber 100,000 Rank Significance
A&E attendances between Bpm and Sam
due to assault 34 195 18 Siglow
Directly age
std rate per
Murmber 100,000 Rank Significance
Aleohal related inpatient haspital
admissions 196 1,082.4 21 Slglow

116

24



Woodingdean

Rank
Crime and Disorder Data Mo [1=worst]
All Mielence against the persan: 58 21
All Injury Violance 19 21
Mon-Injury Assault 20 21
Sexual Offences 13 =7
Criminal Damage 72 20
Total crime wheare victim recorded under
influenee of aleahal 10 19
Total erime where suspect recorded
under influence of alcohaol 24 18
Palice recorded alcohol related incidents 54 18
Shoplifting of alcohaol offances o 14
Health Data
% Rank Slgnificance
Increasing risk or higher risk drinkinﬁ 0% 19 M5
Number Rank
Alcohol suspected ambulance call outs G6 19
Rate per
Number 10w, 000 Rark Significance
ABE attendances with a recard of alcohol 101 6.3 10 M5
Rate per
Nuriber 100,000 Rank Significance
ABE attendances between 8pm and Sam
due to assault 40 372 G Ma
Directly
age std
rate per
MNumber 10,000 Rank Significance
Alcohol related inpatient hospital
admissions 180 1,435.5 17 Siglow

117

25



- Shoissiupe teldoub NPRIER I N R R R
inesse o anp wreg e oo PRI IS O P B T o
q;;:mu-:';:.jiéﬂijﬁ::;: oo~ ogs2 A e o RIS

<o (120 S0 SRGNPNEREUSP PSP VB PP

Buiyup s
Jau By o Buiseaiau]

Wuer abelone |
EJEP yHesH |

e T T
jayeape joBupdey s

s|uapIou] parelas
[oyoaE pEpIoaEra]od

|ojoaE o SauEm L | Japiin
paproaarjondsns o (o

{onoaje JeSauanyufdapun
papiooad WAl A B0

B0 UL
FEDBLO |ENXaS

aauaoin AnluFuoy T i { % bt

worst)

Fauajaa A

21

yosiad sy ujebe aalmo ||

g '
ey afeiope _,:,_.,| ral A g

glepIaplos]E PUB QWS | T 1 | = "‘i 5 .
| L

Ward summary grid (ward ranks of 21 wards where 1

§ 4l

| : 3

g “é% : i.5

2 Es & -
fgg Bpc 28 55 §i%:
HitH RN
EHIH HI

118

26



£T

£1L0Z 1snbny uohEPOWWCIoR ¢ PUE] PUB 7 PUBG PRUCISSILULLCD PUE saUa0 Juawiesd) pue piesn Jad S85U83)| Yo 1o IUnoD g
£1.0z 15n6ny sasiwald pasuad v g

£10Z 38nBNYy $20UB0I-Y0 PUE UDHEPOWLWOISE & PUBQ PUE 7 PUBG POUGISSILILICS 'Saiua0 waweal) g

£ L0Z 1snBny UONEPOWWONOR ¢ PUB PUE 7 PUB PIUDISSILILIGS 'SBljua0 juawieal] g

£1-2 102 sjuspioul pajejEl [0Yod|e peplodad aoiod g

E1-ZL0Z |0U3|e J0 SaUSN|UL SY] J9pun s LINHA 84 SI8UM SBLUL3 ||y

EL-ZL0Z [oyoD|e fo =ouan|jul ay] Japun S| 102dEns S)8ym SSWLD ||Y ©

(IE1ep) £i-210g sesiwaid pasuany Buipuebau sjure|dwoo sgjop 2

£1-Z10g sesiwaid pasusl Bupsebiss sjuedwos asioN 'L

Juiddey

119



TSR B B 1] DA L DD D 0T TN Bl (eI B BOOE TELnee) A Ao 5 UoIHUE SIOCTNO0L SR T S by lelu e uwhee 12}

| g r—
weo§ L
sy 0E 000CNOS 0

A

(GF2=U) £1-21L0Z sesiweld pesueal buipiebay sjurejdwoy) esioN

120




6T

Eil._;EEEE:Egﬂggkg_iﬁdﬁgﬁinig_ggii -

P ..._.u#....r.ﬁ?h. E-

€1-2L0g sesiwald pesusor] BuipseBbay sjuejdwo) esioN

121



“prusmanit B 1 (30 1Bt usoug e B0 “dnave du) Buis 4 Tl (ulpapansn B o TRenal it e B O0USET 'BAEITI0CL alasr Pesmmes ey B 1y ullaldes ueo 0

Ao oty ut agug

EUELL] P10 RPN Wadsns

k
WA
T
Y i e e
L 1.. "

53.?5 T
[OUODE 10 80USNUI S} Japun Si 10adsns alaym SaLLD ||y

122



e

P AL ] sfldoiery L o o dncon (OISO Su L A el LPIPINIE ST B0E 1R L5 i 7 USRS RIR0TI00L TOURET] D S i el uvors (2

Kv1a anpy g .._.,“_._u.m : | ;
. . L FORED D

[ e
IEFRCN N0~ B8 LB
LR B T T 31 o R i : :
FRERAME T BRLLTICHDY 3 - - ....". e {

SECLLVIRTE -0 : i
[ram mos Y 4L SADUR W jadiga

L]

AR EEE R
T FEAL| R
pisafiay |

(698=U) £12L0Z
|0Yo2e JO BouBN|UI B} JapUN S LUNJIA SISUM SSLULIO ||y

123




ZE

PeansaSe0 51 o O 1D pho e s o ko du s penuioes w83 TBdes Epamm Y FeeRs Bons 12une L eeon g ueneBud “ResInonn L e meareas wyl i a0ded e (6

- e | LA _- -
K30 o1 UL apeg [RREREE | | sni 0478 0

T WLFItFL T
FIETRIER T ERR N 2RDONE
S TR D - BRELMEFIN T
FEALICHEE D BESELAREN T

R0 §
RILEEIOL PRTHE) JAgaape |0

camg
LI RN A

L]

o

e
4 s ly

(9/6€=U) £1-Z10Z
sjuaplou| pajejsl joyooje paplodal 8910d

124



EE

"BUS UD B30 0 [Yaam B 30U Buiisia sy om poddns o0} woddns Buneoy Jayya Sunayo S[R150N WO UD 3A0L 03 APSaS 350U} 104 s35noY paleys

a1 pABg B UENOUI R UOIRPOWIIGISE PAUIRIUDD Jla5 ALSOW S| UONEPOWWIOIOR £ PURE 5a51nu s9nip pue joyod|e pue poddns [BInoIARY S0 58 ||9m 58
PRUBLIG 3R 5||145 2| pue SUILIED] PUB JI0M [EUOIHPRY JUSWUGIALD 3150y B Ul poddns yom Ay pue 3215 JySIU SUBem Inoy +7 U1IA UOREDSLULIOISE
|B350 51 UD[IEPOWILIOIIE T PUE] "UDEPOWIOIIE § PUB 7 pUBH PRuUMISSILIMG) ATAOYINE |BD0) PUE ‘S2UIU30 JUSLUIE3I] [OYOE |8 smoys dew ay |

"Bl by 2 sfifen uat pe o0z e (gl oRea 0 L A1 Relatdos s TROD BOST TR0 K D o ORI EEELI30L 00T TRsal uby by TiRelie na )

K153 973 1F ATES
: WMEL 90 E0 o

i L

g By
I Bt B TP
T R PR

£L0Z 15nBny
UGIEPOWIIOSDY £ PUBE pUE Z PUBE PRUCISSIWLIST) ‘SaUar) USUlea) |

125



e FE 10 Tl s s DA g g [k JLIREO RIY % 1 CHIPHPNTH S0 TN RSO0 SED MATH T LR ' EEGOZDN0|. TESUI] FeLumEar By I Jufukdosy mean) 1

310 911 T AT

rrorororol
BN T 20 ED o

Py

£1.0g 1snBny s30UISITHO

pue

LOEROWLLIOIDY £ PUEE PUE 7 pUBg paudissiluwos 'sanuas) jusw)esl |

126



5E

PR T T ) UG L) DU G0 i) S Dy L A IR0 DI SeRT HOGE TEned Ar aky) ¥ uapig sl i

Ad1a a3 ur ages | ;
bt ELTTUEA E0OET O

EI10T/80/80 JO 5% sa4naly :|

i SHEE Yo pUE Uo Yog
T fuo sanuag) [+
e L CEEEIEEE s

O adAy a5jlald pasuad]

G[2R JO FUR UD 1R
Al 5DTUDDR UD
Apo ARLRag [

(LLOL=U) £10Z 18nBny
sas|uald pasusal Iy

127



9t

Fouksmemy SR iy ot Sico g weer pum godE S G| ieg ey sy A Sl ibapnog) wag) POOZ JRUAED AR avail B ueidlii) BER0R0004. RoURnT] T sl n palidta o weord da

AYT0 A Ut agusg

Bk =F5
=i [

a5

e
sy nd HERE RIS (o
|
mmTy T per .
zdoned Benad) e 1 poeg
SRS FHERld ¢ porg
Mapckiged Bmpi) SMFRAEACGER [HIKKIE ¢ By
B AR EER
nnEs pEsaL

Ceow

pianBacy

£1L0Z 1snBmy
uclepoWLWIo0Y £ pueq pue Z pueg pauoissiLuLLog
safuan) Juawiesl| pue pieps Jad s80USOI =4O JO JUNOY

128



Appendix 1: Alcohol attributable fractions

Erax Alcotelnouced pieute-Cusin pnamme 100 100 100 190 150 ROC 130 .00 180 NI0 NS 100 100 LOU 100 100
ria M, 210 DEnaWiours RGN 000 2 U6E O 4 e 100 150 180 104 146 100 108 100 ED0 100 V0K 100 10D 100 100
G2 Diegensration ol ferious EYFIM DU D @00nee 100 1.00 LE0 160 100 100 LOD 100 100 190 150 100 190 108 100 180
. HMhmbalc P merRaTy 5O 100 MGG 150 109 100 06 100 180 1DO S0 WO RAC 102 180 100
Gt BRIk mypatty FO0 100 LO0 150 100 100 108 100 100 100 150 000 100 106 100 10D
MzE Abhede shrompagalny PEG 100 100 120 LDA (00 100 000 100 100 180 000 140 100 150 100
K233 Aloholic gasris 163 100 100 150 10O 100 100 £00 100 100 100 tOD 190 106 100 100
KM ANhoiic Tei Aaake L0300 100 L00 1H3 100 160 MO0 140 100 100 KO0 1OO KO0 100 100
ot Ao SR PANOPEISTE | Jihod Ot TEG OG 190 100 rOQ 100 10D EO0 800 100100 100 100 100 100 100
TR Emany piiring 100 190 100 F20 103 000 190 100 wAO 100 100 100 100 k00 100 100
TEL1 Tl el psaRnG 100 1A% 100 1D0 158 .00 190 tO0 40 00 100 00 100 130 100 LD
THE TORk: €Tl of BEra, unipled 100 100 106 100 100 105 100 0D 100 V00 100 100 100 L0 100 10
2 KoriSental poisonng oy and dapakue oo 100 106 100 190 100 LOD MO0 100 100 L0000 100 LOY 100 100 140
= A ;‘]ﬂf;;” Pepli of o, orE ShEY I00san pop 040 020 040 008 045 035 083 036 0S5 01 B4 95 036 030
g LAabgrant neceiaem of e Eenags 0O0 DOS DR 023 631 0230 430 A0 038 030 000 A B3 B4 20 00
ci WS N of olon Q0o 800 08 003 G053 48 004 QO3 005 0% 0SF GO O DY Q03X OO
f=o] LRI AN SRR T o Pecum OOD 200 Q8 0S€ C.0H 005 Q08 GOf OO 062 004 G0 047 201 008 O
= ST PSCRET B VET I EINECIN BN o oy Q16 Tt G5 S0 005 DB Q17 % W 069 L1y 4ov o0 ans
L=~ WG I AL O Ly oo GO0 2K 025 LAY 437 D32 G oM Q11 QM O30 D38 @0F oEFoan
=] MEGARSE NIpALT of Bhaa 900 000 040 009 DOY 008 D00 MOE DA 008 400 A0S 000 60 SO0 oo
G43-G41 Epieosy and S apiepacus 000 000 950 Q64 0T Q55 DSE 0% 081 OE1 OE OS5 D51 045 D3 0k
ng-nd FiyRefiecaive Jecases 00 BOS SM Q2d OAF 005 931 430 057 0.0 033 Q88 02T 013 030 LS
W7 CEER XTSI Q0% OO0 235 0X 034 38 027 Q39 038 0B Q37 O3 @M 037 130 oI
“EHE P Piure LOS 603 D0 CAT 3364 DO DG 800N S0Gd 3503 400 005D 0004 2004 2 b 6003
WHED 3055 1 OO STl 000 006 031 030 930 095 007 085 03 Q15 030 Q43 B34 Db Do6 0dd
WG, B3 3 S lechaemic Emle 000 B0 Q€ 003 €13 000 G0F 200 QR 000 D47 OO0 ED5 OO0 D00 000

CosRirprageal vanoe 0D 00D DT AST BTS 05F 0%4 40 OTF 035 45T OF GFY 04 DSt 0aa

-]
CREIT-DEophge EERIIOO-NEEMOTIIgE e - - o - = w 2 e =
L=l ey e . DD L0 24T DAY 04T A4F 047 QuF 047 045 Q47 QW7 QdT OET 24T 04T

WTRaT Fame TS, It Sawtert daanthnd - o g0 G877 06T OFF 080 073 GB0 G79 035 957 0& 0N e oS 03
EAE K341 ALLRE 2N ShEGIE pOSErR AT 000 B00- 037 205 037 Qa6 O B0 &30 ok 937 &ha BE 400 296 O0T
CEs S peoes DL T00 53 033 0.4 939 435 033 03 0X 035 03/ 03 o OM am
o0 T 5% GO0 SO0 023 060 631 00 [ 080 021 000 G20 00D 015 Lo G2
% Pookiuia IMe scdsn- soesen AaTaAlsn 000 D0 D35 D6 DAE 2105 046 DN L45 A1 ASY AEY BIL BG0 B3) O
3 Sroesman I Ao emn 000 BOC S46 030 G289 G2 M5 DAT DE1 042 Ot 008 DEE DOE BIE GpE
# floas i accidert fasvetinder) - hoS¥ pog gop 021 00D 033 005 02¢ 002 024 D7 009 003 D0F 043 009 O
% P BT accldent HrvenToR - Jea 000 DRG0 037 Q18 Q37 0% 037 918 037 G8 0% Ao ©05 090 02% oIS
ERR e Fatepd Joooer 203 LOD Q20 020 €20 QX 020 DX 028 030 G20 429 020 020 020 C20
T ATaEIE PR donmeri 00D D0 16 015 €35 015 0% 918 0I5 06 G0 O CIS TIE Di6 016
WODAN 13 Fail Iuries 000 000 027 004 022 018 032 GH 020 04 032 A 812 Af 812 ol
WL iWormasning imjUres Gba DOG OO7 O&F OOT 4O AOT 47 OOT AT AAT EET A0 BAY 40T A&7
W Fredm Tares 000 D00 035 OIF G25 03 Q2% O30 025 025 025 025 0IE 025 025 035
WEEATL Cogwming DY B00 DR M Gl O3 03 OM O3 O3 438 &M LM 4M AN LM
IFREEToN 3T gAAE COERLFARINN 3
WIENTE gt of 800d caming obetucon of the 900 000 035 023 029 O35 03F 035 025 035 025 OS5 DX 22 225 035
mprby ras
Fiiald ] Fra injeriss @50 £00 D34 S04 038 @8 438 B3 B3R 03N 034 0 LS 0 028
1] AeTisert enmensie T 003 £00 D39 02§ 023 838 029 023 025 025 035 025 025 025 925 405
SeEAL D RIS petdumEvest W wWTNEd aes mon nay 038 e 832 Q38 O3 OF O 036 0 DM 23 0 02

ET09 Apzas OB BOS 327 02V 037 41T 437 LT GIF 0FF 027 47 027 0237 D7 o

§ARoAte 0, 3avid e B8] e

B VDA S 3 R TR VTR R VR L -, ERYTT A3, VIR IAE0E VL I, VIEZ Y, VIS, WL DI LT AL VIT ST R VIR v

A Sitehon B BUSE S = S atrhutte TICHT 4 5 BKNEC E § w00, 218 = 15N O (963 WE NTEGHRE B S5h8. 7 Adrizson maisoes R Scofo-zirouning canaSene
(EPE R R O P L 010 £50eS EDE | ey b ST aRin munded S e SECTN DA, O T The SURAGE § e gite

Ex)

129



Appendix 2: Failed test purchases for aleohol

April 2010 — March 2013

In total 120 premises were visited, with 21 resulting in sales aver this three year period, Full

location information is currently available for 18 premises where test purchases resulted in a sale,

which are listed below,
Date Fromise Posteade  [Ward Culcoms
T2/ 20N0| Bnghton Bargmn, 116 Londan Hoad | [SHY 405 |Gt Paters and Mol |FPH Bsusd
Laing J—
TFHOA L0 Fak Road Rews, 7 Fak Road BHTOAR  |Hollingbury and Stanmer |FPN Ssusa
ZIOTTA0|Shy Food & Wi, 17 Tork Place  [GH14GU |56, Palecs and bodh |FPH Bsued
Laire
ICAEDI0[Bhghton Bargan, 116 London Raad  [SNT4J5 155 Pelers and North [FPN Bsued
Laire
AT 20| Shodent Urion Ehnp. Sussex BT 90F Hcﬂil'lghl.l‘" arvd Stanier |FPM Bsued
Unhersity, Falmar
BAF 17201 1| Park Road Hews, 7 Pk Road BNTUAE  |Feilingbury s Stanmer |FPH fesund
AEM 23011 [Park Road Mews, 7 Fark Rosd B AR, Hailingbury snd Stanmer |Licence Fedewilicence
Rigreniond
TSR 2011 | Wanaa, vensl Streel BN12RA Regency l'F_F‘N sLed
TEMI2012| Brghtan Bargaris, 118 Landen Read |BRT 403 S Pelers and Moih |FPM lesled § Sellar
Lzire aetendcsd Traking
TEOATZINZ|Vire Logge, 50 Mollsecoomb Way  |ENZAPE  [MSulsecoomb e FRN [ssied
Bavandesn
T DEMENZ|K & A NEas, 5 5t Georges Roas, | |Bhe IES Quesris Bark FPH lzaued
FVOR02| Doy 2 W, 24 Westein Rosd BRG 1AF  |Eeunawics ard Aselsios  |FPH Is5lked
2UNEE01Z[K & & Hows, § 51 Geomges Road BR2 1IEE ueen's Park FPM leswed i Lisence
Fmies with & wesis
FUORI12| St Mary s Shors 2 1/ fir Gieeet BN IFB T Pelers and Matn [P lssusd
Laie
POE2012| The Dk, 17 Veriehaw Road BHZ SFA Enst Brightan FH I5suad
FANnAnZ|E & W . 2% Yok Place [BMi G |56 Poters andHoth |FPH lssued
Laing
T Zanmam 2 |Magery Slores, 374 OI0 Shoranam | BRI THA Hangletan ard Rl FPH Iaaued ¢ Gellar
Fiaad allesidad Training
UL T Blahes Newsagenl And Post ORce, Halbrabury and Slanmar |FEN 550

Hadingbury Place,

?1EHT TGE

130

3a



Appendix F

Public Health and Community Safety Team analysis maps:

All Alcohol Licences 2014 — CIZ/SSA and citywide
All Alcohol Licences 2011 — CIZ/SSA and citywide
Off-sale Only Licensed Premises 2014 — CIZ/SSA and citywide
Off-sale Only Licensed Premises 201 | — CIZ/SSA and citywide
All Alcohol Licences 2014 — CIZ/SSA
2010/1'l and 2013/14 noise maps
Police Recorded Violent Crime Hotspot 2014-15
Police Recorded Alcohol Related incidents 2013-14
Police Recorded Violent Crime Hotspot 2010-1 |
. Police Recorded Alcohol Related incidents 2009-10
. Treatment Centres (band 2 & 3 Accommodation), off licences & SoS
2014
. Number of alcohol related ambulance call-outs in 2013-14
. Number of off-licences per ward, also showing treatment centres and
band 2 and 3 accommodation

—SOPNOUVAWN -

w N

131



aA. 30 0 Ea0HI iy (2 TUBUASST) Wy 7 oT GOOE “dnt £ (oo e B sl 0 plaons (RIDsERLE ST TRO0T SUNGD KD oy § S00uBUE SN ON onsar) PeAss e eyl Iy Tut i e uaas (2

o) ) T T T 17 T T 11
£710 a1f3 Ut aJes B . T e 4‘
. N

Lo SR LY L

By B S W REE . 1 ”. ... = s ... . Y 1
-uuh.;-r_nil..._.ﬁ___ i ___r?. \ _h M
piiaba S | /

(¥1Z1L=U) ¥10Z Jequadag S80Ua9I7 040N IV

132



paasea ERYOH T (7 Ao LA DO ROOZ SIS (MO ERELD B Sl 4G BUTNa0 s (LOREeReY BRIr 00T FINNCD KED SAd B SORIDEE TSR0 OO H0TEar) DA B Erath iy Jubpidsn wwo (3

i _Lrn_ .,:..H_”. m_m...u.tmm

ILOE BERHE| [T Y 8

BT, n

Ty FELGE Mo
T TR TR _

puaba

(]

| N N R Y N B A |
EapN e nm.mnﬂ‘

N

(66€L=U) |10z AB}\ S9oUso

IOYOIV IV

133




P Sy iy (20 rbadon Wi o PuR 00T SnaiE (EMORRLD B RS D sl AQ saliadon (Hoepesay 1D RO0Z TUN0D 30 R § OOWTNE SAS0T0 000U Paseea sl iy Teluiden swois (2

L ]
ey Whuoks o HYWeE @
_H_J_.._n
g i B i 2G5
S rec ug !...-Ej.un
pu ooy

ks ._E_u. n:—.u_ E.w. ayes

o

L O I
EEIN T rm._u_n_{

|

(Lpe=U) 710 Joquaidasg sesiwalg pasusor] AUO 21eS—H0

134



DRG] TRl Iy (5 DAk e Ty D0 P00 “ONCU ) (MO IRsD DR Sy 6y oD (e iasy WD R00T RS 63D ARon Y cyiUE AS0ED 00 oD PeAsssan Dyl iny mnudany aword (20

1 kbl ] gy 1L AU © i [ i [ T T T | T T T |
£910 atp) ur ayesg SN T I s0 0 4
o N

MOE But smsEp @
e [

Ty SEARE e

ity rormcan e gmeian g n

e R S i e et S0l R S 1

s,

hvmwncv Loz Aep .mmm_.E.m.hn_ qucmmS HLﬂ_:n.u 9es 40

135



paroasad splip iy (2% wbpddeo wwa o pow Bo0T “dhaip (koo e 0 eyl Aq Jelsidos [oepennd S0 “B00E uned K30 ek ¥ DO0UDRE SSS0DO0 M00eI Peasesa sl gy eliuddon wwoun (3
I T 7 []

(T RILLMART) Solbi ) LALLCE b I T T T T T T |
Ay10 o3 Ut 8JES. : % 4

. ' .b_._.ﬂl._..r__.m.._..q m ¥,
. ﬁ. - =

i

i J =
™ =
- J
. £ ] )
o ) w, |
Al e | f
! ¥ ’ =
# o i s 1
¥, ! | . y®
4 4 ! - o
R - [ 4 - .
1 L B . + L W 5
| i o, - ¥ -
| i # ) I g - B .
) - | - o el - & ] ¥
& - F ; I i = E
S e
F .-
5 g 3 1 =
r o r o
L H £ (]
L - 5 -
u F a
= = . ! W @ =
1 | T
- e ', s = ] -

.-ﬂ.l?..—l

i K J ) " 13 5

way SHRIIE WORCS e S 2 S 4 rTINLY ¢
puoz ey swsmpung [ | S EH LR = oy 1 iy . Y, ‘ %
S TR . T T 3 = it ,N\
puebe] [0 : oM RN s oGl

ealy ssaJ)g |e1oadg pue auoz joeduw| aAle|INwND
7102 Jequejdas saous9|T |00y |1V

136



‘PG By i (2 TDUAS0T) L D) D 0 000D (H ROERD E0E D sl A IR0 (ahpeaesy 801D G007 1O0N0D ARD @A § S0EUDUE SO0 00l 00N Dassabal SRl iy Jbulaod wwod ()

T T 117 1T 1.T1T]
B3 ODO'E Em;ﬂﬂnq

Ao oy ut ..a.,:um L

et WO LHEIHE

.fu

2

LU a4
F _ o
I.s._n | o o Yok -
waw wna e .._,Irr,..fu.Tl. o e fo EFE T ¥ g .@_‘._.: o T R e
sz wrsrs x . T e i TR N W
plrafia] .

(LeZ=U) ¥1L-€1L0Z .mmm_Em:n_ nmmcmm._._ m:_nhmmmm_ siuie|dwon .mm_n_z 10 10ds]oH

137




PAs3653 SRS I (24 1RREASDD WART) PUE GONZ ‘Sn0in) (4 REIAE p DE Sl 0 Rekeos [LDaRasty B350 BO0Z 19UN00 ARD B4  DYAR SSS0TD0N RUII DaAsER Egh iy IBUASeD wkaas (3

.__n.._;. .ﬁ.: _.._”_ m_.__..u.m 2

...,......?.“.. oF  oosh o G
. B | . e i OO0'E poEh DsL 0

=]
i =
s L e - . B
‘[, 1

. - 4 Y A - - : .. |.r

H:!.__n i - T g5 M g : X
iy uman e .__ o T oS : Y SR, EE | e g, B wﬁ k e )
J = g e S ' TR

.En.i&....i!.:.n_n

L , wuu.ff. A P il

ﬁwomwcv

11-010Z Sesiwald pasusor bupiebay siureldwog asioN 40 J0dsioH

138



“paseEa Ly ) 1AE0T HMOLT IR ODE ONGUE) (H UORTSLR0RE: 4 L A3 uidm (HDeiseesl SAID 00T TOEN0D 1D SN0k F DOIUDEE SRAOTH00L SODE0N] PRedseal SiulE 1y T oD mwars (3

£110 e uy ayug R

EJEP LL/0LOZ ) 2|gesedwos Agoaunp jou s dew siyj Joy pasn ejeq gN

&=

L]
FETI =2 EROT PRET TN

ET

e

ST IR S

T T 1T T T T 11
Bre ey 000 'S [ O u4

NOLHESIHA

B

- i A 4 i h 1 L]
g i i : . an 1 el
. "k [ LT . | i

X 1

(Lov'p=u)

S1-710Z JB|N 100SI0H SWID JUSIOIA PapIOdsY 39104

139



PR eea 1 Epgly Ty (20 eBUAG0 T U PUE ROOF OR0 Y (Rt Eanopunds £ Sl 401 oiadood (W paeessy B a0 BONT PR A0 S0 § U0guliNg "SSSITO00 L SI0N0 Parses al sy 1y Tainicda wwor )
E1ep 0L/600Z ©) aiqesedwod ARoauip Jou st dew sy Joj pasn ejeq :@N

__.n.h__...u.:::_,..—____u. T

aitk e ; : - ...”.l-l.,“ ..-. g ”..-. ___..
s 7 e, 3
s L = rJ.I_.Ii 1 .. i

| L L S L LT |
B O0D'E 00’k 0

| T & B
y b
- . s
L o PEE . i Y AT
3 & Bl oan i g +
" ‘ !
it s Wt | N
| 3 . s
et L . g
N X | o . !
4 L) L
F w N L A

L - Wi i) ™ 'y
¥ r.||. T . R 1!
oot ol e, g AR

(€/€'€=U) ¥L-€10Z SIuapiou| pajejey |0yod|y papioday aoljod

140



‘pansasal sybu |y (0) WBuAdon umoin pue goog ‘dnoln (y)uoneunojujoes ayy Aq jybukdoo (4)paleanay samo "800z *|ounoD AND aA0H @ uolybug ‘66602000 | :90UsdI “paasasal sIyBl |1y WBuAdoD umoi) (o)

dsiauned £194es ANuIwoD 280K B uoBlIg f_ T

£A310 oY1 UL 3jes

| i~ M M ) T T T _H T T _,
P LS ! T SI218IN 000'E 00S‘L  OS:
| |
m
20— - . :
| w m
w M
W - m
MOLHDIHY | |
-
i _ ~
NOH (mW.>m
LaVISIH0e

ealy sseAs [epads
suoz 1oedw] eane|nwngy D

Ty ey,

(829°G =u) L1/

0102

depy 10ds101 auwt.

1D 1u8|o

G w5

A PopI0dey

991|0d

141



‘pansasal sIybu |y (9) 1yBuAdon umoi pue gooz ‘dnoin (W)uoneuwuojujoen ay) Aq 1ybuAdoo (W)psjeanay samD ‘8002 “1ounod AnD anoH @ uolybug ‘666020001 :20usd1 ‘patasal sIYBU |y IyBuAdoD umoi (o)

. | Sial8\ 00c'e 009°L 008

|

1‘; w - - —— NO s - - -
i
i

. ,W. .\\ e /W/ _

_O.,_.Iow_mm i
| —-

]

-

<aImvA>

S1UaPIOU] PIIEI! 0402[E 10dSIOH

auoz joedw)] aAnejnwny 8
©Baly ssang [ereds

sprem [

puaba

NI

PR e

squ
S]UspIoU| palejay |0Yo9|y Pepioday 821104

142



narsaen sl gy ) e Adon WD PUr 00T OND (RO TIEORIDD UL Mg mlinkdo (EDered SED E0OE TRURCD A0 0H ¥ RoTuliE SSA0E000L (90 Daon Deeses sl iy seliddos umnD i

[TTTTTTT]
sEIN L SEI00

LLIHDIHE

.

ey
el puiigg

CEoned Burel ) Ry P sy

1 O WAL R SR At ey

i o i L DD AL B P S [ B
DR

g O LA e |

W L U B

b TR LD B | T

Pascoeceo

|

”_ oo a8l * & M T e ...“m. A e

B

rEN Jaqualdag mmccmu_,_.tu pue
UOIEPOLUILLOIDY £ puBg pPUE Z pUuBeg PausIssIWWOo ) ‘'Saljua’) juauesl]

143




Darsa iR Fela fy (20 Rl PR D oD Do §0E 0N D O FeogTELD i D e aell O IR0 [ pDe P dtaly B RO0E FOUN0T AR eA0M § DOYORE SEE0TO00E S0USY) DesseEa SRgl iy iOpASe) wwa D [

[T 1T 1T 17 17T 71|
EEE,___ccc_m cmm__.uﬂc 4

L=
o= B
=R
L IR
L
by e i OO i o
BDIERA|
[

144

vi-€L0cC
YOS Aq sino-|jeo aougnquie paje|al |oyoo|y



‘paedeea iy B whtdon umd pur $007 "dewn [ Eeommeuonoen o L A milnddoo (ehpemmesl S0 00T TPUDED A0 SnoH ¥ oy ‘esadrot0. eowan peeuees Sale v el ddon Dwi ()

[TTTTTTT]
SEON L §0EZ00

R
8
LT
Bk

4[]

o v []

[ 4l i Lo 0 Gy
PR E e @
(poed Bured) gy i
oo w SEnddre ¢ el ()
S BRIUEAITE R TR TR SR TRETE S ]
supsepuoy (O
L iR (D)

puraba|

102 Jequaydeg
UOIJEPOWIWODDY € PUBE PUE Z pueg pPauoissiLuLLIoD
'salua”) Jualujeal] pue piep Jad seoudiT-J0 Jo JUNoD

145



146



LICENSING COMMITTEE  Agendaltem 18
(LICENSING ACT 2003) Brighton & Hove City Council

Subject: Underage Gambling Test Purchase Operation

Date of Meeting: 20th November 2014

Report of: Senior Licensing Officer

Contact Officer: Name: Sarah Cornell Tel: 295801
Email: Sarah.cornell@brighton-hove.gcsx.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: All

FOR GENERAL RELEASE

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT:

1.1.  This report details a recent underage gambling test purchase exercise by the
Council’s Licensing Team and assisted by the Gambling Commission on the 9"
October 2014.

1.2.Following test purchases reported to Licensing Committee on 20" June 2014,
officers were instructed to continue to monitor premises and take appropriate
enforcement action including test purchases. Previous failing businesses were
retested.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS:
2.1.  That the committee notes the contents of this report.

2.2. That officers should continue to monitor premises and take appropriate
enforcement action including test purchases.

3. RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION/CHRONOLOGY OF KEY EVENTS

3.1.  Gambling Act 2005 - Licensing Authority Functions

3.1.1. The functions of licensing authorities may be divided roughly into five: publication
of Gambling Policy, regulation of premises, registration of small society lotteries,

maintenance of registers and compliance.

3.1.2. Table 2 shows types and numbers of gambling licences issued by Licensing
Authority currently compared to 2007 when the Gambling Act 2005 came into

force.
Premises Licences Current (31 01 2014) 2007
Casinos 4 4
Bingo Licences 4 8
Adult Gaming Centres (AGCs) 8 28
Family Entertainment Centres (FECs) 4(incl. 2 FEC permits) 8
Betting tracks 2 2
Betting Shops 47 51
Gaming Machines 144 222

147




3.2

Rationale

32.1.

3.2.2.

3.2.3.

3.2.4.

3.2.5.

3.2.6

Brighton and Hove City Council have been working in partnership with the
Gambling Commission (Commission) to undertake test purchases across a
number of different operators, to test the effectiveness of underage gambling
policies and procedures at gambling premises. The tests were designed to
provide us and the Commission with assurance that licensed operators have
sufficient safeguards in place to prevent underage gambling.

The Commission approached the Licensing team in February 2014 about running
a test purchase operation in late April 2014 targeting the small/medium operators
of betting shops, adult gaming centres (AGCs) and bingo halls. This has come
about as a result of a national test purchase operation done by the Gambling
Commission in 2009 which saw a 98% failure rate amongst the larger operators.
Since then the larger operators have introduced a number of measures and
regular self testing schemes.

The Commission has concerns about underage gambling vulnerabilities in
particular sub-sectors of the gambling industry. Operators must monitor the
effectiveness of their policies and procedures for preventing underage access to
gambling premises/products (a requirement under LCCP (Licence Conditions
Code of Practice)). Certain sub-sectors of the industry have not provided the
Commission with any assurances that this is happening.

Those sub-sectors are, broadly, the small and medium-sized betting, AGC/FEC
and bingo sectors where the operators constituting those sub-sectors (except
where test purchase schemes may already be provided by a trade association or
third party, for example) are not able to evidence that age verification procedures
are being monitored. The Commission has particular concerns with regards to
access to gaming machines, which may be accessible without any interaction
between the player and a member of staff.

A number of this type of small/medium premises were identified in Brighton &
Hove. Test purchasing was carried out in accordance with the advice given by
the Better Regulation Delivery Office (BRDO) and Gambling Commission’s
advice on test purchasing.

The Gambling Commission recently published a press release titled

“‘Weaknesses persist in underage gambling controls” Please see Appendix A.

3.3.

Offences

3.3.1.

Gambling Act 2005, Part 4, Protection of Children and Young Persons

Section 46: A person commits an offence if he invites, causes or permits a child
or young person to gamble.

Section 47: A person commits an offence if he invites or permits a child or young
person to enter premises.

148



3.4.

Methodology

3.4.1.

3.4.2.

3.4.3.

3.5.

The juvenile test purchase operation consists of a young person (under 18)
attempting to enter a gambling premises and, if so able, attempting then to play a
gaming machine for a short period of time before leaving the premises.

Each test purchase seeks to identify at what stage, if any, a challenge is made by
the staff member at the gambling premises. The stages of challenge are as
follows:

a. Upon entry to the premises (betting, AGC and casino only)

b. Any time after crossing the premises threshold but before inserting monies
into the gaming machine

c. After having inserted stakes into the machine and whilst playing the machine

d. Challenge between finishing gaming machine play and exiting the premises.

e. No challenge (having departed premises).

The first test purchase operation was carried out on the 25" April 2014 by the
Council’s Licensing Team and assisted by the Gambling Commission. A total of 7
premises were visited (2 Betting Shops and 5 AGCs). The operation involved two
officers from the Local Authority and an officer from the Gambling Commission. A
supervisor from the Licensing Team first entered the premises, to assess that the
premises was safe to enter and machines were available for use, followed by the
test purchaser entering. The test purchaser was a 16 year old boy and he was
instructed to first walk around the premises then start playing a gaming machine
(for 18 years persons only) for approx 7-10 mins.

Results

3.5.1.

3.6.

The following premises failed the first test purchase by failing to challenge the
young person:

Connaught Leisure (AGC), 46 George St, Hove, BN3 3YB

Metrobet Bookmakers (Betting Shop), 56 Boundary Road, Hove BN3 5TD
Bridge Bookmakers (PKA Hare Bookmakers) (Betting Shop), 75 St. James’s St,
Brighton, BN2 1PA

Nobles Amusements (Bingo), 126-127 St. James’s Street, Brighton BN2 1TH
Regency Arcade (AGC), 63-64 West Street, Brighton BN1 2RA
Silverstreak Ltd (AGC), 97 St. James’s St, Brighton

The Gaming Centre (AGC), 81 Boundary Road, Hove BN3 5TD passed the test
purchase as the young person was challenged upon entry and asked for ID.

Follow up Action

3.6.1.

Each premises was sent a warning letter with details of the test purchase and
the offence committed. The licence holder was asked for a written response on
how they will address the weaknesses in their underage gambling procedures
shown by the test. They were also informed that Brighton and Hove Council
intend to conduct a re-test of their gambling premises in the future, and should
that test again show weaknesses, consideration may be given to initiating a
review of their premises licence.

149



3.6.2. Written responses were received from all those premises that failed the test
purchase acknowledging the failure and offence and committing to improve their
policies and procedures. This includes introducing measures such as further
refresher training, disciplinary action taken if appropriate, “blocking” machines
when idle so that staff must be approached before playing, maintaining check &
compliance logs and introducing independent self test regimes.

3.6.3. Compliance inspections to all six of the premises that failed were carried out by
Licensing Officers shortly after the written responses were received. The
inspections involved discussions about the failed test purchase and going
through the policies and procedures for preventing underage access to
gambling premises and playing of machines. Mandatory licence conditions and
the Social Responsibility Code Provisions were also discussed. It was made
clear that the premises would be re-tested in the future.

3.6.4 The second test purchase operation was carried out on the 9™ October 2014 by
the Council’s Licensing Team and assisted by the Gambling Commission. A total
of 5 premises were visited (1 Betting Shop, 1 Bingo and 3 AGCs). Bridge
Bookmakers who previously failed had notified us of their closure so no re-test
could take place. The operation involved three officers from the Local Authority
and an officer from the Gambling Commission. A supervisor from the Licensing
Team first entered the premises, to assess that the premises was safe to enter
and machines were available for use, followed by the test purchaser entering.
The test purchaser was a 16 year old boy and he was instructed to first walk
around the premises then start playing a gaming machine (for 18 years persons
only) for approx 7-10 mins.

3.7. Results of the second test purchase operation

3.7.1. The following two premises failed the second test purchase by failing to
challenge the young person:
* Metrobet Bookmakers (Betting Shop), 56 Boundary Road, Hove BN3 5TD
* Regency Arcade (AGC), 63-64 West Street, Brighton BN1 2RA

Connaught Leisure (AGC), 46 George St, Hove, BN3 3YB, Nobles
Amusements (Bingo), 126-127 St. James'’s Street, Brighton BN2 1TH and
Silverstreak Ltd (AGC), 97 St. James’s St, Brighton passed the test purchase
as the young person was challenged upon entry and asked for ID.

3.8 Follow up Action

3.8.1 The three premises that passed have been written to informing them that they
passed the test purchase and to continue to monitor their policies and
procedures for the prevention of underage gambling.

3.8.2 The two premises that failed have been sent a letter informing them that they
failed the test purchase and that a review of their premises licence will be
submitted by the Licensing Authority.

4. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION

150



41.

Licensing Strategy Group, finance and legal services.

5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS:

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

Financial Implications:

The costs associated to the licensing and gambling functions of the council are
funded from existing revenue budgets with the Environmental Health and
Licensing service

The costs associated to activities under the Gambling Act 2005 are funded by
licence fee income. Licence fees are approved annually at Licensing Committee
and are set at a level that it is reasonably believed will cover the costs of
providing the service in accordance with the requirement of the legislation under
which they are charged.

Finance Officer Consulted: Steven Bedford Date: 21/10/14

Legal Implications:

Legal implications are contained within the body of this report.
Lawyer Consulted: Date:

Equalities Implications:

As licensing authority, the Council works in partnership with the betting industry
to ensure effective protection measures, policies and procedures are used to
promote and implement socially responsible gambling and tackle problematic
gambling.

Sustainability Implications:

There are no direct sustainability implications.

Crime & Disorder Implications:

Government policy aims to ensure that the gambling sector is run responsibly,
as a safe and enjoyable leisure activity.

Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:

No implications

Public Health Implications:

The Gambling Act 2005 is predicated on the three licensing objectives:
» Keep gambling crime-free
» Ensure that gambling is fair and open
» Protect children and vulnerable adults

As licensing authority, members and officers monitor and review their function
with informed by research to support control of problem gambling - How common

151



is the problem in the city and which groups suffer most from problematic
gambling? What are the affects of problematic gambling on individuals, families,
and health? What can the authority do to minimise risk factors associated with
problematic gambling? What interventions are possible at licensing level? How
can Local Government and Health and Wellbeing Boards develop an approach to
problem gambling?

Corporate / Citywide Implications:

5.6. The local licensing delivers support improvement that help businesses comply
with the law speedily, easily and economically.

6. EVALUATION OF ANY ALTERNATIVE OPTION(S):
6.1.  None — for information only.
7. REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1.  For information only.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendix A — Weaknesses persist in underage gambling controls
Documents in Members’ Rooms

1. None.
Background Documents

1. None.

152



Appendix A

Weaknesses persist in underage gambling controls

Press release

Date: 2 September 2014

The latest round of underage gambling test purchasing conducted by local
authorities in partnership with the Commission continues to demonstrate that many
operators have inadequate controls for preventing underage gambling.

In 20 out of 40 tests[1] of adult gaming centres and betting shops, a supervised test
purchaser under the age of 18 was allowed to play on a gaming machine and leave
the premises without being challenged to prove their age. A number of tests were
also conducted at licensed family entertainment centres and at bingo premises that
had been converted from arcades|2], with similar weaknesses being found.

Licensees that did not challenge a test purchaser before they played a gaming
machine have been warned by local authorities that failure to improve could lead to
formal regulatory action being taken, and many licensees have been required to
submit action plans to their local authority detailing how the weaknesses in their
underage gambling controls will be remedied.

Some licensees have so far introduced a range of measures in response, for
example improved training schemes for their employees; the employment of third-
parties to conduct quarterly test purchases of their premises; have re-sited CCTV to
provide employees with better sight of customers entering the premises; or are
introducing physical barriers to age-restricted areas at times where they cannot be
monitored.

However, local authorities are reminding the operators that if they fail to voluntarily
deliver improvements, or if their gambling premises fail a further test purchase, then
they may be subject to a review of their premises licence which could culminate in
the imposition of stricter licence conditions or the suspension or revocation of their
premises licence.

Reasons for failures

The results from these test purchase exercises also show that the causes of such
failures to challenge testers before they gambled are similar to those uncovered by
the 2013 exercise. Some staff members appeared to be unaware of the presence of
the young person, either being engaged in other duties at the time or simply not
paying attention. In one test, there were no staff present on the premises. On other
occasions, staff appeared to be unwilling to challenge the tester, either lacking
confidence in making a challenge or having little regard for their responsibilities to
prevent underage gambling. Local authorities are seeking remedial action from
licensees in such instances.

Conversely, early challenges were made in tests where the layout of the premises
allowed staff to supervise customers entering the premises, or where staff members
were positioned close to the entrance; but only when staff members were also
vigilant in executing their responsibilities.

153



Next steps

The Commission has previously stated that it will consider mandating new measures
to improve the level of protection offered to children and young people, and is
currently consulting on strengthening its Licence Conditions and Codes of Practice.

These latest test purchase results provide further evidence that controls need to be
strengthened, in the key areas covered in the consultation; such as line of sight,
premises layout, and staff training. The consultation launched on 7 August 2014 and
will close on 31 October 2014.

The Commission will continue to work with local authorities to test gambling
operators as part of a rolling programme of testing. Individual operators may be
putting their livelihoods at risk if they fail to prevent access to gambling by children
and young people and regulatory action is taken by a local authority or the
Commission.

[1] The tests took place across a number of local authority areas in England during the Easter and
summer holiday periods of 2014.

[2]For tests conducted at family entertainment centres and bingo premises, the young person sought
to access the age-restricted gaming area and play a Category C gaming machine.

154



LICENSING COMMITTEE
(LICENSING ACT 2003

FUNCTIONS)

Agenda item 19

Reviews table June — November 2014

NAME AND Date consideration | DATE OF | DETERMINATION
ADDRESS OF of closure order HEARING
PREMISES received from
Magistrates
Molly Malone N/A 12.11.14 | Modification of
57 West St conditions
Brighton
BN1 2RA
West Beach N/A 02.09.14 Licence revoked
135 Kings Road
Brighton
BN1 2HX
Harbour View N/A 06.09.14 Licence revoked
35 Wellington Road
BN41 1UR
Metrobet Bookmakers | N/A To be set
Ltd
56 Boundary Road
Hove BN3 5TD
Regency Arcade N/A To be set
64 West Street

Brighton BN1 2RA

155




156



LICENSING COMMITTEE |Agenda ltem 20
(LICENSI NG ACT 2003 Brighton & Hove City Council
FUNCTIONS)

Schedule of Licensing Appeals: Date of Meeting: 20"
November 2014

Premises Appellant PTR Hearing Outcome
Casba, 11 Premises 31

Western Road, | Licence Holder November

Brighton 2014

Casba 2, 8 Premises 3%

Western Road, | Licence Holder November

Brighton 2014

West Beach Premises

Hotel Licence Holder

157




158



	Agenda
	13 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	17 Review of Statement of Licensing Policy
	Appendix A
	Appendix B SoLP update
	Appendix C
	Appendix D
	Appendix E
	Appendix F

	18 Underage Gambling Test Purchase Operation
	Appendix A

	19 Schedule of Reviews
	20 Schedule of Appeals

